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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHMES

On behalf of the board of directors of Talent Property Group
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The consolidated revenue and gross profit for 2021 amounted to
approximately RMB344.0 million (2020: RMB348.2 million) and
RMB133.9 million (2020: RMB166.9 million), respectively. The
revenue for the year mainly includes the revenue recognized from
sales of villas of Xintian Banshan and delivery of pre-sold units of
the Yangzhou project. Change in revenue composition resulted
in a decrease in gross profit margin. Profit before taxation was
RMB197.3 million (2020: RMB97.8 million) before taking into
account the fair value changes of investment properties and
provision for impairment loss for properties under development.
Provision for impairment loss was minimal in the current year
following a prudent impairment charge in previous years.
Unfavourable fair value changes of RMB12.0 million and reversal
of impairment loss of RMB12.0 million, respectively, (2020:
unfavourable fair value changes and impairment loss totaling
RMB213.9 million) were recorded for the investment properties
and the carrying value of logistics commercial projects under
development with reference to independent appraisal after
examining current market and development conditions. Income
recognition from sales of residual properties by associated
companies resulted in the Group’s increased share of profits from
those companies. After taking into account the above factors
and lower income tax expense, profit after tax attributable to the
owners of the Company amounted to RMB164.0 million (2020:
loss of RMB100.9 million).

HMAMEEBERAT 2021 F F#H

TARBRKRFTRARHWEEBRERARA (AR
A REARRREWNB AR ([KER])
HE - E-—F+-_A=1t—"BILFENKE
MERAEE -

%L

TE I —FHRAUEEENDRNEARKE
344088 L (ZZTE_TF : ARM3482B 8
L) RARBI1BBIOBE T (ZZTEZTF: A
R¥166.95E L) - AFEZRAFTERE
MRFILBEHEURSNEEBEEMRE
ZUWAFER - WAARE  EFEEFRBAH
T e ERRREMELFEEHUARER
mYEZRERE  BREMZHEAARE
1973EE L (ZE_TF: ARKBI7T8EE
JL) o BRI FEZEIRAER  AFE
REFHMERERE 2ZBILTEURESR
MERFAEERE  BREMEAFEARE
BHPZYIREEBEEEREARE  2HAXFER
BEARE12.08BTAKBEREBRERDR AR
12088 (ZE2Z2F : AFETHREREE
EIEHEARB213.98E8T) - BE AR ERH
EARBFREEAEEDHAEREEN - EE
FRAZRURFASHASIRI®%  AQF%E
ABBEREREBRZAIARK164.08BT (=ZF
—EF  FERARKI009BET) °

e



_'___,.-""'_"""-u..:-""'h-._

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Following the recession caused by the COVID-19 pandemic
(the “Pandemic”) in 2020, thanks to accommodative monetary
and fiscal policies maintained by governments, the countries
worldwide saw their economies recover to varying degrees in
2021 despite the emergence of variants.

In the first half of 2021, China’s real estate market experienced
higher regulatory restrictions on real estate financing, housing
loans, and land transfers to suppress a renewed overheating
of the real estate sector. However, with the ongoing tightening
policies and the slowdown of overall economic growth, many
large real estate developers experienced liquidity crises in the
second half of the year and there has been a surge of credit
defaults in the industry. This indicates that the “high turnover”
and “excessive financialization” model of the real estate industry
may have come to an end. The future business model will favor
high quality growth, refined products and management.

Xintian Banshan

The Group’s flagship project Xintian Banshan is located
next to the South Lake 4A-grade tourist attraction in Baiyun
District, Guangzhou City, which is built on hills commanding a
magnificent view of the city’s commercial center. The majority of
the project’s high-rise residences at Zone D and Villas at Zone
C has been sold. The villas (known as ¥k ¢ *|1|%) at Zone B,
which are built along the mountain slope and currently available
for sale, have been highly acclaimed by the market. The Group
grasped the market trend and adjusted its pricing strategy in a
timely manner to speed up cash recovery. During the year, total
subscription area and amount for Xintian Banshan amounted to
approximately 5,200 sgm (2020: 3,500 sgm) and approximately
RMB374 million (2020: RMB237 million).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Going into 2022, with the weakness in the overall real estate
market in the second half of 2021 and the successive outbreaks
of credit events, the central government has signalled easing
measures and accordingly the credit environment has improved
slightly. In addition, the Pandemic has highlighted the advantages
of a low-density community, which, along with the scarcity of
top luxury villas in Guangzhou, will help the Group’s ongoing sale
of villas in Zone B. On the other hand, villas in Zone E (known
as #x e LITAIE), which are rare in the Great Bay Area, occupy
the prime location of the project and adopt the design concept
of Monte Carlo aristocratic living style, is now open for viewing
by appointment since early 2022. It is expected to bring in a
lucrative income for the Group in the future.

Logistics Commercial Property Projects

In order to diversify the Group’s business, the Group ventured
into logistics properties in the Yangtze River Delta region in
2017. Yangzhou Intelligent Life City, with a site area of 81,000
sgm located in Guangling District, Yangzhou City, is developed
in two phases, namely Zone A and Zone B. The saleable area of
commercial and office units of Zone A are approximately 10,000
sgm and 80,000 sgm respectively. However, the Pandemic has
affected the progress of the project, resulting in some of the pre-
sold units not being delivered on time, and it is now planned
that the project will be fully completed in mid-2022 for sale
and delivery as completed units. Supply of similar products in
Yangzhou City has exceeded demand in recent years and sales
have not been satisfactory as a result. As at the end of 2021,
the subscription amount and area were approximately RMB24.2
million and 3,100 sgm respectively (2020: RMB25.5 million and
3,200 sgm). Looking ahead to 2022, we will continue to expand
effort in marketing and soliciting investors.
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The disposal to the local government of Suzhong Demonstration
City on Intelligent Agricultural Industry, located in Shatou Town,
Yangzhou with a site area of 250,000 sgm, was completed during
the year. Consideration for equity interests has been received
and shareholder’s loan has been settled, relieving the Group’s
cash needs and registering a gain on disposal of approximately
RMB28.8 million.

Xuzhou Intelligent Industrial Town, with a site area of 102,000
sgm in Yunlong District, Xuzhou City, was originally scheduled
for delivery of pre-sold units in late 2021, but construction was
delayed due to the Pandemic and is now scheduled to be fully
completed and delivered by mid-2022. The saleable area of
commercial and office units of the project are approximately
62,000 sgm and 41,000 sgm respectively. The Group took
advantage of the local government’s local development plan
and the opening of metro in the city to generate faster cash
returns. As at the end of 2021, approximately RMB205.1 million
and 17,300 sgm (2020: RMB284.8 million and approximately
28,400 sgm) of subscription amount and area, respectively, were
recorded for commercial units, and approximately RMB25.7
million and 4,100 sgm (2020: RMB16.8 million and approximately
2,500 sgm) respectively, were recorded for office units. Looking
ahead to 2022, we aim to complete the sale of the remaining
commercial units of approximately 10,000 sgm and boost sale of
office units.

Talent Shoes Trading Center

Business environment for Talent Shoes Trading Center (Kf@$t%
Z 5L, a 10-storey commercial and office complex located
in Liwan District, Guangzhou, has been adversely affected by
industrial shift, trade tension between the China and the US,
slowdown of the domestic economy as well as the Pandemic
and strict government control policies. Our tenants and staff in
general experienced difficulty in their business operation and
management, resulting in higher lost of office tenants in the
second half of the year. In addition to the current offer of short-
term rental concessions, we will optimize rental and customer
mix in 2022.
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Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project

During the year, residential units of the middle to upper floors
in the last block of Forest Hills, a project namely Linhe Cun
Redevelopment Project developed jointly with Sun Hung Kai
Properties Group and located in the CBD of Tianhe District in
Guangzhou, near Guangzhou East Railway station, were sold
out. Only a few hundred parking spaces remain to be sold. The
project has accumulated a large amount of bank deposits and
the Group will negotiate to expedite cash return from the joint
venture company.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, on behalf of our board of directors, | would
like to take this opportunity to thank all of our shareholders,
clients, financing and business partners for their trust and
support and our staff for their substantial contribution due to
their hard work and dedication.

Zhang Gao Bin
Chairman and Executive Director
29 April 2022

HMARWESERRQTE 2021F F#H

..-"'r’.'..d'"‘___‘-""--.\_ ;

MMNERER

AEBENNBEMESE  UREMNXAER
FE PO AR AT M KB R A 2 AR E IR
B H(EMH) K& —ROPEEEEEL -
NEFRERE - BERRKRTHBMEELFE -
JHB Y ERERITER - AEESHE MR
BERRESREENENREEE -

&)

RE AABUEEEAREFTERORMMA
BER - -BF  BENEBBHEAKE—H
AREEERF - R TTEH 288 TR
ERBEAMENERER -

REE
TEFHNTEF
—E-—HF#MA-+hH



BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

OVERVIEW

The principal activity of Talent Property Group Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. On 10 December 2010, the
Company completed the acquisition of Talent Central Limited
from Talent Trend Holdings Limited (“Talent Trend”) which,
through its subsidiaries, holds interests in various real estate
projects in the PRC (the “Previous Acquisition”). The Group
currently engages in the business of (i) real estate development,

(i) property investment and (iii) property management in the PRC.

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a
revenue and gross profit of RMB344.0 million and RMB133.9
million, respectively, as compared to a revenue and gross profit
of RMB348.2 million and RMB166.9 million, respectively, for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year, a revenue of RMB261.2 million (2020: RMB182.7
million) was recorded from the delivery and sales of residential
units and villas of Xintian Banshan with a gross floor area (“GFA”)
of approximately 3,800 square meters (“sgm”) (2020: 3,100
sgm). A revenue of RMB31.7 million with a GFA of approximately
3,900 sgm was recognized upon the commencement of delivery
of office units of our Yangzhou Intelligence Living City during
the year. Revenue from sales of other properties was RMB23.7
million (2020: RMB140.3 million), which mainly made up of sales
of villas of South Lake Village Phase 1 and car parking spaces.

Rental income and properties management fee income of
RMB14.7 million (2020: RMB13.4 million) and RMB4.1 million
(2020: RMB3.7 million),
Talent Shoes Trading Center. Whereas rental income and

respectively, were recorded from our

properties management fee generated from other properties of
the Group was RMB8.6 million in total (2020: RMB8.1 million).

After taking into account the costs from Previous Acquisition,
subsequent development cost, the net provision for impairment
loss as well as our price adjusting strategies and changes in
revenue mix, gross profit and overall gross profit margin reduced
to RMB133.9 million and 38.9% (2020: RMB166.9 million and
gross profit margin of 47.9%), respectively.
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DISTRIBUTION COSTS, ADMINISTRATIVE
AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Distribution costs of RMB15.8 million were recorded in 2021 as
compared to RMB20.8 million in 2020.

The Group stayed cautious on cost control. Before taking in
the account of provision as mentioned below, administrative
expenses (included impairment loss of trade receivables)
of RMB44.4 million (2020: RMB46.1 million) was recorded.
Construction progress of our projects in Xuzhou and Yangzhou
were affected and delayed by various quarantine restrictions
when new cases of COVID-19 were found there. Provision
for compensation of late delivery of presold properties units
amounted RMB15.0 million (2020: Nil) had been made in
accordance with the terms of relevant pre-sales documents and
re-scheduled delivery date in second quarter of 2022.

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

The Group entered into an equity transfer agreement with
the local government to sell its entire 90% equity interest in a
commercial project located in Shatou Town of Yangzhou City in
late 2020. The equity transfer was completed during the year
and a gain of RMB28.8 million was recorded.

GAIN ON LOSING CONTROL OF A
SUBSIDIARY

The Group applied voluntary winding up for a fully owned
subsidiary of the Company, Guangzhou Huangpu Caming Real
Estate Development Limited (“Caming”), according to applicable
articles of Company Law of the PRC. Upon completion of
disposal of remaining assets of Caming, a net gain after tax of
RMB8.6 million would be recorded.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

SHARE OF RESULT OF AN ASSOCIATE

The Linhe Cun Rebuilding project is an old village redevelopment
project located in the CBD of Tianhe District in Guangzhou and
it is adjacent to the Guangzhou East Railway station. The project
is carried out by an associate which is 30% and 70% owned
by the Group and Sun Hung Kai Properties Group, respectively.
Development of the project was completed. All the remaining
residential units were substantially sold and delivered during
the year. After taking into account the costs from Previous
Acquisition, which is re-calculated to reflect the remaining
underlying assets available for sale, and tax provision, the Group
recorded a share of profit of RMB129.7 million (2020: RMB38.6
million).

FAIR VALUE CHANGES ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

During the year, the deepened Sino-US political friction and
control measures on recurrent outbreak of new cases of the
Pandemic in PRC and overseas placed pressure on local
economy as well as foreign trade. In view of weak rental market
of specialty market in Guangzhou, we continued offer short term
rental concession to retain tenants in our Talent Shoes Trading
Center. Fair value deficits of RMB12.0 million (2020: RMB45.9
million) were recorded, which were mainly from our Talent Shoes
Trading Center, by reference to revaluation by the Company’s
independent property valuer.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Amid flattering of economic growth, recurrent outbreak of
Pandemic, tighten measures against properties market in-force,
the sales of office units of our commercial logistic projects in
Yangzhou Intelligence Living City and Xuzhou Intelligent Industrial
Town were still disappointing. On the other hand, the sales of
shop units in the Xuzhou project were benefited from the tradition
of local citizens earning a living in commercial workshops.

After consideration of our current pre-sales record, development
progress, future marketing strategies, impairment losses provided
in previous years as well as the valuation by the independent
property valuer, reversal of impairment loss totaling RMB12.0
million (2020: provision of impairment loss RMB168.0 million)
was made to the logistic projects under development.
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FINANCE COST

Finance costs (before capitalisation) reduced to RMB65.1
million (2020: RMB89.1 million) during the year upon continual
repayment of various loans.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

During the year, income tax expense totalling RMB33.2 million
was recorded (2020: RMB74.0 million).

Before completion of cancellation of a dormant and fully owned
subsidiary, Guangzhou Kinyang Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd., a tax clearance was obtained from the tax bureau.
It upheld and confirmed that a lower assessment rate of land
appreciation tax was applicable to the properties project, which
was developed and sold-out in previous years, rather than the
standard progressive rate as provided by the Group previously. A
reversal was therefore recorded.

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

Given the reduction of provision for impairment losses and
fair value changes on properties projects, increased share of
result of an associate, gain on disposal of a subsidiary, a profit
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB164.0 million was
recorded instead of a loss of RMB100.9 million in 2020.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following content lists out the key risks and uncertainties
facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be
other risks and uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined
below.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Market Risk

The Group’s assets are predominantly in the form of land use
rights, land under development, properties under development,
properties held for sale and investment properties. In the event of
a severe downturn in the property market as well as the outbreak
of Pandemic in Guangzhou and other parts of Mainland China,
these assets may not be readily realised. The Group closely
monitored market condition and formulated selling plan from
time to time and diversified investment to difference sectors and
geographic locations. A relatively low gearing ratio is maintained
to accommodate such risks.

Operational Risk

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to property development and property related
businesses. Default on the part of its buyers, tenants, sub-
tenants, contractors and strategic business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and
systems or other external factors may have various levels of
negative impact on the results of the Group’s operations. The
Group has its internal control system and had experienced staffs
in different business functions to tackle and minimize operational
risks.

Risk pertaining to the property leasing and sub-
leasing

The rental rates and the occupancy rates will depend on various
factors, including but not limited to, prevailing supply and
demand conditions, economic conditions as well as the quality of
the properties. The Group currently carries out various marketing
activities and refurbish relevant properties to tackle the risks.

PROSPECT

Looking forward into 2022, the gradual withdrawal of quantitative
easing, Sino-US relations, and the Russia-Ukraine war are
among the major uncertainties affecting global economic stability.
In China, it is expected that the general tone as to the regulatory
control of the real estate industry will remain unchange. The
recurrence of Pandemic will continue to exert pressure on
the economy and people’s livelihood. Therefore, the business
environment of the real estate market remains challenging. The
Group and its management will continue to reduce inventories,
maintain liquidity, tightly control operating costs, and act
prudently while grasping any attractive opportunities to further
drive the Group’s future growth.
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PORTFOLIO OF PROPERTIES Y ES R
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s properties and projectson R-ZTE-_—F+-_A=+—H KEBEHNIRA
hand are shown in the table below: MERIBEEEINTRK :
Investment properties REYE
Gross floor Percentage
Lease term area (sq.m.) interest
Project and address Purpose of land WEEME EREIL
HE Rithit Jizkes T EESHR (FF3K) %
A 10-storey commercial building built over a Commercial Medium 22,5626* 100%
basement of 3 levels, mixed commercial and office 72 H Hj
building with car parking spaces.
No. 18 Zhan Xi Road, Liwan District, Guangzhou
City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC
(“Talent Shoes Trading Center”)
Fh B BR A B N T 7 R Ik PR K 1 85
—ERR=EME FRERERBAGEEER
HHEBEAZI0ESHEET
(I RBREEXERSFL])
Commercial units of Shangyu Garden, Commercial Medium 2,198 100%

No. 45 Tianhe Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou g% HHR
City, Guangdong Province,

the PRC (“Shangyu Garden”)

FP B BR A B M TR RO [ KO B 4555

FEER ([ LBEE])) cHRAEM

e Being gross floor area of property excluding the car parking * B mBEEEE (TREFEM) -

spaces.
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Properties under development BREPY X

Planned

Saleable

GFA*
Site area (sq.m.) Percentage Expected
(sq.m.) srEIT$5E  interest % Stage of completion

Project and address R EE BEEEE ##% completion date
HE Rtk (EFK) (FF73K) BokE% ZREE I A
Xintian Banshan 118,102 Approximate 100% Under 2022
South Lake Village Phase Il for Zone E development —ZE-=
Tonghe Road, Baiyun District, El%#915,000 fi 2
Guangzhou City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC (“Xintian Banshan”)
TR
OIS — &
P ER A BN T AR R R
(MR 1)
Yangzhou Intelligence 81,186 Approximate 100% Under 2Q 2022
Living City #786,000** development —E=-=
A project to the south of Kaifa FE e FFE

East Road and east of Jiangdu
South Road, Yangzhou, Jiangsu
Province,

the PRC

BMNE B EE

BT %8 15 N T 5 25 R B

UAR BT #B R B IAR M IE B
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Planned
Saleable
GFA*
Site area (sg.m.) Percentage Expected
(sq.m.) sHEITE5E  interest % Stage of completion
Project and address B mE B EME % completion date
HE Ritbit (FFHXK) (FFHXK) Bokk% ZTHRABE I A
Xuzhou Intelligence 101,904 Approximate 100%  Under 2Q 2022
Industry Town #3104,000* development .-
A project to the south of Guozhuang B2t FoEE

Road and

North of Longhai Railway,
Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC
RINEBERE/NE
BT & & IR M T

2B PR B& DA B Bk B Vg 8 B
PSin:op=Y=

It excludes area for basement, car parking spaces, units delivered  * TREHE - FEMN EXFMFREBRITHERN
and completed for delivery. B o

>k

It represents saleable area in zone A which excludes floor area of ** EARRABMAJHEEEE  THEEEZEERE

34,000 sgm for basement, carparking spaces, etc. Zone B has a 34,000 F KR ZHE ~ (FEE - BERMBE
total floor area of 91,000 sgm including 31,000 sqm as basement. M5 A91,000F 752K » B 1E31,000F 5 K
The project has to retain floor area of 89,000 sgm as owner’s ROHDJEE o 3ZTH B ZA{R ¥ 89,000 KHEEH
occupation/investment. BIEBBAMRA REAR -

# It excludes floor area of approximately 27,400 sgm for owner’s  * TREREAMEA R E 27,400 5 K
occupation/investment. R -
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Completed properties held for sale FELHEZE B T YE
Gross floor Percentage
area (sq.m.) interest %
Project and address WBREMBE ER
HE Rtk (F7HXK) BO %
(Note)
(K1az)
Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project Approximate 30%
Tianhe District, 43300
Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province,
the PRC
MM ERIER
H B SR A BN T ROA &
Residential units in Zone B and D of Approximate 100%
Xintian Banshan #715,500
FR¥ILUBRDETEEN
Residential units of Approximate 100%
South Lake Village Phase |, Tonghe Road, #7700
Baiyun District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
R
PEEREBMT
SR
AL E — A
ZIEFEEN
Car parking spaces of Xintian Banshan, Dongming Xuan, N/A 100%
Tianlun Garden, Shangyu Garden and Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project TiE A

(VRS
FR¥L - REH - XfBEE - LBEEERMNMNERZER ZFHEA
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2021 were
approximately RMB4,220.7 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB4,266.7 million) which were financed by the
total equity and total liabilities of approximately RMB1,708.6
million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB1,597.6 million)
and approximately RMB2,512.1 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB2,669.1 million) respectively.

The directors consider the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its operations and financial resources for financing
future investment opportunities.

The Group borrowings were all denominated in Renminbi. Bank
balances and cash were mainly denominated in Renminbi. As at
31 December 2021, there were no outstanding forward contracts
in foreign currency committed by the Group that might involve it
in significant foreign exchange risks and exposures.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio then
computed as total liabilities over total assets was approximately
59.5% (31 December 2020: 62.6%). As at 31 December 2021,
bank borrowings amounted to RMB277.2 million (31 December
2020: RMB312.9 million) carry variable interest rate of 110.6%
(31 December 2020: 70.6% to 110.6%) multiply by the People’s
Bank of China 5 years loan base interest rate or plus 0.55%
inflated rate. Other borrowings amounted to RMB285.5 million
(31 December 2020: RMB431.6 million) carry fixed rate with
a range from 10.5% to 11.8% (31 December 2020: 9.5%
to 11.8%) per annum and no amount (31 December 2020:
RMB64.7 million) were interest free.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The revenue and the cost of goods sold and of service of the
Group are mainly denominated in Renminbi. Therefore, the Group
is not exposed to any other material foreign currency exchange
risk. An average rate and a closing rate of HK$1.20610:
RMB1 and HK$1.22356: RMB1, respectively, were applied on
consolidation of the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021. No hedging measure has been implemented by
the Group.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, an investment property and completed
properties held for sale of the Group amounted approximately
RMB552.0 million (31 December 2020: RMB563 million) and
RMB205.5 million (31 December 2020: RMB204.6 million)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities. Completed
properties held for sale, properties under development and
deposit with the approximate value of RMB153.7 million (31
December 2020: RMB323.6 million), RMB184.7 million (31
December 2020: RMB370.5 million) and RMB3.4 million (31
December 2020: RMB3.4 million) respectively were pledged to
secure other borrowings.

NUMBERS AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 213
(31 December 2020: 216) employees, with about 208 in
the Mainland China and 5 in Hong Kong. All employees are
remunerated based on industry practice and in accordance with
prevailing labor law. In Hong Kong, apart from basic salary, staff
benefits including medical insurance, performance related bonus,
and mandatory provident fund would be provided by the Group.

The adoption of a new share option scheme was approved by
the shareholders meeting held on 20 May 2013. No new share
options were granted during the current year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability from office
throughout the property portfolio. As a responsible corporation,
the Group strives to ensure minimal environmental impacts
by carefully managing its energy consumption, water usage,
property design and waste production. In addition, we engaged
construction contractors with relevant licenses that was granted
by government authorities encompass environmental protection
and work safety. The Group has closely monitored the project at
every stage to ensure the project development and construction
process are in compliance with environmental protection and
safety laws and regulations, and would require construction
contractors to immediately resolve any defect or non-compliance,
where necessary. In addition, the Group strives to minimize the
environmental impact by saving electricity and encouraging
recycle of office supplies and other materials. For further details,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in mainland China while the Company itself is listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The Group would make
professional judgement and seek professional legal advice from
its legal department and, where necessary, legal advisers to
ensure transactions and businesses to be performed by the
Group are in compliance with the applicable laws, regulations

and local industry practices in all material aspects.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that the Directors, senior management and
employees are instrumental to the success of the Group and that
their industry knowledge and understanding of the market will
enable the Group to maintain the competitiveness in the market.
Therefore, the Group offered competitive remuneration package
to relevant staff. In addition, a Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the Company on 20 May 20183. At appropriate time,
option would be granted for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who can contribute to the

success of the Group’s operations.

The Group maintains good relationship with existing and potential
customers to understand the market trends that would enable
the Group to adjust its operating and marketing strategies timely,
which are crucial to the development and success of the Group.

The Group maintains a solid and steady relationship with major
contractors to ensure product quality and progress on-schedule.
The Group works and closely monitors daily construction work of
its contractors and settled their work done timely.

The Group places effort to build up and maintain good
relationships with various commercial banks and financial
institutions as the businesses of the Group are capital intensive
nature and require on-going funding to maintain continuous
growth.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND FINANCIAL
GUARANTEE

Details of the capital commitment and financial guarantee are set
out in note 36 and 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT <>

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Gao Bin - aged 42, is the Chairman of the board
of directors of the Company and the President of the Group.
Mr. Zhang is responsible for the overall strategic development,
general management, human resources and the business
operation of the Group. Mr. Zhang obtained his bachelor degree
in business administration from the University of Greenwich, the
United Kingdom. He has over ten years of experience in the
property development industry. Mr. Zhang joined the Board in
December 2016.

Mr. LUO Zhangguan — aged 37, is the executive director of the
Company as well as the general manager of finance of the PRC
group companies, responsible for business development and
daily management of finance department. Mr. Luo graduated
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics and obtained a
bachelor degree in Economics with major in Finance (International
Finance). Mr. Luo joined department of business development of
Guangzhou branch of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
in 2007 and served as its credit analyst, customer service
manager and department head of SME banking, successively.
Before joining the Company, he has served as the Sub-Branch
Manager of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Guangzhou
Panyu sub-branch since 2012. Mr. Luo is the cousin of Mr.
Zhang Gao Bin. Mr. Luo joined the Group in April 2015.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LO Wai Hung - aged 62, obtained a bachelor degree in
Commerce from James Cook University of North Queensland,
Australia. Mr. Lo is an associate member of Chartered
Accountants in Australia and New Zealand and a fellow member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo
is an independent non-executive director of Shandong Weigao
Group Medical Polymer Company Limited (stock code: 1066)*,
C Cheng Holdings Limited (stock code: 1486), Tibet Water
Resources Limited (stock code: 1115) since 28 September 2021,
China New Town Development Company Limited (stock code:
1278) since 30 December 2021. Mr. Lo is also a non executive
director of SY Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as Sheng
Ye Capital Limited) (stock code: 6069) since 10 December 2021.
Mr. Lo was an independent non-executive director of Lerthai
Group Limited (formerly known as LT Commercial Real Estate
Limited) (stock code: 112) during March 2017 to November
2018. All the aforementioned companies are listed on Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lo
was also an independent director of China Merchant Property
Development Co. Ltd. Since 2011 and the shares of which were
ceased from listing on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 30
December 2015. Mr. Lo joined the Group in February 2011.

(*On 22 April 2022, Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited announced that Mr. Lo had tendered his resignation as an
independent non-executive director of that company with effect from the
conclusion of its annual general meeting to be held on 6 June 2022.)

Mr. MAK Yiu Tong - aged 63, graduated from the China
University of Political Science and Law with a bachelor of law
degree in 1998. Mr. Mak has extensive experience in litigation and
corporate matters. At present, he is legal executive of Chiu, Szeto
& Cheng, Soalicitors, a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. Mr. Mak has
been working in the legal industry for over 30 years. Mr. Mak is
an independent non-executive director of Hao Tian International
Constructions Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341), and
Aceso Life Science Group Limited (stock code: 474) since 12 July
2021. All the aforementioned companies are listed on Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Mak joined the
Group in December 2015.
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Mr. FOK Chi Tat Michael - aged 48, graduated from University
of Toronto with Bachelor of Commerce and received his Master
of Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and is a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Fok has over 20 years of extensive experience
in auditing, corporate finance and investment banking focusing
on IPO sponsorship, mergers and acquisitions, fund raising and
corporate restructuring. At present, Mr. Fok is the co-founder
and managing director of Maxa Capital Limited. Mr. Fok served
as the managing director and deputy head of investment banking
department in Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited and
was the director of Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited. Mr.
Fok joined the Group in August 2019.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEE Wai Kuen - aged 48, is the Company Secretary
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is responsible
for execution, supervision and advisory of financial reporting,
internal control, reorganisation, corporate governance and
company secretarial matters of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a
bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lee had worked in an international firm of certified public
accountants and was the financial controller and company
secretary of TeleEye Holdings Ltd. (now known as CircuTech
International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8051), the finance
manager and company secretary of ePRO Ltd. (how known as
Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8086),
the financial controller of WLS Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 8021)
and deputy financial officer and company secretary of MOBI
Development Co., Ltd. (stock code: 947), during the periods
from May 2004 to June 2005, July 2005 to January 2006,
January 2006 to August 2007 and August 2007 to May 2011,
respectively, all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lee joined the Group in May 2011.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance
in the interests of shareholders and devotes effort to identifying
and formalising best practices. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Company has applied the principles and the
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and has complied with the same.

THE BOARD

To protect and enhance shareholder value, the Board acts with
integrity and due care for the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The Board is collectively responsible for
leadership and for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. Leading the Group in
a responsible and effective manner, the Board adopts formal
terms of reference which detail its functions and responsibilities,
including, but not limited to, ensuring competent management,
approving objectives, strategies and business plans and
monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of affairs.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy and
corporate development and ensuring the business operations are
properly monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all
policy matters of the Group and material transactions. The Board
delegates the day-to-day operations to general managers and
department heads who are responsible for different aspects of
the operations of the Group.
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The attendance of individual Directors at meetings of the HE-_Z-_—F+_-_A=1+—HILHMEEE
Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2021, fEARIEERNAATE@HZ I EFERAOT :
was as follows:

Number of attendance*/meetings held in 2021
HERE R-B--F8T283
Annual
General
Audit Remuneration = Nomination Meeting
The Board Committee Committee Committee [

Ex® EHREEE FHZEEE 2 REEEE  BFAS

Executive Directors #l{TES

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (Chairman of the Board)** 5/5 N/A 11 11 0/1
RemBLAE (EFRFE)™ TEA
Mr. Luo Zhangguan** 5/5 N/A 1/1 11 1/1
BEWRE i

Independent Non-executive Directors

VHHTES

Mr. Lo Wai Hung** 5/5 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1

Bfal s

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong** 5/5 3/3 11 1/1 11

e

Mr. Fok Chi Tat*™* 5/5 3/3 11 11 11

EREkse

E The Directors can attend meetings in person, by phone or  * BEEURGHFE  IRBEARRCEBER
through other means of electronic communication in accordance MEIABFESUNEMETFBAARALZ2 NG
with the Company’s Articles of Association. %o

o During the year ended 31 December 2021, each of these  ** %i?:_?_*ETL_ A=+—BLtFE -
Directors participated in seminars and conferences as well EE2HEImehes  HEHRS EﬁFiJ
as reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the ﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁéﬁ,ﬁ W‘&“%% EEN R E MK
economy, general business, real estate or Directors’ duties and BITESRES - ALENFESNESS
responsibilities, etc. The Group also continuously updates the TR EREMERES R TN TR
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules & o

and other applicable regulatory requirements.
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Currently, the Company does not appoint chief executive officer.
In view of the operation of the Group, the Board believes that the
present structure of the Board will provide a strong leadership
for the Group to implement prompt decisions and to formulate
efficient strategies, which is for benefits of the Group.

Moreover, the day-to-day operation of the Group’s businesses
are shared among those executive directors and the
management of the Company. Therefore, there should be
a clear division of the responsibilities at the board level to
ensure a balance of power and authority, so that power is not
concentrated in any one individual.

Together with a balanced of skill and experience for the
business of the Group, a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive director of the Board shall exercise
effective independent judgment. Currently, the Board comprises
of five directors, of which two are executive directors, namely Mr.
Zhang Gao Bin (“Mr. Zhang”) and Mr. Luo Zhangguan (“Mr. Luo”)
and three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lo
Wai Hung (“Mr. Lo”), Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (“Mr. Mak”) and Mr. Fok
Chi Tat Michael (“Mr. Fok”)).

As at 31 December 2021, all the independent non-executive
directors were appointed for an initial term of two years which
is automatically renewable for successive term of one year upon
the expiry of the said term and subject to retirement and re-
election in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company. In
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, at each annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the directors shall
retire from office by rotation. The Board considers that sufficient
measures will be taken to ensure the corporate governance
practices of the Company are not less exacting than those in the
Code A4.1 and 4.2.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

The management is obliged to supply the Board with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the members to
make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities. Each director has separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to acquire more
information and to make further enquiries if necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Board and
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are established
with defined written terms of reference which are available to
shareholders on the Company’s website. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee of the Company had been established
by the Board with written terms of reference. The nomination
committee comprises two executive directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
is chaired by Mr. Zhang. The principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include, but are not limited to, review and making
recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board; making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes; identify, selection or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors and relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. Pursuant to the
board diversity policy, the Nomination Committee will review
annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.
A number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, industry experience,
technical and professional experience, skills and knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a director of
the Company, would be considered to ensure that the Board
maintains a balanced diverse profile.
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The Company has also adopted a nomination policy, setting out
the approach for nominating and appointing a director either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the
existing Board subject to the Bye-Law of the Company. Selection
of candidates will be based on criteria including character,
qualifications, any potential contributions that the candidate
can bring to the Board and its diversity and the candidate’s
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge his/
her duties. Upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of a
new director and respective biographical information and details
of the candidate by any members of Nomination Committee, the
Nomination Committee will evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to assess
the independence of the retiring independent non-executive
directors, recommend the re-appointment of directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and appointment of a
director, update and review the Board Diversity Policy to ensure
that it aligns with the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee of the Company had been
established by the Board with written terms of reference. The
remuneration committee comprises two executive directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee is chaired by Mr. Fok. The remuneration committee
is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its objective
of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management
of the highest caliber and experience needed to develop the
Group’s business successfully. The remuneration committee is
also responsible for the development of a fair and transparent
procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management of the Company and for
recommendation to their remuneration packages. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee met
once to review the above matters.

All employees are remunerated based on industry practice and
in accordance with the prevailing labour law. In Hong Kong,
apart from basic salary, staff benefits include medical insurance,
performance related bonus and mandatory provident fund would
be provided by the Group.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors (the “Audit Committee”) and reports to the board of
directors. A written terms of reference had been established.
The committee members performed their duties therein which
includes duties set out in the code provision C.3.3 (a) to (n)
of the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
held three meetings in 2021 and reviewed the Group’s annual
results for 2020 and interim results for 2021; reviewed the audit
plans and findings of the external independent auditor; made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor and its remuneration; and reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems and financial matters
pursuant to its terms of reference. The Audit Committee meets
the external independent auditor at least once a year to discuss
any areas of concerns during the audits without the presence of
the management. The annual report for the year ended 2021 of
the Company has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group. In preparing the
financial statements, the Board has adopted Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants that are relevant to its operations.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board has
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fees paid/payable
to the auditor of the Company in respect of the audit services
and non audit services in 2021 were amounted to approximately
RMBO.7 million and RMBO0.3 million respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is responsible for determining and reviewing the
policies and performance for the corporate governance for the
Group. During the year, the management of the Company from
time to time reported to the Board for their review on various
policies and practices about corporate governance of the
Company, which included training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, Company’s
policies and practices on compliance of legal & regulatory
requirements and conduct of employees. In addition, the
corporate governance report together with other content of the
annual report was circulated for review and approval by the
Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems in order
to safeguard the interest of the Group and the Shareholders. The
Board conducted review and assessment of the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and procedures during the financial year ended 31 December
2021 by way of discussions among themselves and with the
management of the Group, members of the Audit Committee
and the external independent auditor. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

During the financial year, an external consultant has been
engaged to maintain the internal audit function for the Group to
assist the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The external consultant discussed with the executive
directors and senior management of the Group to identify key
business risks across the Group, and has adopted a risk-
based approach in developing the annual internal audit plan
with a focus on higher risk areas. Internal audit review was then
conducted in accordance with the annual internal audit plan. All
findings and recommendations on internal control deficiencies
for the year had been communicated to the management who
are required to establish remedial plans to correct those internal
control deficiencies and implement agreed action plans within
a reasonable time period. The Board and the Audit Committee
had reviewed the risk assessment results, internal audit planning
and internal audit reports submitted by the external consultant.
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the
Chairman and/or the executive directors on governance matters
and should also facilitate induction and professional development
of Directors. Details of the Company’s company secretary are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this report.

The Company Secretary took not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in the year ended 31 December 2021 as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may distribute dividends by way of cash or by
other means that the Board considers appropriate. Any proposed
distribution of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Board and, where applicable, the approval of the Shareholders.
The Board will consider various factors before declaring or
recommending any payment of dividends. These factors include
the results of operation of the business of the Group, the retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group, the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance, the general business conditions and
strategies, the Group’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans, the general economic conditions and
the future prospects of the business of the Group, shareholders’
interests, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividend and other internal or external factors that the Board
deems appropriate. The Board will review, from time to time, and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update
and/or modify the dividend policy of the Company at any time.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDER
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes in regular and timely communication
with shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders
understand its business better and the way the Company
operates. To promote effective communication with the public at
large, the Company maintains a website (http://www.760hk.com)
on which comprehensive information about the Company’s major
businesses, financial information and announcements, annual
and interim reports and shareholders circulars are being made
available.

All shareholders of the Company are given at least 20 clear
business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual
general meeting. According to the Listing Rules, the Board will
conduct voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting by
vote.

SHAREHOLDER'’S RIGHT

Shareholder’s right to convene special general
meeting and procedures for putting forward
proposals at shareholders’ meeting

By-law 58 of the Company’s bye-laws provides that any
shareholder holding not less than 10% of the paid-up capital
of the Company can deposit a requisition to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board.

The Requisitionist(s) shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the Requisitionist(s) themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, as amended from time to time.
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Putting enquiries to the Board

Information of the Group are communicated to the shareholders
mainly through general meetings, including annual general
meetings, financial reports, and its corporate communications
and other corporate publications on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. Any such questions shall

be first directed to the Company Secretary of the Company:

By post

Unit A704

3rd Floor, Tower A, New Mandarin Plaza
No. 14 Science Museum Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East

Hong Kong

By email
ir@760hk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the
shareholders’ meetings.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for directors’ securities
transactions. Having make specific enquiries of all directors
of the Company, they have confirmed that they complied with
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
accounting period covered by the annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional document of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE HERERBWS

OVERVIEW

Pursuant to Appendix 27 (the “Guide”) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Talent Property Group Limited
(the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group” or “we”), hereby presents this Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Report (“Report”) to disclose ESG
related matters that are relevant to the Group’s business and
have material impacts on the environment and society for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (the “reporting period”). Unless
otherwise stated, the reporting period is from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2021.

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

To fulfil our corporate responsibility, the Group has established
ESG policies, infrastructure and framework to govern relevant
ESG practices and processes. The Group’s sustainability
governance structure comprises the Board of Directors (the
“Board”), ESG Committee and different line managers within the
Group. Their roles and responsibilities are as follows:

The Board: Directors meet semi-annually with the ESG

Committee and senior management to review and provide
direction on key ESG matters, including:

° appropriateness and effectiveness of ESG governance
structure, strategy, management approach and internal
control system;

° material ESG risks and opportunities, as well as the
Group’s corresponding ESG policies and initiatives; and

° the Group’s performance against ESG-related targets.

In the second Board meeting of the year, the Board also reviews
and approves the disclosure of the Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG Committee: A management-level ESG Committee,
comprising key management personnel of the Group, drives
the development and execution of ESG policies across different
functions, and managing and coordination of ESG efforts. The
ESG Committee reports directly to the Board on ESG issues
and provides updates on latest development in ESG regulatory
requirements.

Line Managers: Managers across different functions and business
lines of the Group executes the established ESG initiatives,
tracks and reports ESG performance to ESG Committee.

ESG Management Approach and Strategy

Our management approach is to run our business in an ethically,
socially and environmentally responsible manner, and to support
and connect with the local communities that we serve. We
primarily focus on emission control and energy efficiency while
maintaining excellent financial returns from business operation.
We also strive to explore viable initiatives to continuously create
value to stakeholders in a sustainable manner. Details of our
assessment of material ESG issues are described in the “Material
ESG lIssues Assessment” section. Foreseeing challenges from
climate-related risks such as typhoon, heavy rainstorm and
flooding in the regions where our major property development
sites are located, the Group has implemented a range of
preventive measures to mitigate the impact to our business and
stakeholders.

Review of Progress made against ESG-related goals
and Targets

The Board regularly evaluates the Group’s progress on our
sustainability targets, which are expected to be achieved in five
years.
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B HEREARE

MATERIAL ESG ISSUES ASSESSMENT ERRE - HERERBEMNTMG
Stakeholder Engagement BEhESH

The Group has proactively engaged with key stakeholders to ZANEEEBEHRE T EHMHEER - U THRESY
understand their needs, opinions and expectations in key ESG BIE - @ REATEZENEE - EALH

issues, and has maintained continuous communication with them 2 - W% i@ A T 228 B S (RIS 588 R
through the below channels:

External Internal
SMER R EB
Shareholders &
Residents Investors Community & Media Employees
3 RERRREH HERESR 3=
e Regular visits e Annual general meetings ¢ Official website e Direct communication
o THIFTIR s BREFAE o B o EEAM
e Complaint hotlines e Annual, interim and ESG e Press releases e Meetings
o EIFELZ reports o ET o B
e Resident property o FE - FHILAKIRIE - 4L e Media enquiries e Emails and hotlines
management gREBRE o IHEEE o TFIHLHR
o FEMEEE e Circulars and press e Training programs
releases o EFIFRIE

o BEKFER
e \Website of HKEX
o HKEX#uk

Government & Suppliers & Charitable

Regulators Business Partners Organisations

BRREEEN MERREHBHE RERE

e General liaison e Meetings e Corporate volunteering

o —REE ° B o BERET

e  Communication on e Supplier review and e Collaborative projects
policies evaluation o S1EMIER

s HEER o HERMELNIME

HMARWESERRQTE 2021F F#H




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT O

Strategic Focus Among Priority ESG Issues

The Group has assessed the materiality of key ESG issues
associated with the business and operations of the Group and
prioritized these issues according to their importance to the
business and relevant stakeholders during the reporting period.

RE - HERERHRE

HBEMRE  AREEHEEAREXBRE
W%%E RE HEREREENEK
- UREZSZEHEHLBBRNENE
EfﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁiiﬁiﬁﬁokFL c ABEBEATERR

i"ﬁ CHEREARBERETHNRBER

The below key ESG issues are included in this Report. HEREREAE

Material ESG Topics
BEARE #HERERTE

Environmental
RiB

Climate Risks

SRR

Climate Adaptation

RIREEN

Energy and Carbon Management
BEIR R ik B 1R

Exhaust and Greenhouse Gas Emissions
BERFOm E R BBHE

Resource Use Efficiency

BIREAME

Labour Practices & Human Rights
BEER LA

Operational Health and Safety
EERREAZE

Supply Chain Management
HEEERE

Customer Wellness, Health and Safety
BB BRELR

Community Wellness

B 4B AL

Employment

(=3

Business Operation
EBeEE
Community

HE

S G2l (S O O ([ U GO O

o o

*

1 being the most important.
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REPORTING BOUNDARY W EE

To determine the scope and content of disclosure in this Report, Egiﬁ&im#&%%ﬁ&m% CEEgER
the Board has assessed the materiality of the Group’s operations 8175 « 24 E « $HEE N AEF S IR RS
in terms of key factors such as financial, total assets, sales HEF'%’]@ S EEE SHBRARTHASEE S
volume, and the number of construction sites of each location of — EBH)E K% °

the Group during the reporting period.

Based on the assessment result, the Group has decided to EHRI AR - AEED AT 8 A &= i)
include in this Report ESG matters that are relevant to property HIFTEATIHIMERE  ERERLEIBEKER
investment, development and management businesses of all ZIB¥E - H @ REAETEMARGE - BN
companies controlled by the Group. The ESG performance of KXEMEZXRBR AT (KNREBEIZFHIO%ER
Guangzhou Xintian Properties Development Limited, an associate #z M2 A F)) WIEE H @ REBRIET
of the Group with effective interest of 30%, is not included in this  fEET A ZN R o 245 HA 7 M 3 32 40 A SR &5 &0
Report. No companies are newly added to the reporting scope  ERIAQ 7]

during the reporting period.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES APPLIED Fir e R iz 3k & R Al
Principle The Group’s Application
A rEEZER
Materiality The ESG topics included in this Report have been assessed by the Board and ESG Committee,
according to importance to business and stakeholders.
BAM RHEMHHRE HENELCTECHEFTERE HEMEAZEGRBEURBELFENE

B EEEEITAE -

Quantitative All information in this Report is prepared upon the adherence to the Main Board Listing Rules
Appendix 27 Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide. Methodologies and
assumptions adopted, as well as the sources of conversion factors used for calculation of ESG
Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) are disclosed in this Report.

21 RREMBERDBEER EHRRIMER7IRIE @ REAMEESIRE - IERANTERR
#® o ARGHERE 4@ RERNBRAERIESR ([ARERIER]) MEANEREFIRIRN AR
S -

Consistency There has been no change from the previous reporting periods in the way this Report has been

prepared, nor any other relevant factors which affect a meaningful comparison to previous
reporting periods.

—HE AEENGEEATAEBTRENEALTEESS  TEXEEATREHHETAEERLRNE
A H A EEEE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group strives to minimize adverse environmental

impact by adopting environmental protection practices

over energy consumption, use of resources and waste

production.

A1,

Emissions

The Group has established a mechanism to
collect emission data and evaluate significant
environmental impact brought by its operations.
The Group does not produce any significant
hazardous waste and only has emissions which
are primarily generated from the consumption of
electricity, paper and petrol during its daily sales
and office administration activities. Environmental
Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) in connection
to our property investment, development and
management business during the reporting period
are disclosed below:

B 15

R - HERERWSE
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A1,
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A.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONTINUED) A. RIE @)
A1. Emissions (Continued) A1, HERYD ()
2021 2020
—B--F —T_FTF
Air Pollutants Emissions (Note 1,2)
RSB (BT - 2)
Nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) 5,133 g 5,311 g
gty ([aaetwl) 5,133 % 531125
Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) 131 g 139 g
maty ([matwl) 13125% 13925
Particulate matters (“PM”) 378 g 391 g
Ry ([FERY)) 37827 39115

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

BERE ((AERE ) K

Direct emission of GHG

RERBEEIN

Indirect emission of Carbon dioxide equivalent (“COze”) (Note 3)
—afeimgs ((Z8REE ) MEYER (H:23)

CO2¢e per employee

BEEM_SIkEE

Non-hazardous Waste Produced (Note 4)
FREEMNIEREY (HZ4)

Paper waste disposed at landfills (Note 5)
EEFHIHENRER (#:25)

Waste disposed per employee

B EEEENEY

HMAMEEBERAT 2021 F F#H

N/A (Note 2)

N/A (Note 2)

TBA (KaE2) TEA (Hiz2)
352,167 kg 302,678 kg
352,167AT  302,678R/T
1,693 kg 1,408 kg
1,693 2 T 1,408 A f1

878 kg 871 kg

8781 T 87T1RfT

4 kg 4 kg

ON N
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONTINUED) A. RIE &)
A1. Emissions (Continued) A1, HERWD (&)
Notes: BaE -

The Group does not engage in activities that:

> Consume gaseous fuel;
> Directly generate GHG; or
> Generate hazardous wastes.

Air pollutants emissions are generated from petrol
consumption by the Group’s six private vehicles
that are used for employee transportation.

The Group’s indirect CO2¢ emissions comes from
electricity consumption and disposal of paper
waste in the office and sales locations.

The Group has engaged qualified construction
contractors to manage the property development
projects. Non-hazardous waste produced during
property development activities is collected,
treated and disposed by construction contractors.
These wastes are not directly incurred and
controlled by the Group and are thus excluded
from the Group’s environmental data. In
consideration of limited paper waste volume, the
Group disposes the waste to landfills through the
waste disposal channel managed by the different
buildings’” management service providers.

AEEWELEE
> HFER BB
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONTINUED)

A1l.

Emissions (Continued)

Emissions and waste produced at property
development construction sites are managed
by the construction contractors as stipulated
on the agreements with the contractors. Having
considered the environmental impact of the
contractors’ operations, management has required
the construction contractors to comply with
relevant laws and regulations. There are different
buildings’ management service providers for
managing the waste disposals. Regardless of the
type of waste, we closely monitor our contractors’
performance in collecting, sorting and storing
waste to avoid waste leakage. During the reporting
period, no incidences of non-compliance with
Environmental Protection Law and Regulations
on the Administration of Construction Project
Environmental Protection of the People’s Republic
of China and other relevant laws and regulations
with significant impact on the environment and
natural resources relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes were reported.

For emissions of air pollutants, the emission of NOx,
SOx and PM for the reporting period remained at a
level similar to that in the previous reporting period.
The emission of NOx, SOx and PM for the reporting
period was generally improved by approximately
3% — 6% as compared to the previous period.
Such change was attributed to the Group reduced
usage of vehicles in the reporting period.
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A.

s i e, SR e e

IRIE (&)

A1,

BrE ()

MR RERMIELNBERY
Ko BE) 3R i T A2 R B 4 Bk
BREMBRANHRERE - BEE
EEBEENRRYE  EEE
BEREETRABHETIER
ERIER - TRABTERERE
HEBEEEYRE - ATEE
WEAME AR DEB K
BEREE  DBEREFHEDT
EHRE - AT LEREYRE - ©
BEHRE MEREERB(RE
ARKMBIRIBRELR) RER
HEREREEBIEIN TSR
FEA®R TEEZRIEER
RBHEDN - KB s BE OS2
ARk MIrERENELERH
MERBERRAERBRERT
ENEMBREZERERIER
EHB® -

RERSRYHERME - RWE
HE - A4ty metykiE
KLY BERER | — & BRI AR L -
RBEHHE - A|/LY WAt
MR ERY BB RER L
B 2 493%E6% B B &1L 55
ARAEERN RS HEERER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT <>

R - HERERWSE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONTINUED) A. RIE (@)

A1,

Emissions (Continued)

The indirect emission of greenhouse gases per
employee has increased by 20% from 1,408 kg to
1,693 kg. The increased consumption of electricity
was caused by increased business hours in our
office as compared to the previous reporting period
in view of the COVID-19 pandemic being brought
under control in China.

The total paper waste disposal remained at a level
below 880 kg in both current and prior reporting
periods, which showed that the paper-saving
initiatives implemented by the Group such as use of
eco-friendly paper and two-sided printing remained
effective.

In respect of mitigating the emission and waste
from daily business operation, the Group has
established a target to control the year-on-year
change in emission of greenhouse gas and air
pollutants and waste produced at no more than
20% for the next 5 years, given that there are no
significant changes to business operation and
property projects. It will be achieved by ongoing
monitoring of energy consumption and various eco-
friendly initiatives as described in Section A3. We
will explore further adoption of renewable energy
and other green initiatives for emission control.

A1,

Berkyn (48)
BUEEMEEEEREEERHA
1,408 T H120% %= 1,693 AT °
R R B AICOVID-19R 1B 2 15 3
=H RPN AEHE ERFBE L
—REERE TN - BEE SERE
#hn e

RAHEHE B ERSHE
FEE M) RBE AR B MR TEBBOR
FFAT BRAKEERNEL
PR tE i (B0 A R AR 4R 5R I
EHITH) HEAX -

R EERBEEEENIEN
MEEDME  EREHEEN
MEEELEBERNES A& H
EFEEE  NEHAERE
ZE 5 RV R OA K P EE AR RE D
RARAFOR LT EB
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONTINUED)
A2. Use of Resources

The Group does not engage in resources or energy
intensive business activities. The types of energy
consumed by the Group are mainly electricity and
petrol. Water usage for the Group’s daily sales and
office administration activities is minimal where both
water supply and discharge are solely controlled
by the office building’s property management.
No issues in water sourcing were encountered
during the reporting period. In addition, the Group
does not involve directly in the use/purchase
of packaging materials. Relevant Environmental
KPIs in connection with our business during the
reporting period are disclosed below:

A. EIE ®)

A2,

ARERA
AEEWBREERIGERE S
MRS - NEBFTEEANRE
RBETERE NUM - N
EREEHEMAZETRESA
IKIE D KEEE RS2 /A
MARBYXEEEES - V]
&AM - I A KRR B9 R
AN REBEWEER P RBE
MEEOER/RE - RS
Al - BRI FIEF R H R IR R
RARDUERENT ¢

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Energy Consumption
BEIRUHEAE
Direct energy consumption from petrol fuel consumed 84,675 kWh 90,277 kWh
KB FOBR VR B Z R RE R 84,675 FLEF 90,277 T FLF¥
Indirect energy consumption from electricity purchased 660,131 kWh 566,300 kWh
REPTIESE N REEEIRERE 660,131 TR 566,300 T FL I
Energy consumption per employee 3,581 kWh 3,054 kWh
BhilE B VR RIEF 3,581 F FL B 3,054 F R
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONTINUED)

A2,

Use of Resources (Continued)

The direct energy consumption for the reporting
period slightly decreased by 6% from 90,277 kWh
to 84,675 kWh, which is a result of decreased
petrol consumption due to the aforementioned
reduction in vehicle usage.

Indirect energy consumption in the reporting
period increased by 17% from 566,300 kWh to
660,131 kWh. This increase was contributed by
the increased consumption of electricity due to
increase in business hours.

Management is not aware of any incidences of
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
such as Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Energy Conservation (/1 #ZE AR FEFBEH4I8ERE)
on the use of resources.

In respect of energy efficiency in daily business
operation, based on the analysis on the energy
consumption level in the prior reporting periods,
the Group has established a target to control the
year-on-year change of the electricity and petrol
consumption at no more than 20% for the next 5
years, given that there are no significant changes
to business operation and property projects. It
will be achieved by ongoing monitoring of energy
consumption and various eco-friendly initiatives as
described in Section A3. The Group will continue
to explore further adoption of renewable energy
and other green initiatives for improving energy
efficiency.

R - HERERWSE
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HZEHENBEERRBERR
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (CONTINUED)

A3.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s business has no direct and significant
impacts on the environment and natural resources.
The ESG Committee regularly assesses the
environmental risk exposure of the Group. Should
there be any subsequent changes to the relevant
the ESG
Committee will report such changes to the Board

legislation or the Group’s operation,
and adopt additional measures, if necessary, to
minimize the Group’s impact on the environment
and natural resources.

We have implemented a number of eco-friendly
initiatives to promote efficient use of resources and
energy conservation:

> Switch off lights during lunch hours;

> Set air-conditioning at an optimal
temperature;

> Pre-set the printers to two-sided printing

mode, and post paper-saving reminders
near photocopy machines; and

> Promote reuse and recycle of paper by
placing recycling boxes in the office.

In the future we will continuously adopt the above
or other additional eco-friendly measures with the
aim to maintain a reasonable level of, or further
reduce, the emissions, electricity consumed and
paper waste produced during the operations of
the Group’s property investment and management
business.

HMARWESERRQTE 2021F F#H
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONTINUED)

A4.

Climate Change

We have identified and assessed the impact of
climate-related risks such as typhoon, heavy
rainstorm and flooding in the regions where we
carry out our business. No imminent climate
risks are identified during the reporting period.
Nonetheless, in order to mitigate the above physical
climate risks, we have developed safety and
evacuation policy for typhoon risk and circulated
emergency response plan for the Group for
improving typhoon awareness and preparedness of
our employees and contractors. In the event of a
natural disaster, Employees and contractors would
be notified via timely emails and text messages.
In addition, we also perform regular inspection of
climate-resilient facilities at construction sites such
as drainage and windbreak netting to minimize the
impact of the above climate risks.

We will be actively establishing internal policy and
monitoring any regulatory changes and relevant
industry standards in our major business regions to
better adapt to and manage climate-related risks.
No significant transition risks are identified during
the reporting period.
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RIB - HERERBE

B.

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

B1.

39.4%

M Male

B

Employment

The Group is committed to complying with relevant
labour standards and employment laws and
regulations which are applicable to our business.
The Group has developed comprehensive human
resources policies and guidelines to govern
staff recruitment, compensation, promotion and
dismissal processes, and employees’ working
hours and rest periods. The Group also endeavours
to provide equal opportunities throughout
recruitment and employment and to combat all
forms of discrimination in workplace. During the
reporting period, no incidences of non-compliance
with Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China
and other relevant laws and regulations that have
imposed a significant impact on employment and
labour practices were reported. As at 31 December
2021, the Group has a total of 208 employees and
all of them are employed full-time. Employment
KPIs in connection with our business during the
reporting period are disclosed below:

° Total Workforce

By Gender
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M <30 years old
/NABOBR

Female

7%

30-39 years old
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By Age Group
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B. SOCIAL (CONTINUED)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
B1. Employment (Continued)

o Employee Turnover
The Group highly values the contribution
made by employees along the business
development and recognizes the importance
of employee attraction and retention. A
turnover rate of 23.1% has been reported
during the reporting period.

By Gender
RS
24.4%
M Male Female
B M

By Geographical Location
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5 00%

onne | - -

B.

RIB - HERERBE

HE @
BERLIEE (&)
B1. (B (&)

e [EBEh%x
AEESEEREE YWY
KEEOERARRIR
BINBEREMES M
RIPEER AL XA
23.1% °
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RIE HERERBWS

B. SOCIAL (CONTINUED)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

B2.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe
workplace for its employees in all locations.
The Group also protects employees from
occupational hazards by providing them with
sufficient protective equipment and annual health
check-up. Safety guidelines are stipulated in the
Employee Handbook, which are distributed to all
employees. Employees are encouraged to report
any occupational hazards to the Group. Should
there be any reported hazards, Administration
Department will investigate the cases, report to the
senior management and take remedial actions in
a timely manner. Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group has adopted flexible work arrangement and
distributed masks and sanitizers to all employees.
Employees are required to measure body
temperature and sanitize hands before entering the
workplace every day in order to minimize the risk of
outbreak at workplace.

During the reporting period, the Group was in
compliance with Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Work Safety, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, and other relevant laws
and regulations relating to the provision of a safe
working environment and protection of employees
from occupational hazards which are applicable
to the Group’s business. No work-related injuries
or fatalities were reported in the past three years
including the reporting period, and hence, no lost
days due to work injury were noted.
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RIB - HERERBE

B. SOCIAL (CONTINUED)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

B3.

Development and Training

The Group places great emphasis in developing
our employees and providing both internal and
external staff training to enhance their knowledge
and skills. The Group has developed a Training
Policy to govern training related matters. Each year,
management prepares a Training Budget to allocate
sufficient resources for staff development based
on the results of Training Requirement Survey. Due
to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group did not
organize any internal trainings in both current and
prior reporting periods. However, external trainings
organized by third-party recognised organizations
with approximate 600 training hours were provided
to our employees during the reporting period.
Relevant Development and Training KPIs in
connection with our business during the reporting
period are shown below:

o Distribution of Employees Trained
Gender
4 5
15.9%

M Male
B

Female

7t
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B. SOCIAL (CONTINUED) B.
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
B3. Development and Training (Continued)

. Training Hours ° Il
By Gender By Employee Category

EMUR &2 RESERE S

Senior Management

Female 41 56
SHREEAE M 56

Zit I 532

Male 117

Middle Management
14 M52

40
mmeE A s 119
Operational Employee 34
giaies — 09
Average training hours per employee trained
BXIIEE FHFIIREE
Average training hours per employee trained
M Total training hours 2R 8 TR
HIE IR B
M Total training hours

el LS

L TER
AEBMB DB (PEARKLA

B4. Labour Standards B4.

The Group is committed to complying with Labor

Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
labour standards relevant to the Group’s business.
The Group has established a policy to prohibit child
and forced labour. Management has also taken
reasonable and necessary steps in the recruitment
process to ensure that there are no deviations from
the Group policy and objectives. Employees are
encouraged to report any suspected cases of child
or forced labour at workplace via email. During the
reporting period, there were no reported incidences
of non-compliance with Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other relevant laws and
regulations that have imposed a significant impact
on employment and labour practices.
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B. SOCIAL (CONTINUED) e o)
Operating Practices REBK
B5. Supply Chain Management B5., HERERE
Suppliers who have provided products or services Rt BE ARKS0E &Lk N

with an aggregate value of RMB50 million or
above are considered as our major suppliers. All
the nine major suppliers are located in Mainland
China. The Group has established a contract
policy and corresponding evaluation procedures to
govern the selection of suppliers and construction
contractors. To ensure product and service quality,
and to manage environmental and social risks in
supply chain, the Group only engages suppliers
and construction contractors with licenses that
are granted by relevant regulators or government
authorities. We only engage suppliers who
provide environmental preferable products and
services that fulfill the national requirements of
Environmental Protection Standards issued by the
Ministry of Environmental Protection of China and
Environmental Protection Department of Hong
Kong. Relevant certifications are inspected during
supplier selection. The obligations of suppliers
and contractors with respect to environmental
protection and compliance with relevant safety
laws and regulations are clearly stated in signed
contracts. We also ensure the fair and reasonable
treatment of all suppliers and contractors in our
practices.
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B. SOCIAL (CONTINUED)
Operating Practices (Continued)

Bb5.

B6.

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

We require our suppliers and contractors to
follow the Code of Conduct set out by the Group
to encourage them to comply with all legal
requirements and ethical business practices.
Contractors are required to adhere to applicable
laws and regulations in their operations. They need
to adopt relevant measures to create a healthy,
safe, fair and corruption-free working environment.
The Code also encourages suppliers and service
providers to mitigate negative environmental
impacts and to improve their environmental
performance. Besides, we periodically review and
evaluate the environmental performance of our
major suppliers and assess whether their business
practices impose severe environmental and social
risks to the Group. If any non-compliance or
significant risk has been noticed, the Group would
take immediate action to rectify and enhance
monitoring. If the situation persists, the Group
would consider not to renew further business
contracts with the supplier.

Product Responsibility

The Group recognizes the importance of health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
related to products and services provided by the
Group. The Group has established relevant policies
to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and to fulfil its corporate responsibility
towards the customers.
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B. SOCIAL (CONTINUED) B. #€ (&)
REBEWR (&)
B6. EmgpEIE (&)

Operating Practices (Continued)
B6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

The Group closely monitors the development
projects at every stage to ensure that project
development, construction process and product
quality are in compliance with Construction Law
of the People’s Republic of China and other
applicable laws and regulations, and requires
construction contractors to immediately resolve
any defects or non-compliance incidences, where
necessary. The Group has entered contracts
with construction contractors to obtain their
commitment to carry out necessary operational
and quality assurance activities, and to comply
with regulatory requirements. The Group has also
established property acceptance procedures to
ensure that the properties are ready for delivery to
our customers in pursuant to the sales agreements.
During the reporting period, there are no reported
cases of non-compliance of Construction Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other applicable
laws and regulations, recalls of properties or
significant complaints from customers.
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SOCIAL (CONTINUED)
Protection of intellectual property rights

The Group strictly abides by applicable requirements
stipulated in related intellectual property protection
laws and regulations, such as the Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China and Trademark Law of the
People’s Republic of China. All the software used by the
Group is legally obtained through subscription. Verification
and inspection of software copyrights are conducted
on an ongoing basis by the Group. The Group has
also established a comprehensive intellectual property
management approach for self-developed intellectual
properties for effective protection from infringement.
Additionally, the trademarks of the Group including “Talent
Property”, “¥TKHBE” and “¥7 R =" are registered in
both Hong Kong and China to avoid any infringement.

Consumer data protection and privacy policies

The Group highly recognizes the importance of consumer
data protection by establishing and implementing
various privacy policies. In order to avoid data breach
and manipulation, access to the property contracts with
sensitive consumer data are restricted to authorized
persons only. They are also regularly monitored and
maintained through various data privacy tools.
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SOCIAL (CONTINUED)

Consumer data protection and privacy policies
(Continued)

B7.

Anti-corruption

The Group strives to create a corporate culture
that embraces integrity, honesty and fairness, and
is committed to conducting its business in the
absence of any undue influences. Requirements
and guidelines relating to the prevention of
bribery, extortion and fraud are stipulated in the
Employee Handbook and other relevant ethics-
related internal policies so as to communicate the
Group’s requirements and to provide guidance to
employees in carrying out business and operational
duties. The Employee Handbook and internal
policies are subject to periodic review, and updates
are made, when necessary, to ensure that they
are in line with the latest development of Criminal
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China for Countering
Unfair Competition and other applicable laws and
regulations. To minimize the ESG risks embedded
in our business operations, we maintain stringent
internal control and risk management systems.
Abiding by the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group
has had no incidents of non-compliance to such
Ordinance. Management and staffs follow the anti-
bribery policies of the Group, upholds honesty,
integrity and fairness in all aspects of our business.
We maintain zero tolerance of any form of bribery.
All transactions are required to be documented in
an accurate, complete and timely manner, in order
to maintain a high degree of transparency and to
minimize the risk of bribery in the Group.
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SOCIAL (CONTINUED)
Whistle-blowing mechanism

The Group encourages all internal and external
stakeholders to report misconduct or unethical business
behaviours. Employees and suppliers can file written
reports via email to the mailbox specified in Employees
Handbook, employment contracts as well as business
contracts.

All allegations will be independently investigated by
Administration Department with the assistance of relevant
departments and business functions. Independent senior
management review the investigation results and provide
direction on corrective actions. Investigation results and
progress of corrective actions are reported to the Board
where appropriate.

Anti-corruption training

The Group takes specific measures to encourage integrity
among employees. Our anti-corruption and ethics-related
internal policies are circulated and well-explained to all
employees during the onboarding process. The Group
also plans to hold anti-corruption seminars and provide
relevant learning materials for all employees in 2022 to
maintain employees’ awareness towards anti-corruption
and all forms of unethical business behaviours.
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B. SOCIAL (CONTINUED)

Community

B8.

Community Investment

The Group has taken the communities’ interests
into consideration when conducting business. It is
of our great desire to minimize the negative impact
of our operational activities to the community.
During the reporting period, the Group donated
over RMB89,000 in total to different charitable
organisations. All employees are encouraged
to participate in community activities and
charitable activities in the following focus areas as
contribution to the society:

° Caring for the disabled

The Group has been actively participated
in various charitable programs for the
people in need from all walks of life. We
made donation to “RMTEAZEE” for the
disabled on “99/2% H” organized by local
community in Xuzhou during the reporting
period.

° Environmental Concerns
We follow the principles of green
community including recycling and reuse by
participating in clothes donation program
organized by “IXEiE.[,". We have donated
over 600 pieces of clothing to the charitable
organisation.

. Public Health

In response to COVID-19 pandemic and
the needs of underprivileged, we donated a
wide variety of anti-pandemic supplies such
as masks, sanitizers and personal hygiene
kits to charitable organizations. We have
also partnered with “PEHXEFTHZSFE"
to participate in disinfection and cleaning
for local community, and promotion on
pandemic awareness.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associate
are set out in notes 45 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property
development, investment and management in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business and an analysis
using financial key performance indicators are provided in
the “Chairman’s Statement” and the “Business and Financial
Review”, respectively, from page 4 to 8 and page 9 to 12 of
this Annual Report. A description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, a discussion on the Group’s
environmental policies and performance and an account of the
Group’s key relationships with its stakeholders are stated therein.
The above discussions form part of the Report of the Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the Group sold 44.0% of its goods and
services to its five largest customers in its continuing operation.
Sales to the largest customer represents 9.4% of the total sales.
Whereas, purchases of the Group’s five largest suppliers and
contractors accounted for 59.5% of the total purchases for the
year and purchases from the largest supplier and contractor
included therein amounted to 16.3% of the total purchases.

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”)) nor those shareholders (which, to the knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers or contractors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statement on page
78 to 81 and page 226.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 85 to 86 and note 46 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SUBSTANTIAL INVESTMENTS AND
ACQUISITIONS

There was no substantial investment and acquisition.
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& REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS % 2 % B8 B A

Details of movements during the year in the share options and  ZNA BB ARHE R AR AN AR EE 2 S IBEH R
share capital of the Company are set out in notes 33 and 34 to 438 B FBMAMT T3 /%34 ©
the consolidated financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS EEEE

Details of the movements during the year in the investment ZAEBREMEHEBMELREBRENRFEZEDH
properties and plant and equipment of the Group are set out FEBEDRIERLEE M IEHRKRMFF15K16 -
in notes 15 and 16 respectively to the consolidated financial

statements.
BORROWINGS P
Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021 AEBWR -_ZE-—F+-A=+—H2Z2EE
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. BERERE M HRERMIFES ©
FINANCIAL SUMMARY HBRHE
Consolidated Results mEXEE
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1+-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—8--% _—T-THF "T-NF TN\F —TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT ARETFTT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Revenue Y2k 343,992 348,216 277,653 278,668 727,015
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRATEBATET/
(E18) 197,239 (116,132) (176,290) 101,397 188,410
Income tax expenses FBRIHX (33,209) (74,036) (14,817) (40,510)  (129,995)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRaA/ (1) 164,030  (190,168) (191,107 60,887 58,415
Profit/(loss) attributable to: TIATESE
wA/ (ER)
Owners of the Company i N/NSEZFE DN 164,030  (100,868) (99,844) 69,625 63,667
Non-controlling interests IFERER - (89,300) (91,263) (8,738) (5,252)
164,030  (190,168)  (191,107) 60,887 58,415

HMARWESERRQTE 2021F F#H
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BEGRES
Consolidated Assets, Equity and Liabilities GEEE  HEIERAERE
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B —E-FTF —“ZT-NE —Z-N\F Z—T+F
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’'000
ANREFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREEE 1,090,409 979,312 1,022,373 1,266,364 1,264,218
Current assets REEE 3,130,248 3,287,386 3,002,984 2,353,925 2,033,492
4,220,657 4,266,698 4,025,357 3,620,289 3,297,710
LIABILITIES 8
Current liabilities FEEE 2,037,299 1,862,199 1,588,253 1,423,477 1,156,509
Non-current liabilities EnEaE 474,771 806,889 629,081 232,723 246,628
2,512,070 2,669,088 2,217,334 1,656,200 1,403,137
EQUITY oty
Attributable to: THALIEL
Owners of the Company V/NCIE Y =DN 1,708,387 1,746,972 1,848,085 1,947,888 1,874,634
Non-controlling interests R = 200 (149,362) (40,062) 16,201 19,939
Total Equity EmEE 1,708,587 1,597,610 1,808,023 1,964,089 1,894,573
DIRECTORS EE

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were as follows:

RAFEERBEERAREBH  KAGESN
T

Executive Directors: HITES .
Mr. ZHANG Gao Bin (Chairman) R BiE (£E)
Mr. LUO Zhangguan BEREE
Independent Non-executive Directors: WY EHITES :
Mr. LO Wai Hung EREEEE
Mr. MAK Yiu Tong BRERE
Mr. FOK Chi Tat Michael EXERAE

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all of the directors

are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election. Mr. Mak Yiu

Tong and Mr. Fok Chi Tat Michael will retire by rotation and, being

eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

REARBZABHAR  2REEHARES
RIWEEEERET BREALERETERER
REERFRBFAE LRESE  HERENE
BIRWFREEEET -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on page 21 to 23 of
the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of independent non-executive directors, had entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of two years and
each of these contracts is subject to termination by either party
giving not less than 1 month’s written notice.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract, which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) had any business which was considered to
compete or was likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group.

HMARWESERRQTE 2021F F#H
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2021,
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions

the interest or short position of the

of SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

EEEE

REE

MEE I:I I\/J

REER  BREESLON  WEITIKEFTL
BRRNRIBBEBIEMNEEZRLD) 2 EER
THZAaHK -

EERATHARNA QA
BOrE 2RO - HEROREEE
ZEBRER

R-_B-_—F+-A=+—8 BERITHRE
HRARRRHEEMEEEE (REHFRHE
B ([BEHRBEGEH]) EXVEZEE) 2
H&T" - MR G R EREET ﬂ%%*ﬁ‘ﬂfﬁ%ﬁ
%&Hﬂ SR B EEXVEBET7 K8/ EBEAA LD

RSN ERE (BREREEREE a‘%&
Hﬂiﬂlﬂﬁﬂﬁfﬁ BXEBSRIEREB 2R E
B) HERERARRIREZS K BEED
EI5215 R TE /,\ﬁEZ%L‘uEHﬁuBﬁE’JF*@ZL
B ﬁ*ﬁ%’f?—.—#ﬁﬂ%ﬁ AN T R E R P
MRS R Than T it

Percentage of the

Capacity/ Company’s issued
Name of director Nature of interest Number of shares share capital
HERATERT
EEHA Bin REME BREE BAB DL
Zhang Gao Bin Personal 111,095,000 1.06%
b= & A
Interest in controlled corporation 6,474,393,939 62.89%
REEEE R
Luo Zhangguan Personal 1,380,000 0.01%
BFEM & A
Mak Yiu Tong Personal 150,000 0.00%
EiRs fEA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2021, the interests or short
positions of substantial shareholders (other than Directors or the
chief executives of the Company) in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
SFO or were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRRAQF RS KEER G
ZEERER

BARARREEFHITRAEAH  R_T_—F
T-A=1+—H X2RE (KRRAREFHTT
HBABERIN RARBROAEBROEBR
BES RAEERPIEXVEBE2 X35 BHE AR
ARARBEBINARARIER 5 MG RGIE
BBHMEBFE < BEMitk s EEHER
LUl

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
underlying issued
Name Note shares interest share capital
A ABE BT
=t ftat MHEROEZEE BAB DL
Talent Trend Holdings Limited 1 6,474,393,939 62.89%
Notes: Mt
(1) The entire issued share capital of Talent Trend Holdings Limited is (1) Talent Trend Holdings Limited % #F 2 17 %

directly, beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Gao Bin.

HMARWESERRQTE 2021F F#H
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share option scheme of the Company was adopted on 20
May 2013 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to Participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Particulars of the scheme are set out in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements. The maximum number
of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted
under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise,
to 10% of the shares of the company in issue at any time. As at
29 April 2022, the number of shares of the Company available
for issue in respect thereof was 1,029,313,655, representing
10% of the issued shares of the Company. In addition, save as
determined at the discretion of the Board, there is no minimum
holding period before an Option is exercisable. No options were
granted, exercised, cancelled, lapsed or remained outstanding

during the year ended 31 December 2021.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option
Scheme”, no equity linked agreements were entered into during

the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of shares or other
securities of the Company by the Company or its subsidiaries
during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as the related party transactions as set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements which were fully exempt
from the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, the Group did not enter into any other
connected or continuing connected transactions during the
financial year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set out on page
24 to 33 of the annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
FROM INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Company’s directors.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

HARMWEEBEBRDOR 2021 FFiF
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining shareholders of the Company
who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 29 June 2022, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 24 June 2022
to 29 June 2022, both days inclusive.
attending and voting at the annual general meeting, all transfer

In order to qualify for

documents should be lodged for registration with Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30

p.m. on 23 June 2022.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be tabled in the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as

auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Zhang Gao Bin
Chairman

PRC, 29 April 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2R EE

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Wmom g F MOF OB A W A H

Level 35, Tower 1, Enterprise Square Five,
38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

To the Shareholders of Talent Property Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Talent
Property Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
collectively referred to as (“the Group”) set out on page 78 to
228, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT <>

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

The key audit matter

BB R E S

RRFXSEE
FRREZFASRBEESHNERAE+  RBE
HARGEVBBRERNERRRERNER -
EERELERBRAVBHRARFELEARE
BHEFEER MESFTERUFFREFER
BR-

REWMERNMEE

BEELER

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of investment properties
of the Group was RMB585,960,000.

Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management of the Group to determine the fair value of the
investment properties. To support the fair value determined by
the management of the Group, the Group engaged an external
valuer to perform valuations on the investment properties at the
end of the reporting period.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the estimation of fair
value of investment properties are included in Notes 2, 4 and 15.

RZZT-_—F+-_A=+—H  SE£EKEY
¥ AT EAEARES85,960,0007T °
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2R EE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

FEREZEIE (&)
EERERENAEERRERSE

We evaluated the objectivity, independence and competency of
the valuer.

We compared inputs to the valuation model, on a sample basis,
with the Group’s records, which included underlying lease
agreements and documentation, details of number of property
units held for investment purposes and current rents.

We discussed with the external valuer regarding the
reasonableness of methodology and key assumptions being
used.

We performed site visits accompanied by the management of the
Group for investment properties.

Net realisable value assessment of the Group’s
properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

The key audit matter

EECHAGEMNEZEE - BN -

EEUBEEEEEEENBARER BE
Bl R (TELE - E e R EIAMTE S HERX
o ARERRFFANDEELBE REHHA
SHFEN o

EEEINEHEMBEERNGEEREMBRERR
ZEBMEITHR

EEERRTHREMRE

il BERERARETUERSELE
ZERTIYRNAEERFE

HREEZER

As at 31 December 2021,
development and completed properties held for sale amounted
to RMB2,003,789,000 and RMB673,460,000 respectively, net
reversal of impairment loss of properties under development
RMB12,000,000 recognised during the year ended 31 December
2021,
consolidated financial statements.

the Group held properties under

as disclosed in Notes 19 and 20 respectively to the

The estimation of the net realisable value (“NRV”) of properties
under development and completed properties held for sale
required the management of the Group to estimate the selling
prices based on prevailing market conditions, less costs to
complete and sell the properties. Given that the Group had
significant amounts of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale and that the management’s
determination of the NRV required the management of the Group
to exercise significant judgment, we concluded that the NRV

assessment as one of the key audit matter.

HARMESEEER AT 2021 FFi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB R E S

FEREZXEIE (&)
EERERENAEERRERSE

We noted that the management of the Group had engaged an
independent valuer to determine the current market value of
the completed properties held for sale and properties under
development, in order to perform the NRV assessment. We
assessed the valuer’s independence, qualifications and expertise
and read their terms of engagement with the Group to determine
whether there were any matters that might have affected their
objectivity or whether there were scope limitations imposed upon
their work.

We discussed with the valuer the methodology and assumptions
used in determining the current market value of the properties.

Specifically, with regard to completed properties held for sale,
we sample-checked the current market value of properties
used by the valuer to the adjusted market prices of comparable
properties in the similar location near the end of the reporting
period and determined whether there was any significant
variance.

With regard to the properties under development, we discussed
with the management of the Group and the valuer how they
arrived at the estimated percentage of completion, the estimated
selling prices when they are completed and the estimated costs
to complete, and checked to the source data on a sample
basis. Further, we compared the market value determined by
the valuer with the carrying amount of the properties recorded
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements to see whether
adequate impairment loss had been provided.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2R EE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2R EE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify your opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT <>

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter of when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Hong Kong, 29 April 2022

Ho Wan Nei
Practising Certificate number P06991
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@  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERBEREMEEKARRE

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

2021 2020
—EZ-fF —ZT_TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AREFT ABRETFIT
Revenue U &5 5,6 343,992 348,216
Cost of sales and services HE M ARTE AN (210,129) (181,348)
Gross profit EF 133,863 166,868
Other revenue Hablias 7 13,724 12,868
Distribution costs Pali=|D®N (15,799) (20,821)
Administrative and other operating 77 & H ith &4 5 &
expenses (59,304) (44,866)
Fair value changes on investment REYE Z NFEE
properties (12,040) (45,930)
Reversal of impairment loss/ BRPYERERE
(impairment loss) of properties #ECREEsE)
under development 12,000 (168,000)
Allowance for expected credit losses & 5 & Y BE X 78 A
for trade receivables EEEBERE (107) (1,231)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBARZWZE 8 28,823 -
Share of result of an associate SE—HEERRER 18 129,710 38,556
Gain on losing control of a subsidiary <2 % — B & A Al
2 b 4 2 W e 8,641 =
Finance costs BE AR 9 (42,272) (53,576)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBADER(EE) 10 197,239 (116,132)
Income tax expense FrigtiA = 13 (33,209) (74,036)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEBEF(EE) 164,030 (190,168)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: THALEERR
(EB8) :
Owners of the Company ZINNETEF =N 164,030 (100,868)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B = - (89,300)
164,030 (190,168)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ¢
RERBERAMEEKARRE

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥ T AREFIT
Other comprehensive loss for the F£EHtt2HEHEE
year
ltems that may be reclassified HEngeasFoEEIas
subsequently to profit or loss: HIERE -
Exchange differences on MEBINETS 2 TSR
translation of financial statements RZER =%
of foreign operations (367) (245)
Other comprehensive FEHMEHEER
loss for the year (367) (245)
Total comprehensive income/ FEZEBA (BE)
(loss) for the year Fb G 163,663 (190,413)
Total comprehensive income/ THALTEEEZE
(loss) attributable to: WA (EE) 858
Owners of the Company PIN/NETE Z =N 163,663 (101,113)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B = (89,300)
163,663 (190,413)
RMB RMB
AR AR #
Earnings/(loss) per share BREFN (&HR) 14
Basic and diluted EARREE 1.594 cents) (0.980)cent7>
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ARE BTBUIR R &

(As at 31 December 2021) (R=—ZE——F+_-H=+—H)

2021 2020
—EZ-fF —ZT_TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat AR T ABRETFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENRER
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties KEYE 15 585,960 598,000
Plant and equipment 5= K w& 16 3,370 4,522
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 5,264 1,591
Interests in an associate R—EE AR 2 s 18 482,539 351,546
Prepayments, deposits and TERHIE - BHe M
other receivables H fth e Y AR 3K 22 6,229 -
Pledged deposit [k 25 = 3,386
Deferred tax asset RIERRIBE = 32 7,047 20,267
1,090,409 979,312
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BREPYE 19 2,003,789 1,564,914
Completed properties held FIEHE 2RI 20
for sale 673,460 820,851
Trade receivables JE 5 AR R 21 4,681 6,796
Prepayments, deposits and other FE{T3IE « & &
receivables H At [ W AR 5K 22 198,698 174,344
Contract costs BRI 23 700 2,356
Tax recoverable AJAR B3 18 15,364 10,311
Financial asset at FVTPL BATEFABRS SR 24
BE 7,920 -
Pledged deposit EEAEE 25 3,386 -
Cash and cash equivalent ReMBREEEY 25 222,250 109,991
3,130,248 2,689,563
Assets classified as held for sale DB AFIEHENEE 26 = 597,823
3,130,248 3,287,386

HARMESEEER AT 2021 FFi




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ¢
BT BGIR S 2=

AN
o=

(As at 31 December 2021) (R=—ZE——#F+—-HA=+—H)

2021 2020
s ZEZTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B it AR¥ T ABREFr
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables JE - BR 3K 27 456,049 475,628
Accruals and other payables FEET B R Kk EAb e IR 28 158,124 141,619
Contract liabilities BHBE 29 814,653 518,266
Lease liabilities MEARE 30 1,511 1,836
Provision for tax IR 338,286 342,039
Borrowings B 31 268,676 125,437
2,037,299 1,604,825
Liabilities associated with assets D MEAFELENEE
classified as held for sale HENAaE 26 = 257,374
2,037,299 1,862,199
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,092,949 1,425,187
Total assets less current BEERARBASE
liabilities 2,183,358 2,404,499
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAFE 30 3,753 =
Borrowings BN 31 294,056 619,112
Deferred tax liability BEETIERE 32 176,962 187,777
474,771 806,889
Net assets EEFE 1,708,587 1,597,610
EQUITY s
Share capital % AR 34 37,628 37,628
Reserves f#E 35 1,670,759 1,709,344
Equity attributable to the owners AR RIHEE AELEZD
of Company 1,708,387 1,746,972
Non-controlling interests AR A 200 (149,362)
Total equity fEREEE 1,708,587 1,597,610

Zhang Gao Bin Luo Zhangguan

Director Director
EFE EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ IE; ﬁ JILEE %%
(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (&% —F+ZA=+—HIFFE)
2021 2020
—B-—fF —ZT_TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat AREFT ABRETFIT
Profit/(loss) before tax BE RS (EE) 197,239 (116,132)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Interest income on financial REENAAR S5
assets carried at amortised BEMBBA
costs 7 (3,743) (1,063)
Fair value changes on REMERNTFEEE
investment properties 15 12,040 45,930
Allowance for expected credit R TEE = B & 1B
losses for trade receivables B 10 107 1,231
Management fee income from JE Uy — el Bt & R 3]
an associate ERBIA 7 (310) (234)
Interest income on loan to an HT—fEEE QR
associate BERZMBWA 7 (973) (734)
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ BRAME2 CREBE
Impairment loss of properties Bo), REEE
under development (12,000) 168,000
Reversal of over-provided BOoBEEERX
expenses 7 - (4,600)
Gain on losing control of a KEH—HEHBAR
subsidiary = A 2 W e (8,641) -
Share of result of an associate 5 —fEEE & N &) %48 18 (129,710) (38,556)
Finance costs BB KA 9 42,272 53,576
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary  H&—EHB QA
W 8 (28,823) =
Depreciation of plant and W K BT E
equipment 10 1,751 1,866
Depreciation of right-of-use FHREEENE
assets 10 1,591 1,592
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS <>
MEBRETRER

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

2021 2020
—B-—-F —_ZTTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AREFT AREFT
Operating cash flow before BEESEEA KL IR
working capital changes ERE 70,800 110,876
Increase in properties under BRIOMERBIELE
development and completed 2B TN
properties held for sale (277,988) (478,026)
Decrease/(increase) in trade FEWBR TR A (3% 4n)
receivables 2,008 (1,745)
Decrease/(increase) in FENRE ek
prepayments, deposits and Hip U BRZOR AL
other receivables (1) (27,057) (86,212)
Decrease/(increase) in contract & &Rk A4 (3€00)
costs 1,656 (1,748)
(Decrease)/increase in trade FEATRRER Cmid), /180
payables (19,579) 212,527
Increase/(decrease) in accruals  FEEHE A K& H b fE T
and other payables BREg i Crid) 16,902 (7,701)
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEE N 296,387 290,125
Cash generated from operations KEZEKE2HEE 63,129 38,096
Land appreciation tax paid 2 I E R (13,340) (8,510)
Income tax paid B (26,263) (2,788)
Net cash generated from REXBIRBZRESFH
operating activities 23,526 26,798
Cash flows from investing REXKFIBZEHERE
activities
Deposit paid for purchase of EEMEMERENT 2
plant and equipment b (5,935) -
Purchase of plant and equipment & E&E & &E& (599) (3,084)
Purchase of investment property & Zi%EME - (930)
Release of pledged deposits i i 7 = 3,000
Placement of pledged deposits iRz 4 - (2,196)
Net cash outflow of losing control % 2= % —FEI [ B A &)
of a subsidiary TR 2 RS MR RR (3) -
Proceed from a disposal of a REEMB AR ZWE
subsidiary 340,580 =
Interest received 2R & 3,743 1,063
Net cash generated from/ RELERE,(FFA) 2
(used in) investing activities REFE 337,786 (2,147)
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‘} CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ }EEUILE%

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

2021 2020
—EZ-fF —ZT_TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat AR T ABRETFIT
Cash flows from financing RMEXKCHERE
activities
Acquisition of additional interests Y& —EIH B A & 2 5850
in a subsidiary R (24,000) -
Proceeds from bank loans IRITERATIS R - 183,256
Proceeds from other unsecured — Efth HEIERE XIS HIE
loans - 104,723
Proceeds from other secured HEERERFAENRIEA
loans 16,000 332,600
Repayment of bank loans EBRITER (35,717) (203,634)
Repayment of other unsecured {Ei,ﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁ*{%ﬁm
loans - (145,760)
Repayment of other secured BEAMEERER
loans (162,100) (320,000)
Net movement of amount JEA — It & 2 RIFKIR
due to an associate BE)FE (46) (155)
Net movement of amount J,Etfﬁ BITESHIE
due to an executive director BE)FEE 947 (5,049)
Finance costs BB AR (42,272) (568,576)
Repayment of principal of lease EEHEEEAR T
liabilities (1,836) (1,567)
Net cash used in financing MEXKMAZRSFEHE
activities (249,024) (109,162)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash  RE2 RIRELZEY
and cash equivalents #,CRd) F5E 112,288 (84,511)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HzR& Kk
1 January ReEEY 109,999 194,569
Effect of foreign exchange rate  [EXREE) 7 H &
changes (37) (59)
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt+—A=+—H2
31 December Re kRS EEY 222,250 109,999
Analysis of cash and cash HEeERRESEBYDF
equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRE 25 222,250 109,991
Bank balances and cash PEAFRIEHEEEMNIR
classified under asset held TESRKEIES
for sale 26 - 8
222,250 109,999
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY <>
GARRBEBE

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRRE AR
Fair value
through other
Currency Capital ~ comprehensive Non-
Share Share translation  Capital Contributed redemption income  Statutory Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve  reserve  surplus reserve reserve reserve loss  Sub-total interests equity
RAVE
L3k ERE AL FER

Bx R BE ERGE AABH BE  2ENAEE  IRBRE  RER it BE  EEAE
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB'000 RMBY000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RVBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOOD  RMBO00  RMB100

ARBTT ARRTR ARBTA ARETT ARETR ARETR  AREFT ARBTZ  ARETZ ARRTT ARRTZ ARRT%

Asat 1 January 2021 RZF=—
-A-H 37,628 2,982,905  (240,361) 861 301,799 82 (1,258) 16,274  (1,350,963) 1,746,972  (149,362) 1,597,610

Profit for the year At - - - - - - - - 164,030 164,030 - 164,030

Other comprehensive £ E2E
loss for the year: BA:
Exchange diference  HE S5 EHK
ontranglation of  ZEHER
financial statement 2 ER£H
of foreign
operations - - (367) S - - - - - (367) - (%67)

Total comprehensive ~ £E2EMA

income for the year ~ #3 - - (367) - - - - - 164,030 163,663 - 163,663
Addftional interestin R —EHBAT
asubsidiary fote)  EEIMER

(W) - - = - - - - - (02248) (202,48) 178248 (24,000)
Disposal of a RE-FHNE
subsidiary A = - - - - - - - = - (28686) (28,686)
Losing control of 8~ %54 ~FHiE
subsidary NREE - - - - - - 253 - (253) - - -
Transfer o EBETH
non-distrioutable  AEEEES
reserve fund - - - - - - - 7,130 (7,130) - - -

As at 31 December H=-E=-%
2021 2R
=t-f 37,628 2,982,905 (240,728 861 301,799 82 (1,000) 23,404 (1,396,564) 1,708,387 200 1,708,587

note: The Group has acquired 49% equity interest of a subsidiary  A7i# + ANEEEHBERAE —ZIELBBMEAR SR

from a non-controlling shareholder of the subsidiary at a cash B AR¥24,000,000tBE —RHHBAFZ
consideration of RMB24,000,000 to enable more efficient 49% R HE - B AR ERZMB AR KE
management of the subsidiary and these subsidiaries owned by FIEENZENB AR - ZRXHZ2HE %WJ_'J
it. Details of the transaction were set out in the announcements RAERBRZEZ—F—AZ+ARZZZ
of the Company published on 20 January 2021 and 27 January —F—AZ+EBAHEHRMS -

2021.
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‘) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GOREEDE

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) ({2 =L ——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAEEARLE
Fair value
through other
Currency Capital  comprehensive Non-

Share Share  tranglation  Capital Contributed ~ redemption income Statutory  Accumulated controling Total
capital  premium reserve  resene  surplus reserve reserve reserve loss  Subtotal  interests equity
BLTE

gHis B1ER AR SR

Rx RiEE R ATEE HABH R cEAARE  fERR  ZHER et BE  EEER
RUBO00 RMBOOD  RMBOOO AMBOOO AMBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBOOD  AMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBO00  AMBOOO  AMBO00
ARRTE ARETE ARETE \RETI ARETE ARETE  ARETZ ARETT  ARETL ARRTZ ARETZ ARETT

Asat1January 2020 HN-E-F%
-f-A

37,628 2,982,906  (240,116) 861 301,799 82 (1,253 - (1233821) 1,848,085 (40,062) 1,808,023
lossfortheyear  E%EE . - - - - - - - (100868 (100868 (89300 (190,169
Other comprehensive  £EE {12 E
loss for the year: EA:
Exchange diference  AEHIER
on translation of LHBER
financial statement ~ ZER =8
of foreign
operations - - (245) - - - - - - (245) - (245)
Total comprehensive ~ EE2EEE
loss for the year o - = (245) - - - - - (100,868) (101,113)  (89,300)  (190,413)
Additional interestin -~ R—RMBAR
asubsidiary frotg)  MENMER
(i) - - - - - - - - - - (0,000 (20,000
Transfer to gpEimft
non-distributable 7 REEES
reserve fund - - - - - - - 16,274 (16,274) - - -
Asat 31 December W-B-B%
2020 2R
=t-8 37,628 2,982,906 (240,361) 861 301,799 82 (1,203 16,274 (1,350,963 1,746,972 (149,362) 1,597,610

note: On 19 March 2020, Guangzhou Fengmao Real Estate Mif - RZZTZTF=A+ LB EMNEXKE

Development Co., Ltd. (“Fengmao”), an indirect non-wholly ERZEERAR ([BX] —HHEEFEEE
owned subsidiary, has entered into an agreement with Yunnan WEAR) BEZEmAEEBERAR (£
Jinchuang Investment Co., Ltd. (“Jinchuang”), a non-controlling Bl EEHAXRERERAERAR ([E
shareholder of Yunnan Xin Tian Culture Travel Development A BIIEIERR AR ) T L sk o IRIE
Limited (“Yunnan Xintian”). Pursuant to the agreement, Jinchuang ZinE  2ERBRZXNEENEMHTKR
agreed to give up all right and obligation of its 40% equity 40%RIECFIBRENREME  EAEHEN
interest in Yunnan Xintian to Fengmao as the full settlement of HERMEK 2 5B ARE20,000,0007T °

RMB20,000,000 that it due to Fengmao.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERER M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Talent Property Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda and domiciled
in Hong Kong. The addresses of its registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section to the annual report.
The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Talent
Trend Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI,
is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
including (i) property development, (i) property investment
and (i) property management.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”), while the consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). As
the major business of the Group is located in the
Mainland China, the directors consider that it will be
more appropriate to adopt RMB as the Group’s and the
Company’s presentation currency.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 were approved for issue by the board
of directors on 29 April 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in Note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERER M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and certain properties that are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) ({2 =L ——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. XEETEHRBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued) WBEE ()
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value AN MBS HREMS 0 AFEEFER
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 ﬁ’é NP EFFENBABERBRIZEER
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value NEEFENE ASETEE ﬁgﬁﬁiy
measurements are observable and the significance of the MOBEAEE—R F_RXE=H - F
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which BT

are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in . F—RBABENEBRFEA
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that AESHEREES B ERIER
the entity can access at the measurement date; M52 HE CREFHE)

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices o F_RBMABENIGREESEE
included within Level 1, that are observable for the BEEXEZEMAIER 2 E AME
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and (F—RABTENRERIN 0 &

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the . FZRBABENEEREEN
asset or liability. BAERGAEE -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out as below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or a joint venture.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) ({2 =L ——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

The performance obligations of the Group for contracts
with customers are summarized as follows:

(i) Development and sales of properties (revenue
recognised at a point in time)

For contracts entered into with customers on sales
of properties, based on opinion from the Group’s
internal legal counsel, taking into consideration
of the relevant contract terms and customary
practice within the industry in the PRC, the legal
environment and relevant legal precedent, the
management of the Group concluded that the
Group does not have an enforceable right to
payment for the work performed to date at all times
during the contract prior to transfer of the relevant
properties to customers. Revenue from sales
of residential properties in the PRC is therefore
recognized at a point in time when the completed
property is transferred to customers, being at the
point that the customer obtains the control of
the completed property and the Group has fully
received the consideration of the properties sold.

The Group normally receives 1%-37% (2020:
2%-33%) of the contract value as deposits from
customers when they sign the sale and purchase
agreements. Such advance payment result in
contract liabilities being recognised throughout the
property construction period.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Development and sales of properties (revenue
recognised at a point in time) (continued)

The Group considers the advance payment from
customers contain significant financing component
and accordingly the amount of consideration is
adjusted for the effects of the time value of money
taking into consideration the credit characteristics
of the Group. As this accrual increases the
amount of the contract liability during the period of
construction, it increases the amount of revenue
recognised when control of the completed property
is transferred to the customer.

The Group applies the practical expedient for
advance payment received from customers, given
that if the corresponding performance obligation is
expected to satisfy within 12 months after receiving
the advance payment, (i.e. when the control of the
completed property is transferred to the customer
within 12 months), the financing component
is considered insignificant and the amounts of
consideration, contract liability and revenue are not
adjusted for the effects of any time value of money.

The Group also applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a contract
if these costs would otherwise have been fully
amortised to profit or loss within one year.

Property management (revenue recognised
over time)

For contracts entered into with customers on
property management services, it is considered as
monthly services provided to tenants and owners
of properties and the performance obligations are
fulfilled on a straight-line basis over the contracts
terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (ElZ—F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not
been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the assets
relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss
within one year.

Revenue from other source

Rental income of property leasing under operating leases
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group assesses whether
a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will
not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed. As a practical
expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual
leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERER M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of land and building that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property, properties under
development or completed properties held for sale as
a separate line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHREBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued) HE (8)

The Group as a lessee (continued) KEFEDBRBA ()
Lease liabilities (continued) HEEE (&)

The lease payments include: MEFIBEBRTRE

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.
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After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in . THESAmMEHNITFEEEER

the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review/
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item

on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as

a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease

liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by

discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognized initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests in associates.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (ElZ—F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages, salaries, annual leaves and sick leaves)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Defined contribution plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC, the Group participates in a defined contribution
basic pension insurance in the social insurance system
established and managed by government organisations.
The Group makes contributions to basic pension
insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks
and rates stipulated by the government. Basic pension
insurance contributions are recognised as part of the
cost of assets or charged to profit or loss as the related
services are rendered by the employees.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under
the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all employees
in Hong Kong, which is a defined contribution retirement
scheme. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based
on minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5% of
eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income. The assets
of this pension scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (ElZ—F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale,
except for freehold land, which is always presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (ElZ—F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised at initial recognition and over the lease terms
due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the
relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain tax
treatment used, or proposed to be use by individual group
entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable, the
current and deferred taxes are determined consistently
with the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not
probable that the relevant taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty
is reflected by using either the most likely amount or the
expected value.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual value over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipments 10-33.33%
Motor vehicles 20%

The asset's residual value, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties also
include leased properties which are being recognised as
right-of-use assets and subleased by the Group under
operating leases. Investment properties are initially
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and contract costs other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its plant and equipment and right
of use assets with finite useful lives and contract costs
to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and contract costs other than goodwill
(continued)

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and contract costs are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and contract costs other than goodwill
(continued)

For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units.

In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

Properties under development which are intended to be
sold upon completion of development and properties for
sale are classified as current assets. Properties under
development/properties for sale are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on
a specific identification basis including allocation of the
related development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the
properties less estimated cost to completion and costs
necessary to make the sales. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable to
the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS
3 Business Combination applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

(1)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

2.

FTESHEEEBE &)

TRMIA (&)
THEE (&)
THEEZTBERAKTE (F)

FERATRENBERT  ZREREE
gBEESR -

. TEENRATHEAALE
%

s RUSPHRE AEEKAERE
ZA#HpeMmIAAAG s — 5
7 MOHBERRHERN %

e  UWHEREHEEMHHNITAZIT
ETH-

b SN - AER B S A AT B[Ol 3 1R O R R
AR IR AP EF ARMEEBAG
EZERMEER NV EFABRZTE
A EE 738 B € RDB BR SRR R D & &t
R AC

() BHEEARFEHA
HEmBHEK A ECEREE
FB A BB A ROEHER
MEB TR ERFRE RN
RFEAAEMBEZEBAGE -
RERLAEEREZSREE
Sh - FBWARBERNRIZE
MEERMAETE - BERH
RBEEREZEREEMS @ A
BRARRERMNERIZSHEE
R —EREHEL 2 #HEK A
R WMEREEREZERT
A2 EERREENBREREE
THHREERE - BIFSKA
BEETEETHLRESRER
ZHRERNENSREEZRE
RERMERNRER -

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2021




O = =7

s i e, SR e e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(ii) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in OCl and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve;
and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
and will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the other revenue in profit
or loss.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (ElZ—F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, other receivables, pledged
deposit and cash and cash equivalent) which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is

relevant instrument.

expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
() Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant

deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERER M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) ({2 =L ——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or

more events that have a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of that financial asset

have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is

credit-impaired includes observable data about the

following events:

(@)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERER M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking into account any collateral held
by the Group).

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped by aging basis.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERER M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
designate the investment as at FVTOCI at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9 or on initial recognition of
the investment, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual
obligation for the Group to deliver cash or other financial
assets or the Group has the sole discretion to defer
payment of distribution and redemption of principal
amount indefinitely are classified as equity instruments.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest
and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re B R AR MR
(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale
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Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such

asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
relevant subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment,
the investment or the portion of the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, and the Group discontinues
the use of the equity method in relation to the portion
that is classified as held for sale from the time when the
investment (or a portion of the investment) is classified as
held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent re-measurement while held for sale,
are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current
asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the
non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (Bt2=—F——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(if) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iif) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

(if) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

(if) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(V) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(Vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)() has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(vii) ~ The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERER M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4  Reform — Phase 2

and HKFRS 16

The application of the Amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendment
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
year.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) ({2 =L ——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

C 28 1B e R £ R # /] RAGIEET
RV BREER
AREBEWERFERAATERMERK
R RERT BB IRE LR :

The Group has not early applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related BERUBREENEITHR  RBRA %’]&
Amendments’ EFW al
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions ERMBRELENE16E T E/\ﬂ
beyond 30 June 20214 ZIEFT =THZENHE
mEEEES
B
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual ERMISHMEERE3E HAER IR

Framework? Z1EE]
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between BB RELEE10% Txéf%&ﬁi\ NG
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or REBERGERE28%H BB ER
Joint Venture® BT Zé%ﬁﬁ%jé
‘A3
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or EESHERNEIF 2B BBEYEARDE
Non-current and related amendments mBRIEEE /E
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)’ REESR B
(—Fﬁ—gi)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Accounting Policies’ BRLHENE 1R 2B SHBRNER'

and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Definition of Accounting Estimates'
Deferred Tax related to Assets

REBUMBREENER
REFR
BB R ESR 257
B anrﬁE—?'\‘J%QﬁﬁZfza

B ERTHER'
BE-RHELNE

and Liabilities arising from a Single ERBBEEANE
Transaction' TR
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - BEALHERNE16% mE - BER
Proceeds before Intended Use? BT R - BTRE
Al 2 FT 15 R0R
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of BRGHRAEITR EBREAH - BT
Fulfiling a Contract? ZIEET CLIPA Y
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BERAMBREEN 2B BEWBRERER
2018-2020? —N\EE
it ke 322
2 FE 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in Note 2, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

3.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(i)

(ii)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating in
the PRC and are subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

PRC land appreciation taxes

Some subsidiaries of the Group are subject to
land appreciation taxes in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of these taxes
varies among different tax jurisdictions in various
cities of the PRC, and those subsidiaries have
not finalised all of their land appreciation taxes
calculation and payments with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant
judgement is required in determining the amount
of the land appreciation taxes. The Group
recognised these land appreciation taxes based
on management’s best estimates according to the
interpretation of the tax rules. The final tax outcome
could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and these differences will impact
the income tax and tax provisions in the periods in
which such taxes have been finalised with local tax
authorities.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (ElZ—F—

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties in the PRC are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time. As a result,
the Group is subject to income taxes on the rental
income of its investment properties in the PRC
and deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the
investment properties are recognised.

Estimates for net realisable value of properties
under development and completed properties
held for sale

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amounts of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale for the
Group are approximately RMB2,003,789,000
(2020: approximately RMB1,564,914,000)
and approximately RMB673,460,000 (2020:
approximately RMB820,851,000), respectively
and the completed properties held for sale by
the associate is approximately RMB208,867,000
(2020: RMB390,784,000). During the year ended
31 December 2021, an amount of RMB12,000,000
(2020: impairment loss of RMB168,000,000)
reversal of impairment loss was made for
properties under development. The Group
assesses the carrying amounts of properties
under development and completed properties
held for sale according to their net realisable value
based on the realisability of these properties. Net
realisable value for properties under development
is determined by reference to management’s
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing
market conditions, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion
(including land costs). Net realisable value for
completed properties held for sale is determined by
reference to management’s estimates of the selling
price based on prevailing market conditions, less
applicable variable selling expenses.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BREHUERE XL FE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ERIR (#)

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions BAEEH AT RER (8)

(continued)

(v/ Estimation of fair value of investment (v) BREYEZLFERG
properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices N ENRERE AN EELUE

in an active market for the properties with similar A REAME DY ERE BT S

lease and other contracts. In the absence of such RIRITER - (W EZEER

information, the Group determines the amount AEERZ-—ZINGENRFE
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. HErETEESE - EHHE

In making its judgement, the Group considers B AEEgEERE TR®E

information from a variety of sources including: MER B

() current prices in an active market for (i) TR MEE - AR Sk B
properties of different nature, condition or (KX TRABELHHEMED
location (or subject to different lease or RIR) MY EEZRETIS
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those BIRITER (A THEMN
differences; and RMZEEZER) &

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less iy ®WTNEBRMSHNEUYME
active markets, with adjustments to reflect BT ERE 4% (AT T2 A
any changes in economic conditions since REBIZEBERETR
the date of the transactions that occurred at 58 B DA R A AR e 1
those prices; and mEE) &
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (Bt2=—F——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BERSHHEREAGH IR
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ERIR (#)
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions AR AT RER (8)
(continued)
(v Estimation of fair value of investment (v) REYEZLFEGE ()
properties (continued)
(i) discounted cash flow projections based (iy ~RERKREREH O E
on reliable estimates of future cash flows, HErMmiELHMBLIRIE &R
derived from the terms of any existing lease ETER - ZEATBREE
and other contracts and (where possible) MIBEHAOREMEDNN
from external evidence such as current &R - Ak (0B AT ge) 4h
market rents for similar properties in the £ R % (2048 R B K AR
same location and condition, and using MEFEUYENRITT S
capitalisation rates that reflect current MeF) mEL - XLEA
market assessments of the uncertainty in REBEMZHASRE
the amount and timing of the cash flows. CHEEBENTEERER

TEEE A E T -

The Group assesses the fair value of its investment AEERBEIEFXSERMGE
properties based on valuations determined by MEEETHEREMENLRT
independent and professional qualified valuer. B -

The fair value losses from investment properties are REMEN N T EEE ZFBER
disclosed in Note 15. BEPAPIEE15 o
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FAESTHEREXGET TR
E R (1)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

ARSI REBR (8)

Development costs of properties are recorded
as properties under development during the
construction stage and will be transferred
to completed properties held for sale upon
completion. Apportionment of these costs will
be recognised in the profit or loss upon the
recognition of the sale of the properties. Before the
final settlement of the development costs and other
costs relating to the sale of properties, these costs
are accrued by the Group based on management’s
best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide
the development projects into phases. Specific
costs directly related to the development of a
phase are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to phases are allocated to
individual phases based on the estimated saleable
area of the entire project.

When the final settlement of costs and the related
cost allocation is different from the initial estimates,
any increase or decrease in the development costs
and other costs would affect the profit or loss in
future years.

HARMESEEER AT 2021 FFi
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(vii Recognition and allocation of construction (i) BRRIALZREFYEZZEZEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

FAEESTHEREAGET IR
ERIE ()

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(viij Revenue recognition from sales of products
with no alternative use at a point in time

Under HKFRS 15, control of the asset is transferred
over time when the Group’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date at
all times during the contract period. Significant
judgment is required in determining whether in
the customary practice such right to payment is
enforceable. The Group has based on the terms of
the contract and considered the relevant local laws
and the customary practice that apply to those
relevant contracts and an opinion from the Group’s
internal legal counsel. Based on the assessment by
the Group’s management, the terms of the relevant
sales contracts do not create an enforceable right
to payment for the Group at all times during the
contract period. Accordingly, the sales of products
with no alternative use is considered to be
performance obligation satisfied at a point in time.

(viii) Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for trade receivables. The provision matrix is based
on aging as groupings of various debtors that have
similar loss patterns. The provision rates are based
on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that
is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes as the forward-looking information
are considered. In addition, trade receivables with
significant balances and credit impaired, if any, are
assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in Notes 2,
21 and 42(c).
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(vii)

(viii)
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

The Group is organised into three (2020: three) business
units, based on which information is prepared and
reported to the Group’s chief decision makers, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance.

Information of the Group’s operating and reportable
segments are shown as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

7 EBE

AEFBHI =@M (ZE_FE: = @)
¥W%EN - WAELERSE RFZEE
EMREBENHEREEER R BARE
BEEREARE -

f%Z%E&ﬂi&%ﬁ%EZﬁﬂﬁlJi
N

BE-2--F+-A=t+-ALEE

Property Property Property
development investment management Total
MERR MERE MEEE it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AR¥TFrn ARETFRT

Reportable segment revenue A& 5 Tl
Revenue g 316,584 15,336 12,072 343,992
Timing of revenue recognition BE &R EER

for those within the scope of ZE155sBERWA

HKFRS 15 MR R
A point in time — (Al 2h 316,584 - - 316,584
Over time i - - 12,072 12,072
Revenue from other source HfiHR Ik
Rental income HekA - 15,336 - 15,336
Total et 316,584 15,336 12,072 343,992
Reportable segment profit/ AREDWHEF

(loss) (E58) 102,089 (1,138) 1,322 102,273
Share of result of an associate {5 —H & AR ¥4E 129,710
Finance costs BE AR (42,272)
Income tax expenses FTiSHim= (33,209)
Unallocated expenses RAABFRZ (40,660)
Unallocated income ROBUA 48,188
Profit for the year FERF 164,030
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 2,915,902 593,326 1,512 3,510,740
Corporate assets NAIBE 709,917
Group assets EEEE 4,220,657
Reportable segment liabilities AREoHaE 1,585,202 287,035 1,682 1,873,919
Corporate liabilities NEIBE 638,151
Group liabilities EEERE 2,512,070
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oEER @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z-TF+_A=1T—HILFE
Property Property Property
development investment  management Total
MEER MERE MEER Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETFT AREFT ARETFT
Reportable segment revenue A& 5 Il
Revenue g 322,982 14,393 10,841 348,216
Timing of revenue recognition B&EEIHBRE%EA
for those within the scope of £155 8B RWA
HKFRS 15 Y e 5 B
A point in time — B 2 322,982 = = 322,982
Over time & B ) = = 10,841 10,841
Revenue from other source H#i3iE k%
Rental income e WA - 14,393 - 14,393
Total wct 322,982 14,393 10,841 348,216
Reportable segment (loss)/ AMED P (BE),/
profit A (46,196) (35,291) 1,993 (79,494)
Share of result of an associate ~ HE— L QR EE 38,556
Finance costs BE A (53,576)
Income tax expenses FTSHim= (74,036)
Unallocated expenses Ao AX (34,486)
Unallocated income L ON 12,868
Loss for the year FEFRE (190,168)
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 2,647,466 616,142 4,890 3,268,498
Corporate assets NEIEBE 400,377
Assets classified as held for sale #H{EHEMEE 597,823
Group assets EEEE 4,266,698
Reportable segment liabilities ARESHasE 1,435,275 323,576 1,506 1,760,357
Corporate liabilities NEIBE 661,357
Liabilities associated with assets HE/HEAREHER
classified as held for sale EEMBNAE 257,374
Group liabilities SEEE 2,669,088
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profits or losses
is adjusted profits/(losses) before interest and taxes. To
arrive at adjusted profits/(losses), the Group’s profits/
(losses) are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as share of results
of an associate, finance costs, income tax expenses,
interest and other allocated income and corporate
administration costs.

Segment assets consist primarily of investment properties,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, prepayments,
certain deposits and other receivables, pledged deposit,
properties under development, completed properties held
for sales, trade receivables, contract costs and cash and
cash equivalent.

5. oHEFR (4

HEHRD Y m%ﬁi)&ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ%Zﬁrg/‘%

FERBMBER 2 EHERF (BE) -
BEBUCARERN (B18) A58 %
R, (B18) YR kEERBRER DS
ZBE (PlanoEBenm s BE
A - FIEHFAS - FIEREME S
WARRRTTERAA) fEHE— %

DHMEETBERREME  BE MK
B ERAREE FANFE ETERE
MEMERKER EEFZS  BRP
ME  FEHEZERIYE - BUE
F o ARRAANRE MRS EEY -

Segment liabilities consists primarily of trade payables, DEHEEETERREENER - BT ES
certain accruals and other payables, contract liabilities, ERNEMEMNTIE  A4YAE HE
lease liabilities and borrowings. BERER -
Other segment information for the year ended 31 BE-_ZE-_—F+-A=+—HLEE
December 2021 is as follows: ZHEMOMBERMT :
Property Property Property
development investment management  Unallocated Total
MERE NERE WEERE AOE “ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTLT  AREFT  ARETH  ARETT ARETZ

Other segment HitpEEs

information:
Addition to non-current FERERE A

segment assets BEME

during the year 5,664 199 - - 5,863
Allowance for expected EMER TR Z

credit losses for trade BHEEEBEE

receivables - (107) - - (107)
Depreciation and EREH

amortisation (3,237) - - (105) (3,342)
Fair value changes on RENELATEED

investment properties - (12,040) - - (12,040)
Reversal of impairment loss ~ Z R FIE

of properties under BiEED

development 12,000 - - - 12,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. ZHER ¢4
Other segment information for the year ended 31 Egi_g_?qz—k B=1+—BLEE
December 2020 is as follows: CHDIERMT :
Property Property Property
development investment  management Unallocated Total
NEER NERE NEER ADE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ABRTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARRTT ARETZT

Other segment Hihp B -
information:
Addition to non-current ERNFRBHH
segment assets BERE
during the year 3,084 930 - S 4,014
Allowance for expected W ERF 2
credit losses for trade BHEEERRE
receivables - (1,231) - - (1,231)
Depreciation and HEREH
amortisation (3,143 - - (315) (3,458)
Fair value changes on REMEATES
investment properties - (45,930) - - (45,930)
Impairment loss of properties ZE R BIEEE
under development (168,000) - - - (168,000
There was no (2020: two from property development HEZZ :—¢ +TZA=+—HL1t#F
segment) customer individually contributed over 10% - BE (= TE:-WMBEREDE
of the Group’s total revenue during the year ended 31 ERDE) g\)E- 1. Bl AR EFAWZED
December 2021. FEEBIB10% o
2021 2020
—EB--F _T_FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Customer A EPA - 35,238
Customer B =FB - 47,619
All the Group’s revenues from external customers is ARBRBINAEFZZHREGRE
derived from the Mainland China. AR A o
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E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) ({2 =L ——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 2HWER @
Non-current assets (excluding financial instruments and AREBZIIEARHEE (TEESRITA
deferred tax asset) of the Group are divided into the MELERIBEE) DA TR :

following geographical areas:

2021 2020
—EZ-F C—EZ-ZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARKTIT

Hong Kong (domicile) (note) B (EBfEt) (A1aE) - -
Mainland China AR R 1,077,133 955,659
1,077,133 955,659
note: Bt
The place of domicile is determined based on the location of ¥ IIRERREREMAE
central management. F o
The geographical location of customers is based on EERAMTIIRHBESREER K
the location at which the services were provided or HIEREH I AEE - IERBEE
the location of properties sold and/or leased out. The MEtE N TS ER TN RN EEZ
geographical locations of the non-current assets and TR B N B A N T 4R A EE TR P b By
interests of associate are based on the physical location BFEAE -

of the assets and location of operation of the associate
respectively.

HARMESEER DT 2021 FFHK




e S T T ' '

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

REVENUE 6. ity
The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note 1 to REETEXZBBRERNZSHRENTH
these consolidated financial statements. Turnover of the WERWE1 - REZZFEBHB 2 W= AN
Group is the revenue from those activities. Set out below AEBLER - KB Eﬁé%@ﬂ&ﬁéﬁi%
is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with BB R T R R E ARSI T
customers with the amounts disclosed in the segment
information:
2021 2020
=B _"Z_ZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFIT
Sales of properties HEME 316,584 322,082
Properties management fees MEEEE 12,072 10,841
Revenue from contracts with customers REZF&EAWE (BEH
(within the scope of HKFRS 15) B HREXERFE15FKEER) 328,656 333,823
Gross rental income from investment BEMEZ RS RALLTE
properties (outside the scope of HKFRS 15) (TBREBITBHRELER
F15REEA) 15,336 14,393
Total et 343,992 348,216
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@ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

6. REVENUE (continued) 6. W= &
Transaction price allocated to the remaining BRXREZEIEREEFEHNTRHTRER
performance obligation for contracts with BREE
customers
The transaction price in respect of outstanding contracts RZEBEZ—FR-ZZBE-_FF+-_HA=+
with customers for the sales of properties as at 31 — B MRAZBEZRFIIYMATHES
December 2021 and 2020 allocated to the remaining “amE  PEEFBELHET (KRBT
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially SO RMT) IR 5 ERERWZED
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 and the TR B R AR T AR ¢

expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—RH1LLEE
2021 2020
—EB-—-F C"EZ_ZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT

Within one year —FR 874,262 555,738

More than one year but not more than two years #:8—18 DRAME = 71,938
874,262 627,676

For the sales of properties, the performance obligation is TEEMEMS F NYELTIREER

satisfied upon the transfer of the control of the properties AEBRBUWNEEDENREE - 5

and the Group has fully received the consideration of the AmERAOEMT - F¥EEENTEHRME

properties sold. The expected timing of title transfer is REBERZETIA -

stated in the sales and purchases agreements.

Leases HE

For the year ended
31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFrT AREFIT

Rental income under operating leases: LEHEE TR
MEBWA -
Lease payments that are fixed EETHEEMNK 15,336 14,393
Total revenue arising HEEEZH#E RS
from leases 15,336 14,393
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (Bt2=—F——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

OTHER REVENUE 7. Hitthzm
2021 2020
=B _"ZT_ZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFIT
Other revenue H bz
Interest income on financial assets BEEKAARZeMEEY
carried at amortised costs FBUA 3,743 1,063
Interest income on loan to an associate BT RHBEARERZ
FEBA 973 734
Management fee income from an associate KE—fEBE AR ZERE
A 310 234
Others (note) HAth (B5t) 8,698 10,837
13,724 12,868
note: Bia -
It represents certain one-off items including forfeiture of customer’s HRFXET—RHEER  REEE-T=—
deposit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and reversal of F+-_A=Z+—HALFERREFNES
over-provided expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020. rEBEZTTF+_A=+—RHILFE E’\J

BOBRERERAS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

8.

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 8.

As referred to note 26, a subsidiary of the Company
has disposed of one of the subsidiaries under the
property development segment with a cash consideration
of RMB297,706,000 and a balance receivable from
the disposed subsidiary of RMB42,878,000 as at
31 December 2020. The net assets of the disposed

HEM B A7z Wi

R FE26FTH - A ARIMIB AR ELE
MEZRDBTH—HENBAR B
KRE A AR®297,706,000t BN —F
—EF+_A=Z+—HHHENBRF
U A& 5 B N R ¥ 42,878,000 ° A —
T-—F—ANB (HEBH) HEK

subsidiary on 8 January 2021, which was the date of BREIMEEFELT :
disposal, were as follows:
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cash received: [EY &k
Cash received from disposal RKEHEHNEBRE 297,706
Balance received from the disposed subsidiary RKEBELENBARMNC WSS 42,878
340,584
Analysis of assets and liabilities over KREBEHENEEREBDN
which control was lost:
Plant and equipment 5 N & 40
Properties under development BREPYE 589,731
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEFIE - e REM BRI 13,186
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 4
Trade payables FEATERFK (197,592)
Accruals and other payables (note) JEETE A R E AL OB (i) (42,887)
Borrowings BN (64,913)
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFE 297,569
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMBAR WS !
Cash received 2 U384 297,706
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFA (297,569)
Net assets attributable to non-controlling M A R E R R G B EFE
interest of the subsidiary 28,686
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERB AR Z W 28,823
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZHSRANFEE
Cash received BUlRE 340,584
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B HECIRITERERS (4)
340,580
note: Hiat -

The balance due to the Group of approximately RMB42,878,000
has been settled after disposal but before 31 December 2021.

HARMESEEER AT 2021 FFi

R AREB 4SS AR 42,878,000t E A H
ERER B —F+_F=+—Hm&EN-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

FINANCE COSTS 9. MERK
2021 2020
—E--F —TETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Interest on secured bank loans BREREBTERZFE 23,181 25,790
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBZHE 105 282
Interest on other unsecured loans HihEERERZ A - 8,710
Interest on other secured loan HpE5EREZZHE 41,782 54,282
Less: amount capitalised to properties under 5 : EXNL BEETMEL S
development (22,796) (35,488)
42,272 53,576
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 10. BRBANER (EE)
2021 2020
—E--F CZZT-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFIT AREFIT
Profit/(Loss) before income tax is arrived at BRETISBIATE A (E8)
after charging/(crediting): B (GEA)
Cost of properties sold EEWENR 191,742 166,782
Cost of service for property management Y& 1R RIS A AN 10,246 8,538
Allowance for expected JEWER R EEE BB R A
credit losses for trade receivables 107 1,231
Tax and other levies WAL EMEE 5,226 3,284
Depreciation of plant and equipment (note (a)) BE RBEITE (K:E(a) 1,751 1,866
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 1,591 1,592
Auditors’ remuneration % ERED BN &
— audit services — FBEH AR 705 845
- non-audit services — IEEET AR
— interim review — hEARE 332 355
— others — HAth - 133
(Reversal of impairment loss)/Impairment BRBEZ CRERIE
loss of properties under development Bml), EEE (12,000) 168,000
Rental income from investment properties KEYMERSWAREZ
less direct outgoings (note (b)) M (M5 b)) (12,406) (11,649)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) ({2 =L ——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

10. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued) 10. BRBIAIER,(B5E)
notes: Hiat
(a) Depreciation expenses (a) WERX
Depreciation expenses of approximately RMB1,751,000 TERZ K ARK1,751,0007T (=
(2020: approximately RMB1,866,000) have been included T F: N AR¥1,866,0007T)
in administrative expenses. BEATTHRER
(b) Rental income from investment properties (b) REMERSWA
Direct outgoings incurred for rental income from REMEHSWAMEEEZERX
investment properties amounted to approximately 4B AR®2030,000L (ZEF
RMB2,930,000 (2020: RMB2,744,000). F: AR¥2,744,0007T) °
11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 1. EERABXX (BERESH
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ )
EMOLUMENTS)
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFIT ARETFIT
Wages and salaries TERF® 23,699 20,864
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRE A — TEREERETE 1,455 974
25,154 21,838

The PRC Operating Entities participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal and provincial
government authorities, whereby the PRC Operating
Entities are required to make contribution at the rates
required by different local government authorities. The
local government authorities are responsible for the
pension obligations payable to the retired employees
covered under the Schemes. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Schemes.

HARMESEER DT 2021 FFHK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERER M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

Under the PRC Schemes to which the Group’s
subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to make
contribution, forfeited contributions cannot be used by the
employers to reduce the existing level of contributions.
For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there
was no forfeited contribution available to reduce existing
level of contributions payable in the future years.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HKD30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Contributions made by the Group to the MPF Scheme
vest immediately. For the year ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, there was no forfeited contribution available to
reduce existing level of contributions payable in the future
years.

11.

EERAEX (BREEES
M) (&)

BEAEBERFREEENNEARAE
EHXNFPREGE - EETEEAER
WHFABLDBBHRIKT - HEZT
T—FRkZZTFTF+HA=+—HIE
FE - WERIRBRAERDRREE
FEATIRAE KT 2 5K -

AEENTREETSARTEABESFEIE
Pl RREEEEFBEAINREEEE
EAMEEEE—HRHIERAESFTE
([2HEesEl]) - BELFE A —IBH
BUZTEABTENEEETRIKEE -
BERELTE  EXREEESEA
ZEBHABRANSKHETEHK &
A WA _EBR A30,000/8 7T © A&
VB Z BN o

AL ERBRESBELMERTRE
FEB -BE_ZT_—FR_T_TF+
ZAZTHLEFE BRG]
RO RREERARBKF 2GR -
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@ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) ({2 =L ——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)
12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 12. EEMERSREE AEFH M
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
12.1 Directors’ emoluments 12.1 EE#ME
Executive directors and independent non-executive HWITEERBYIENTESE
directors:
2021 —E-—-F
Salaries, Contribution
allowances & to defined
Directors’  benefits in  Discretionary  contribution
fees kind bonus plan Total
g 20 EEHR
EzHe RENAE B FHEIfS EH)

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBRTR ARETZ ARMTz ARMTz  ARETx

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin RRELE - 2,865 - 15 2,880

Mr. Luo Zhangguan BERELLE - 554 - 44 598

Independent non-executive BUEHTES

directors

Mr. Lo Wai Hung BRELE 219 - - - 219

Mr. Fok Chi Tat, Michagl EFERE 189 - - - 189

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong FRREE 189 - - - 189
597 3,419 - 59 4,075
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (Bt2=—F——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 12. EEMERSREEASHH
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S (#8)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
12.1 Directors’ emoluments (continued) 121 EEME (8)
Executive directors and independent non-executive HITESERBIIIFPITES
directors:
2020 —E-EHE
Salaries, Contribution
allowances & to defined
Directors’ benefitsin  Discretionary  contribution
fees kind bonus plan Total
e 28 ERM
B2e  REWAE BB R @5t

RMB'O00  AMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
NRRTT  ARRTL  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR

Executive directors e

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin RRERE - 3,078 - 16 3,089

Mr. Luo Zhangguan EERis - 480 - 27 507

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Mr. Lo Wai Hung EfERE 235 - - . 235

Mr. Fok Chi Tat, Michael ETERE 203 = = = 203

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong ERRERE 203 - - - 203
641 3,663 = 43 4,237

There were no arrangements under which a director EEENERNBEELRESF

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during EWMEINMES 22HE (T =

the year (2020: Nil). FE ) o

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above XA BBTEEMS =B

were paid for their services in connection with the EBREFEBANT N AERN

management of the affairs of the Company and the ERIEHORBE M o EXFR

Group. The emoluments of the Independent Non- DIMBESIERITEESMS A

executive Directors shown above were paid for BEEIRAANREESEMSA -

their services as Directors of the Company.
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@ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) ({2 =L ——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 12. EEMERGREEASHM
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S (%)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
12.2 Five highest paid individuals 12.2 AEREH AL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the AEEFNAEZRFALTEE
highest in the Group for the year included two MG (ZE-FF - MEB) EF -
(2020: two) directors whose emoluments are BEZMESERMFI212H 2
reflected in the analysis presented in Note 12.1. DMK - FRAEMGBT=E
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (ZZE-ZTF : =F) AL ZHE
(2020: three) individuals during the year are as U
follows:
2021 2020

—E--F ZZ-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He - EEMNEYR 1,957 2,309
Retirement scheme contributions RIKS T B 50 53

2,007 2,362
The emoluments fell within the following bands: ZEWMEBRT3A5R)

Number of individuals
EBE A"
2021 2020
=B _T_ZTF

Emolument bands < 48 3B
RMB1,000,001-RMB1,500,000 AR#1,000,0017T%E

AR #1,500,0007T 1 1
RMB500,001-RMB1,000,000 AR#500,001TE

AR#1,000,0007T - 1
RMBO-RMB500,000 AROTLE

AR #500,0007T 2 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FiISHiBExX

2021 2020
=F--F ZZ-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT
Current tax B EA T 18
The PRC — Enterprise Income Tax R — DERTST
— Tax for the year — REEHIA 21,210 30,317
The PRC — Land appreciation tax B — tHIERER
— Current year —AFEE 43,597 40,763
— Over provision in respect — BEFEBEERE (M)
of prior years (note) (34,010) S
9,587 40,763
Deferred tax (Note 32) EEBIE (K77£32)
— Charge for the year —AFEZH 2,412 2,956
Total income tax expense FrisBip 8% 33,209 74,036

note: Before completion of deregistration of a dormant and Kiat - ERGEHEEENREEZENBRRE
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary, Guangzhou Kinyang MEBFHEERRBRARZA B
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a tax clearance was BRBREFENER - ZEHXE
obtained from the tax bureau. It upheld and confirmed I HER LY FE A B B A EE A i3
ERGERE - fIEAREE U FIR
HORERENE (FBEF2HWE
4(ji)) - Bt - NEFEERE IR E
AR #34,010,0007T °

that a lower assessment rate of land appreciation tax
was applicable to the properties project rather than the
standard progressive rate (details please refer to Note
4(ii)) as provided by the Group previously. Therefore, an
amount of RMB34,010,000 for land appreciation tax was
reversed in current year.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting

13.

FEHRE% @
BERYRRERM R Ee RN

profit at applicable tax rates: R -
2021 2020
=B C—T_ZFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FR AREFT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELAT CaF), /B8 197,239 (116,132)
Income tax at the PRC income tax rate of 25%  1RFPEFT SRR R25%:T & 2 A5 H: 49,310 (29,033)
Tax effect of different taxation rates in HBigeiagE TRARE 2
other tax jurisdictions MR E (256) 422
Over provision in prior years BAFEBERE (34,010) -
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERHb G HisTE (2,178) (798)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PAMBHAZ BT E 5,689 9,149
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences AERHRESERE  BRG&
not recognised (3,000) 42,000
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised tax FANER ﬂ?iifﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁﬂﬁz
losses utilised this year B (7,357) (652)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AERREAREEBLHBFE
recognised 11,521 13,040
Tax effect of previously recognised allowable ERERANBERa R HETE
loss expired 6,608 18,874
Tax effect of share of result of an associate DME—HBERREE I HETE (32,428) (9,639)
Tax effect of reversal of previously recognised [0l % BT HER A N BT 1B 2 i AE  2
allowable loss 6,612 S
PRC land appreciation tax A £ S (E 43,597 40,763
Effect of PRC land appreciation tax hE T HIRER S (10,899) (10,190)
Income tax expense FEfiMAx 33,209 74,036
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERER M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in Mainland China has been calculated at the
rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rate
ranging from 30% to 60% (2020: 30% to 60%) on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including lease
charges of land use rights and all properties development
expenditures.

13.

FrE®BE X (@
—E-NE=A=-+—0 BEIE
ERB(-T—+ERE (BT (B+
5) EHER) (EFIER]) - 3| AR
BESH - GHERR-_T—N\E=A
—+NABBAKRLN KA TIE - FE
BEBREET  FAMEHIEENES
BB E S IT 0% FIl 45 428.25% 1)
BERMT - BB E ST H R RS
16.5%H) T R 4UF - REAFEHBAR
1o f 2 B R B S 4 408 FR16.5% )
BHik -

RABEERBIITH SRR SIFTS
CHEARAVBRERPIUTEKN - BH
MEMDBRIEMEEE 2 T ERBS
ML 16.5%MFHRAHE -

RS E 5 B A AR 2 TS B
BIORBEAFREMAFTERRTRFN - £3R
BED - 2B REHIER T1R25% (=
T_TF 1 25%) BiRFHE -

FRLHIEERBELWEEZER
(BNS8EMEMB BB A RS (8
BimFEREREBRANRMEMESE
B ) BRHEMREIONZEE0% (ZF
TETF  30%E60%) #U -
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‘) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ERRMEE
(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 —F=—F+=-A=+—HIFE)

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 14.
Basic earnings/(loss) per share

BEREFN (FHE)
BREXREF (FHE)

BRAEF (EB) HRBEARREES A
FE 15 5% Fl 49 A R #164,030,0007T (=
T T F : EEYHARK100,868,000
) MERNBBRITLBERZ NEFY
#10,293,136,554f% (= & — T £ :
10,293,136,5541% ) =+ & o

The calculation of earnings/(loss) per share is based on
the profit attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately RMB164,030,000 (2020: loss of
approximately RMB100,868,000) and on the weighted
average of 10,293,136,554 (2020: 10,293,136,554)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

SRBBEERN (FHE)
BE_Z-_—FR-_FT-"FTF+-_A=
T+—BIFE  ARARRBEEME
ERTEINNEERD  SREARES
SEER(BE) TEER -

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

There was no difference between basic and diluted
earnings/(loss) per share as the Company did not have
any dilutive potential shares outstanding during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWYE
2021 2020
—E--F C—EZ-ZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRMFT ARETT
At 1 January n—A—H 598,000 643,000
Additions NE - 930
Decrease in fair value NEER D (12,040) (45,930)
At 31 December nNt+t—_A=+—H 585,960 598,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
,%?/\ B S HR AR Y R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z —ZF-—F+_-A=+—HIFZ)

BEWME &)
BEMERT A=+ ARAYNE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15.

The analysis of the net carrying amount of investment

properties according to lease periods as at 31 December EFEINTEAT -
were as follows:
2021 2020
=B _"Z_ZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFIT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: MREBRINEE
Lease of between 10 to 50 years FHEANF10E 505 585,960 598,000

The fair value of the investment properties of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were assessed by B.l.
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified valuer. B.l.
Appraisals Limited is @ member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors. For financial reporting purpose, discussions
and review of valuation processes and results are held
amongst the Group’s senior management and officers
of relevant operation departments and the independent
professional valuer. The results are being directly reported
back to the executive directors of the Company.

The valuation for investment properties was arrived at
by considering the capitalised income derived from the
existing tenancies and the reversionary potential of the
properties or, where appropriate by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in
similar locations and conditions.

Majority investment properties of the Group are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further summary
details of which are included in Note 37.

REBZIREMER-_T-_—FR=
—EFE+ A=+ —AZATFELSE
AERGEEMRBEETEERA WE
B RIABREFEERAGDAESIE
MEBEeMKE - RETHBRE  HE
BERERBAEESREREERAH
LENFIBE LB HEGEEM R &L
e HEERINEERARRBITE
EER -

REMFEGHEEDEERBHEVEENE
KA A R EEFBATE N (058
M) 2ZHRRMLE AR T EEYER
SERNTIGERMAET -

AEERBHOREMEDRBLEHE
HWHETE=DT BHEFBZE—IRE
EOFEST -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 —F=—F+=-A=+—HIFE)

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, investment properties of
approximately RMB551,960,000 (2020: RMB563,000,000)
were pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities
granted to a subsidiary of the Group to the extent of
RMB157,256,000 (2020: RMB177,976,000).

The following table presents the Group’s investment
properties measured at fair value in the consolidated
statements of financial position in accordance with the
fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy groups the
investment properties into three levels based on the
relative reliability of significant inputs used in measuring
the fair value of the investment properties. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available; and

= Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

HARMESEER DT 2021 FFHK

15.

REWE (#)
RZFBE-_—F+-A=+—H HAR
¥551,960,000L (ZZEZFF: AR
#563,000,0007T) K% & ¥ ¥ B K 17
THRIT - W AEE —HEMRBAFE
Bz —miRTELE AR ¥157,256,000
T (ZZEZZTF: AR¥177,976,000
JT) °

TRENAKERBERAFERRIRES
MBARKRAFEFEZREYE -
BREMERBFAEZZREVERLFE
FTRAEABABE 2 HE A ERERR
FEBRND /=M - RFERRIEIERA
D&

- FH:HRAEEZEERMEHR
B CREHE)

-  FH:E-RABREHMEAIN
WEEBEMSEARE  UE
EREBXEEIBR 2B ASE -
BEBREZBABBLETISE
B R

- EZ XIEUBEMEMEH
BEREZEERARE (BER
RZBARIE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z —ZF-—F+_-A=+—HIFZ)

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. REYE &)
The Group’s investment properties stated at fair value in REFREBH  REBELSGAMEGACR
the consolidated statements of financial position at each RUAFEINERZIKREYDES BATA
reporting date is grouped into the fair value hierarchy as FERT
follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B et I st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARMTRT ARETT ARETR

Investment properties FH D N Y
located in Guangzhou, the PRC & &%
At 31 December 2021 RZE—_—%F
+=A=+—AH - - 585,960 585,960
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— E-M E= #ET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFiT ARETFT AREFITT AREFT
Investment properties P AR B E N &Y
located in Guangzhou, the PRC & &%
At 31 December 2020 RIE_TF
+=-—RA=+—H S S 598,000 598,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z _—ZF-—F+_-A=4+—HIFZ)

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. REWE (&)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements F=HKAFEFEER
2021 B
Relationship of unobservable
Valuation techniques  Unobservable input Range inputs to fair value
fhERT BEBRE BAYE §E ®IBEH\BERATENER
Investment Market approach - Market rent RMB69-RMB210  The higher the market rent,
properties in Guangzhou, investment method per square meter the higher the value
the PRC
HEIEMEENE ik - RE%E [iikriika BYARARBOOTE TWHHEHR ATEES
ARE2107T
Reversionary yield 4.5%-6.85%  The higher the reversionary yield,
the lower the value
BHEREE ERkakEs  ATEHE
2020 —E-EHF
Relationship of unobservable
Valuation techniques  Unobservable input Range inputs to fair value
HERD BEBRZBAYE §E SiBEEZB\HBEEATENER
Investment Market approach - Market rent RMB70-RMB225  The higher the market rent,
properties in Guangzhou, investment method per square meter  the higher the value
the PRC
REENEENE k- RE% ik BYARARMIOTE WRHEHER ATEER
ARB25T
Reversionary yield 5%-6.75%  The higher the reversionary yield,
the lower the value
ERlEE ERkhakds  ATELE

HARMESEEER AT 2021 FFi
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z —ZF-—F+_-A=+—HIFZ)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The movements during the year in the balance of these
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

15. BREWE (&)
E=R{ATFEHBER (8)

2021 2020
B ZZ-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AE®TFTT
Investment properties located F A N Y
in Guangzhou, the PRC: BEYE
At 1 January n—HR—H 598,000 643,000
Additions NE - 930
Decrease in fair value NEERD (12,040) (45,930)
At 31 December ®n+=-—A=+—H 585,960 598,000
Fair value adjustment of investment properties is WEMENATLERABNGEEEBERE

recognised as “fair value changes on investment
properties” on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

f2ERARRZ [REYWEZ A FE

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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@ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z _—ZF-—F+_-A=4+—HIFZ)

16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. BMEKZHE
Furniture,
fixture
Leasehold and office Motor

improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEYE B £8

£ RPEAERE "E #@gt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ANEETT ARETT ARETR

Cost B
At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZF—F—H 7,171 2,697 7,200 17,068
Exchange realignment [ 5 % ©) (8) = (11)
Additions NE 1,546 1,164 374 3,084
Transfer to disposal group BB EHEABIEHE
classified as held-for-sale &) HE 4R - (54) = (54)

At 31 December 2020 and \\:7_7¢+ A=+—H

1 January 2021 —T-_—%-H-H 8,714 3,799 7,574 20,087

Exchange realignment D{Sﬂ% U] (4 = (5)

Additions NE - 400 199 599
At 31 December 2021 WZE-_—F+-RA=+—H 8,713 4,195 7,773 20,681

Deduct: accumulated o B ERAESSE
depreciation and
impairment loss

At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZF—F—H 7,160 2,426 4,138 13,724
Exchange realignment [ 5 5% ©) (8) = (11)
Depreciation e 315 424 1,127 1,866
Transfer to disposal group BB EHEAKIEHE

classified as held-for-sale  HIH &R = (14) 5 (14)

At 31 December 2020 and \\:7_7¢+ A=+—H

1 January 2021 k-Z-—%—Ff—H 7,472 2,828 5,265 15,565
Exchange realignment [E 5 A% U] (4 = (5)
Depreciation e 309 269 1,173 1,751
At 31 December 2021 R-E-_—&+-A=+—H 7,780 3,093 6,438 17,311
Net book value IREFE
At 31 December 2021 R_Z-_—F+-A=+—H 933 1,102 1,335 3,370
At 31 December 2020 N_ZE-_ZF+-A=1+—H 1,242 971 2,309 4,522
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e MR ERER M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z —ZF-—F+_-A=+—HIFZ)

17. EFRAEEE

Leased properties

HENE
RMB’000
AR¥TFT
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-—-F+=-A=+-—-H
Carrying amount (note (i) REE (Aa0) 5,264
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-BF+=-A=+—8H
Carrying amount BREE 1,591
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z--F+=-A=+—HLFE
Depreciation charge FELH (1,591)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZF+-A=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge WEXH (1,592)
note: Bia -
0] Additions to the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 0) REBEE-ZT-_—F+=-A=+—H1

during the year ended 31 December 2021 were

RMB5,264,000 (2020: Nil).

FE -FHEEEAMEEERNR
B AARKS5264,000C (ZE-F

FrE)-
2021 2020
—E--F —TEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFr
Expense relating to short-term leases ERREEE A% 602 577
Total cash outflow for leases MEHRe B 2,543 2,426

AEBEEBHAE RIS HER AR
MEER/ERAE - ZFHE-—RAX
HARRERREA LS =FAY
EITFAR 2 P EIRSK -

The Group has obtained the right to use property as its
office through tenancy agreements. The leases typically
run for an initial period of three years from the end of
reporting period and without break-clause for early
termination.
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@ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z _—ZF-—F+_-A=4+—HIFZ)

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. RM—REBERAT 2R
2021 2020
B —Z2-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFTE ARETIT

Cost of investment adjusted for share of result LUk HEZ 55 — B & A 7

of associate after acquisition RIBHIWER AR 2 483,452 353,742
Less: unrealised profit in associate JB - RABEE N E) 2 R IEE T (913) (2,196)
482,539 351,546

The following list contains the particulars of the associate TREFIBILE R BHIEEE A FFS ¢

which is a private company:

Proportion of
ownership interest
BERERLA
Held by a
subsidiary
Group’s  Held by the of the
effective Company Company
Country of Paid-in interest KAFZ  Principal activities and

Name registration capital KEE N WEARF  places of operations

28 HER BlER BRER 55 BE  IEEEREEMY

Guangzhou Xintian Properties The PRC RMB710,503,607 30% - 30%  Property development

Development Limited ) (i), (i & (v) B ARE710,503,6077T in the PRC

BN AEHERREBR AT RPEFENFER

0 ) Hxm

notes: B -

(i) The English name of the associate referred in these 0] AT ETM A2 EXERE - it
consolidated financial statements represent management’s ZREMBWMEMRRZBERTZ
best effort in translation of the Chinese name of the associate EXEZBRABTEERENHZERTZ
as no English name has been registered or available. X ETBETIEZ B ENRE -

(ii) The statutory financial statements of the associate are not (ii) ZHE RN B 2 A ERR I IE R E
audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED. BRI ESAT AR A REITEZ

(iif) The associate is registered as limited company under the (iii) ZHE NAIRBEPBEEAMAER
PRC law. NG

(v)  Guangzhou Xintian Properties Development Limited is vy BENFXEHEZEBRAANF
operating in the PRC and is a strategic partner for the BiE RAEBEHEREEBNE
Group in developing the property development business. BEEERH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z —ZF-—F+_-A=+—HIFZ)

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18. R —RB& N A% (&)

Summarised financial information in respect of the BREBERR UK ERBEHH W
associate is set out below. The summarised financial T U THBERSIZHEREEENG
information below represents amounts shown in WMEEBREZBE R IEHRRA
the associate's financial statements prepared in FIRZEFE

accordance with HKFRSs:

Guangzhou Xintian

Properties
Development Limited
EMNFREHERRE
BRAT

2021 2020

ZEBZ-F —Z-ZF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥EFIT AREFIT

Current assets (note) mEVEE (K:t) 2,401,166 2,461,839

Non-current assets ERBEE 518 450

Current liabilities RBAE 855,069 1,421,226

Non-current liabilities EMBBEE - =

Equity i da 1,546,615 1,041,063

Revenue U %5 1,171,741 721,981

Profit for the year F 2 F 505,552 183,759

Other comprehensive income Hip2mUWA - -

Total comprehensive income FEWAERE 505,552 183,759

Dividend received from the associate REBERNE RS - -

Reconcile to the Group’s interests BEAREEFFHE QT
in the associate SR

Gross amounts of net assets of the associate Ht& AR/ FEELEEE 1,546,615 1,041,063

Group’s effective interest AEEER#ER 30% 30%

Group’s share of net assets of the associate AEED(FBE AR EEFE 463,983 312,318

Goodwill BES 3,828 3,828

Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition WA EARNTE 15,641 37,596

Less: unrealised profit in associate o REEE AR 2 REIREF (913) (2,196)
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial ~ R4r& PR ER B EREE

statements 482,539 351,546
note: izt -

As at 31 December 2021, the associate had completed
properties held for sale, amounted to RMB208,867,000 (2020:
RMB390,784,000), stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.

R-ZE=—

F+_A=+—H BEIaNH

BEHE 2R IYE B ARK208,867,000
T (ZE=ZF : AR¥390,784,0007T) * #%
BAEENDTERAT » BUKAF ] &
IFHEME ZBREEAR -
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E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 —F=—F+=-A=+—HIFE)

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18. R—REIEZ AT 2 S (&)

Reconciliation of share of result of an associate is DIE—MBENR CEE 2 HREEN
disclosed below: T :

2021 2020
—E--F =T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT

Profit for the year F & A 505,552 183,759
Group’s effective interest AEBEER#ER 30% 30%
Group’s share of profit before fair value BB AT ERAENFE

adjustments at acquisition AEBSEEH 151,665 55,127
Change in effect of fair value adjustments WiER AT ERARZENEE)

at acquisition (21,955) (16,571)
Group’s share of profit RERDE 5T 129,710 38,556
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z =% ——

19. BERFYRE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

e MR ERER M R

F+=A=+—AIEE)

2021 2020

=F--F ZZ-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT AREFIT

Properties under development BREAME 2,003,789 1,564,914

All properties under development are located in the PRC.
Land use rights are held on leases over 40 years.

As at 31 December 2021, properties under development
with an amount of RMB184,727,000 (2020:
RMB370,538,000) were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s borrowings granted to the Group. Under the
facility agreements, the sales proceeds of the properties
were required to repay the related borrowings.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, properties
under development with an amount of RMB44,336,000
(2020: RMB12,438,000) were transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Amounts of properties under development expected
to be recovered within one year from the end of the
reporting period is approximately RMB596,950,000 (2020:
RMB213,525,000) and those after one year from the end
of reporting period is approximately RMB1,406,839,000
(2020: RMB1,351,389,000).

A reversal of impairment loss of RMB12,000,000 (2020:
impairment loss of RMB168,000,000) were recorded for
properties under development and included in reversal
of impairment loss/(impairment loss) of properties under
development on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

PIBERRTYEGUNTE - FAELH
8 AR THHIER B 405 -

RZEBEZ—F+-_A=+—8 ' 84
AR #£184,727,00000 (Z T - T & -
A R #370,538,0007T) K% E P ¥ %
ERFEANEEEREBRZERS -
BERERS  WENLEMSRIEAR
EEBRAER -

HE-_ZT-_—F+ZA=+—HLF
€ &% A8 AR%44,336,000T (=ZF
—ZTF : AR¥12,438,00070) HEE
PYECEBRERIEFHECERIY
%o

BEAPVEERRNRERARET —FA
Yz [l & %8 49 A R #596,950,0007T (=
T-_ZTF: ARH¥213,5250005T)
RBMEBRBH —FRKENARE
1,406,839,0007C (ZZT =T F : ARK
1,351,389,0007T) °

ERTYUEGSHREBERDARK
12,000,000 (ZE=FF : BEERE
A R #168,000,0007T) I R 4R A 18 %
XEDLERPYERESERD
CREEE) R
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21.

B ERR M

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (HZ—-F——

F+ZA=+—AIFE)

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR
SALE

20. FEHEZERTYRE

2021 2020
—E--F ZZ-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Completed properties held for sale, BIEHEZERTIYE - KA
at cost 673,460 820,851

The completed properties held for sale are located in the
PRC. Land use rights are held on leases over 40 years.

As at 31 December 2021, completed properties held
for sale with an amount of RMB359,166,000 (2020:
RMB528,224,000) were pledged as collateral for the
borrowings granted to the Group. Under the facility
agreements, the sales proceeds of the properties were
required to repay the related borrowings.

Amounts of completed properties held for sale expected
to be recovered within one year is approximately
RMB359,057,000 (2020: approximately RMB583,478,000)
and after one year is approximately RMB314,403,000

FEREZCRIMEDMRNPE - £
B L AR THEIERBA05F -

RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—8H" ﬁ%ﬁ%
A R #359,166,0007T (Z B - &

A R #528,224,0007T) E@M’Eﬁ%z
ERIYECEIFEAREBERIRT
BRZEBER - BERERE  WED
HEMSRIEAEEMRBER -

BEHE2ERTYHE 2 FIBEHN—
FRE L LA R359,057,0007T
—EFF: ) AR ¥583,478,000
7L) R—F &I E4 A K#314,403,000

(2020: RMB237,373,000). T(ZZE T F: AR ®¥237,373,000
JL) °
TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BRI
2021 2020
—E--F T _FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT
Trade receivables FEUW R =X
— from property management —REMEER = 83
— from property investment —REMERE 4,957 7,038
4,957 7,121
Less: allowance for expected credit losses B TEHAMEE RS (276) (325)
Trade receivables — net FEMWER R — JF1E 4,681 6,796
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z =%

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The directors of the Company considered that the fair
value of trade receivables are not materially different from
their carrying amounts because these amounts have short
maturity periods in their inspection.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, trade
receivables are mainly arose from rental income from
investment properties. Proceeds are to be received in

21.

,%?\/\ BF 75 R 2R P =t

—Ft+ A=t —HILFE)

FE W AR X (

A 7§$mﬁrW$ 2 AT EEE
REELMEAZR - DaNEERE
ZEREINEHREIES -

RZB-_—F+-_HA=t—BR=-F=
TFE+_A=+—H BURERTER
BIREMERS WA - FAFHRIBREAR

accordance with the terms of related tenancy agreements. 8 1H & 17 % B0 (6 SRUER ©
Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables EWER B EEEE 2 BEFERE
are recorded using allowance accounts on trade R R B EERECE: - FFB0 T -
receivable is as follows:
2021 2020
—E--F C—E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
At the beginning of the year FH) 325 239
Allowance for expected credit loss recognised 2R EHE E BB BiE 107 1,231
Less: uncollectible amounts written off o B 2 A Uk B FRIE (156) (1,145)
At the end of the year FR 276 325

At each reporting date,
receivables for evidence of expected credit loss on both

the Group reviews trade

an individual and collective basis. As at 31 December
2021, the Group’s trade receivables of approximately
RMB156,000 (2020: RMB1,145,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the management assessed that the
receivables were not expected to be recovered.

REERSRE AR ER REE
MJF&“MQEET %Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%)&ﬂa
BEZE R —F+-_A=+—
H - AEE R ME R E2ERT R
AR#156,000C (ZTE=ZZTF : AR
#1,145,0007T) 3R A E o @8 7B E
MEURREBRRENEFER - &
BEFHRBZERRRT R
|§| °
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21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Based on the terms of related tenancy agreements or
property sales and purchase agreements, the ageing
analysis of the trade receivables net of allowance for
expected credit losses is as follows:

FEWBRRR (1)

IR T8 M1 B 518 18 48 o0 B O B 2K 4 4R
BRASYES SRR G BRI
T

2021 2020

—E--F C—EZ-FTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AEETFT

0 to 90 days 0Z90H 4,681 6,186
91 to 180 days 91%E180H - 124
181 to 365 days 181%365H - 486
4,681 6,796

The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base being large and unrelated.

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB37,000 (2020: RMB705,000) which are past
due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
none of the balance (2020: RMB610,000) has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default.
These balances were related to a large number of diversified
customers that had a good track record of credit with the
Group.

The Group is holding rental deposits from tenants as
collateral in respect of trade receivables for rental income.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, all of the Group’s
trade receivables are denominated in RMB, no interest is
charged on trade receivables.

HARMESEEER AT 2021 FFi

HREFPEMBEABEEEME  AtE
FEERBRAR

RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H  &&E
ErRWEFREHBCEREEEARA
R¥37000c (ZE_Z2F: AR
705,0007T) WEIE - RImE B EE @
H - REBBMESRT  BIERR (=
Z-FF: AR610,0007T) & % H
Q0B HIA L - BETHARIEEL - ZFHE
HEXETERENEFPER  ZERXFP
RAEE BT EELHERLT -

AREE A EE WA Z FEWIRFFFA K
BHEFPHNEEREERERM

RZEBE-FFR-_F-_—F+=-HA=+
—B - AEEBEMAERKEREUAREK
FHE - W EUER FURERF 8. -
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

BARE - 20 R AW

OTHER RECEIVABLES £y

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFIT
Prepaid value-added tax TEfTIEER 59,969 57,116
Prepaid withholding tax recoverable (note (a)) ~ FEfIAIUgEIBINEL (K152 (a)) 9,001 -

Other receivables, prepayment and deposits ~ HAbfEUEERR - TR ZIAE R
(note (b)) & (Kt b) 135,957 117,228
204,927 174,344
Less: Non-current portion W FERNEREE (6,229) -
Current portion BIEREL 5 198,698 174,344

All of the current prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

note:

(@)

The amount represented the prepaid withholding tax of
deregistration of an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary,
Guangzhou Kinyang Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. upon the re-investment made to a new company
registered in the PRC, the amount prepaid would refund
to the Group which agreed with the tax bureau. As at the
date of this report, it was fully refunded.

[t mainly includes prepaid construction cost, residences
maintenance fund, rental and sundry deposits. As at 31
December 2021, advance receipts from customers for the
sale of properties under development of approximately
RMB113,596,000 (2020: RMB104,125,000) were placed
in Xuzhou Real Estate Management Service Center, a
PRC local government authority, for security purpose.
The Group can request for withdrawal of the balances
in accordance to agreed procedures for the payment of
construction cost.

FrAEBVEAN IR - Be REMERKR
RIERE—FRKE -

Wizt -

(a)

ZAREREZEEWME AR EMNES
FiEZRBR AR BN B
FARETTBRERNBENEHEEN
B EEBE R E - BN FIER
REEAEHE - RAREDH - B
REC2HRE -

FTERRBMNEERAN  FELE
He  Hek@EmEkes N2
—F+ - A=1+—8B" s
BRHRYWEATFREBRHARE
113,596,000 (ZZE_FF : AR
#4104,125,00070) EF ARIMNEE
EEREH O (PR BFI)
ERESZA - AEBEFRESL 1
BRAZHERFERREZEH
B o
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23. CONTRACT COSTS 23. BRI
2021 2020
—EC--F —EFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETFT
Incremental costs to obtain contracts (note) MEAKNRRERA (A1) 700 2,356

note:

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
relate to the incremental sales commissions paid to employees
and selling agents.

24. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial asset mandatorily measured at FVTPL:

24.

it -
RZE-Z—FR-_ZF-_FF+-_A=+—H
WEAR AKX AEAREE REEREY
(RIS EReER] -
BAFEFTABENEHEE

BERAFEFABGSNEREE

2021 2020

—E--F Z—ZZT-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AREFIT
Financial asset at FVTPL (note(a)) BAFEFABSNEREE

(Hist(a) 7,920 =

note: izt -
(@) The financial asset at FVTPL under level 3 fair value (a) E=RAFEFENERAFETA

measurement represents the expected value from the
winding up of an indirect wholly owned subsidiary,
Guangzhou Huangpu Caming Real Estate Development
Limited (“Caming”), a limited liability company registered
in the PRC.

HARMESEER DT 2021 FFHK
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FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The Group lodged an application to the Intermediate
People’s Court of Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province
(the “Court”) for the voluntarily wind up of Caming.
With effect from 9 December 2021, being the date of
appointment of liquidators by the Court, the Group
lost control over Caming. As at this date, Caming had
cash equivalent of RMB3,000 and other payable in the
amount of RMB724,000. As at 31 December 2021, the
liquidation was still in progress. The carrying value of the
financial asset of RMB7,920,000 was determined by the
Directors based on the discounted expected net proceed
from the result of liquidation of Caming. It composed
of the expected gross cash inflow from sales of the
fully impaired inventories held by Caming, the expected
liquidation expenses and levy, and expected total taxation
for the liquidation of RMB32,708,000, RMB5,326,000 and
RMB19,462,000, respectively.

The Directors expected that the liquidation process would
be completed during the year ended 31 December 2022
and the expected net proceed would be received herein.

Upon the lost of control over the subsidiary, the net
liabilities of RMB721,000 was derecognised and a financial
asset at FVTPL of RMB7,920,000 was recognised. A gain
of approximately RMB8,641,000 was recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2021. Net cash
outflow from winding up the subsidiary was recorded as
cash flows from investing activities in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

24.

EATFEFABRNEREE
(%&)
AEBEMEREBEMNMHRBRARE
Bt ([VEBT])) REBERBEREK - BZ
TS+ _-_ANB (AEREZTER
AZB) BES  REBXEHSKD
THE - RZB e ERSESE
YA R¥3,000 M EMENREAR
#7204 000 - R-ZBE-_—F+-_A=
+—8 BRDEETY - SREED
BRI E A R¥7,020,0007t VR EER
BeRERERNAREBBMEHREF
HMET HBAHESKEENEERE
GFEMEFBRESRALE B FRHA
T RBEBRIEERBIBRREAER -
o Bl A A R ¥32,708,0007T * AR ¥
5,326,00070 & A R#19,462,0007T °

EETRMBRREFANBE_T__F
TZA=1t—BIEFERK - MBHM
SRR BRSO AF UER

REEZHWB AR ZES#EE - 8EF
FEARM721,000 & IFER - &
AFEFTAEZENEBREEARK
7,920,000t R - HE_TZ—F +
ZA=Z+—BHLEFE KIHARE
8,641,000;t RIEH= TR - ERMME A
AZBEeREFENGAEESRERD
BAREEBKIRERE -
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24. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 24. RAFEFTABENEREE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (%)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets TRENAEBREAFERNNREGS
measured at fair value in the consolidated statements MHEMRRARBRATEFEZERMEE -
of financial position in accordance with the fair value TREERBHEXSeREEATE
hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy groups the financial FrRAERE ASBUR CHE A ZEERA
assets into three levels based on the relative reliability of FEERD B=ZH o ANFERAEBIEA
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of the TE& -
financial assets. The fair value hierarchy has the following
levels:
= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active = F—H: HREEZERMS R
markets for identical assets; B (REHAR)
= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included — EH BRI ERE LA
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset, Eﬁé?&ﬁ?ﬁﬁ SEASE W&
and not using significant unobservable inputs. Un FHEREFER 2B AR -
observable inputs are inputs for which market data LR 2 ABB T EMISE
are not available; and B R
= Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on = FE=4  WIEUNEBERMETIEH
observable market data (unobservable inputs). BREZEER ABE (BEH
RIBABE) o
The Group’s financial assets stated at fair value in the REREBH  AEBELZEAFEAR
consolidated statements of financial position at each RUARNFEIEZEMEED BATA
reporting date is grouped into the fair value hierarchy as FERR
follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& E=R H=H oy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AREFn AEETFT AREFT
Financial assets at FVTPL AP EFABRNERHEE
At 31 December 2021 R-E_—F+-A=1+—H - - 7,920 7,920

HARMESEEER AT 2021 FFi




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z —ZF-—F+_-A=+—HIFZ)

24. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 24. BAFEFTABERNEMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (%)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements FE=HKAFEFEER
2021 —E-—F
Relationship of unobservable
Valuation technique Unobservable input  inputs to fair value
HERD EFRECBABE EIEECRARERATENBE
Financial asset at FVTPL Discounted cash flow Discount rate: 10.5%  The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair
method value.
BROTEFAEEZNeREE MRRERERNE BRE : 10.5% BREEE - ATEEE-
The movements during the year in the balance of these FRN - BZRAFESFENEREFHN
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: T
2021 2020
e —ETCETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AE®TT

Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFAEGZNEREE 7,920 =
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 7,920 =

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25. BEeRBeEEYUREEHR

PLEDGED DEPOSIT 7
Cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposit include RekReEBYURBEERZEBEE
the following components: AT #ERCER D -
2021 2020
B ZZFTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARETFT
Cash at bank and in hand SRITRFHEES 222,250 109,991
Pledged deposit for borrowing AESERHERTIZS 3,386 3,386
225,636 113,377
Less: Amount shown under current asset 3§ : RiREVEEE [ FIRHE 58 (225,636) (109,991)
Amount shown under non-current asset RIEMBEEER NI TS - 3,386

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2021



Cf_ﬁgiﬁ T e~

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 —F=—F+=-A=+—HIFE)

25.

26.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSIT (continued)

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group
approximately RMB220,662,000 (2020: approximately
RMB109,127,000) was denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

As at 31 December 2021, RMB3,386,000 (2020:
RMB3,386,000) of pledged deposit for borrowing is
classified as current (2020: non-current) asset as the
corresponding loan is classified as current (2020: non-
current) liability based on the loan terms.

The bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.15% to 0.4% (2020: 0.1% to 0.45%) per
annum. The pledged deposits carry interest at market
rate of 0.35% (2020: 0.35%) per annum. The pledged
deposits will be released upon the settlement of relevant
borrowings from financial institution.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE/LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

On 29 December 2020, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into an agreement to dispose of one of the
subsidiaries under the property development segment
with a cash consideration of RMB297,706,000 and there
was a balance receivable from the disposed subsidiary of
RMB42,878,000. They were fully received during the year
ended 31 December 2021. 43%, 30% and 17% equity
interest of the subsidiary was transferred to the buyer as
at 8 January 2021, 19 February 2021 and 22 September
2021 respectively.

HARMESEER DT 2021 FFHK

25.

26.

ReRASE/EYURE KT
7 @
AEBHFRITERRESERBIEFERR P E
BARITUARE TAR®]) sHEZ
FIEH A R #220,662,0007T (ZF —
TE - HARKE109,127,0007T) ° AR
BAETRBHLRBRZEY - RIBFHIN
MEEIRIEOI RAEE SEMTESIER
T ASBERTSBCRENEITINE
EBZRITEBARBHBBINE -

R-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8  BES
B2 ERRE+ AR%S3,386,000
T(ZEZTF : AR%3,386,0007T)
PEERE (ZTE_ZF : R B
E - AERERERIRERKRDEA
nE (ZZETF - ERE) BE -

RITHEBUATISF R B - FRENTF
0.15%%F04% (Z T - T F : 01%=E
0.45%) - B B H 1L & 1% F 7 £0.35%
—E-TF :0.35%) W5 R RET
B o BERMZS B RS BEELSE
BRI FRIE ARBR KA -

SEAFEHENEE BED
BERARFFHEEERBNER

RZFEZZFTEF+ZA=Z+NB - A2
AINBRARAY —EHHEAARE
297,706,000t W 3E & KB H E W ¥ %
BODBTH—HKEBAR AEHEN
B~ E e e s sh s AR 42,878,000
TeoBETE-_—F+=-A=+—HL
FE - ZEFBEEE2HEMKE - ZMHBRQ
A]43% ~ 30% R17T%EE D B R ==
——F®—ANR -ZZE=—%F=A+Ah
AN —FhAhA-+-_HEZETE
73 o
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26. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 26. DEBBELENESE HH
SALE/LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH EaEELESESENAR
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR (48)

SALE (continued)
Details of disposal is set out in the Company’s HESEEH N AL jg/\ E-oFTF4—
announcement on 13 November 2020 and circular on 10 B+=Br bR -_E-—ZT€+-A+
December 2020. BH2Zi@HK o
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the AEARELYENEESHEERBE
production line classified as held for sale are as follows: B EERERMT :
31 December
2020
—EBEF
+=A=+—8
RMB’000
ARBTFT
Plant and equipment B N& 40
Properties under development BERPYE 589,729
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERTRIE « e REMEKRFKIE 8,046
Cash and cash equivalents BEeMkBEEEEY 8
Total assets classified as held for sale PEABFEHEZLEE 597,823
Trade payables FETER K 192,637
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R B fh FE SR IE 14
Borrowings (Note 31) &R (H1a31) 64,723
Total liabilities classified as held for sale PEABELHEZHRARE 257,374
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27. TRADE PAYABLES 27. BENERM
Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the ENERFIREZH 2RE®ROTTT ¢
trade payables were as follows:
2021 2020
—EZ-F C—E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT
0 to 90 days 0£90H 454,261 473,626
91 to 180 days 91£180H 929 1,156
Over 180 days HBiE180H 859 846
456,049 475,628
All of the trade payables are expected to be settled within FrEREMNBERTEHER —FREBRAE
one year or are repayable on demand. The trade payables RERREE - BNER—MREMAER
are normally due immediately from the date of billing. HAFERNBF B B S A o
28. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. EtEARHMEMNTIE
2021 2020
—EB-—-F C—ZT-ZFfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT
Rental received in advance from tenants and  FAETER 2 B4 R EMine
other deposits 11,483 11,193
Tax and other levies HEREMmESE 1,157 1,606
Amount due to an associate (Note 41(b)) FET— & A B FIE
(Hiat41mb)) 112,173 112,219
Amount due to a director of the Company ENARAT—REENIAE
(Note 41(b)) (Htz41(b) 1,533 586
Amount due to a former subsidiary under FERHEERIEFE NRIMEB R A
winding up process Z A 2,050 S
Other payables and accruals (note) HMERNFIEREREA
(Hfat) 29,728 16,015
158,124 141,619

FrB R ER RE RN FARRAGR
—FRBEBFHARBEREEER -

All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

Biat : ERERTEERNBEEES AR
14,778,000 (Z T T F : ) -
EEtE S TTHREY - MEKA M
TEJEF RO -

note: It included provision of compensation for delay delivery
of RMB14,778,000 (2020: nil), accrued salaries,
administrative expenses, finance costs and sundry

creditors.
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CONTRACT LIABILITIES BREE
2021 2020
—E--F —TETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF ARETT
Receipt in advance from customers BPIERHR
in respect of property development (EB@WEZED)— BNEE S

segment — current portion

All the contract liabilities are expected to be settled
within the Group's normal operating cycle and the whole
balances are classified as current.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, additions of
receipt in advance from customers and interest expenses
in respect of property development segment amounted
to RMB430,771,000 (2020: RMB389,115,000) and
RMB38,900,000 (2020: RMB19,264,000), respectively.

The revenue recognised in the current year in respect of
contract liabilities brought forward was RMB173,284,000
(2020: RMB118,254,000).

814,653 518,266

FIEANAERINASERELER
HI%E)5 - 2RI BARRNE -

HE-_T-_—4F+=-_A=+—HL1*F
B WEMEERDBNEFEMNRKE
B 5 X 9 Bl 18 o0 A R #430,771,000
T(ZEZFF: AR¥389,115,000
Jt) & AR #38,900,000c (ZE - F
F: AR¥19,264,0007T) °

AR AHNBBERAFEERZNE B
A R #173,284,0007C (ZE =T £ -
AR#E118,254,0007T) °
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29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 2. EHEE ®
Movements in contract liabilities EREEEE
2021 2020
—E--F —TEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Balance at 1 January —A—B&&% 518,266 228,141
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of AHBEBHRNERBVGAGHAE
recognising revenue during the year that was  HJANEE [ Ui 2 i 4>
included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the period (173,284) (118,254)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of AHEERPIEREYEEE R
receiving sales deposit related to KIS E RS Mg
sales of properties 430,771 389,115
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of EHEBERRRFBNFFERS
accruing interest expense on advances g 38,900 19,264
Balance at 31 December +-A=1+—B#% 814,653 518,266

The Group normally receives 1%-37% (2020: 2%-33%) of
the contract value as deposits from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreements. This advance
payment are recognised as a contract liabilities until the
properties are completed and legally assigned to the
customer. The rest of the consideration is typically paid
when legal assignment is completed.

In addition, the Group considers the advance payment
schemes contains significant financial component and
accordingly the amount of consideration is adjusted
for the effects of the time value of money take into
consideration the credit characteristic of the relevant
group entities. As this accrual increases the amount of
the contract liabilities during the period of construction, it
increases the amount of revenue recognised when control
of the completed property is transferred to the customer.

HARMESEEER AT 2021 FFi

EETTEERRE - ARE - RAES
W B A& 4 (B 8 81%537% (B =%
 : 0%ZE33%) {EBIRS o UL TN
ZARANMAR  EEPERTLFOESE
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B o

o AEERSENKFEBEEX
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES 30. HE&E®E
2021 2020
—B-—fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARM T ABEFIT
Lease liabilities FEAEERE :
payable:
Within one year —FRN 1,511 1,836
Within a period of R —FE T HER
more than one year but 4 2 BRI
not more than two years 3,753 -
5,264 1,836
Less: Amount due for B RREBREERET
settlement within MR+ = 1Iﬂ W
12 months shown under B HsEE
current liabilities (1,511) (1,836)
Amount due for settlement RIERBBERET
after 12 months IR+ E A %S
shown under non-current MEE 2518
liabilities 3,753 -
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied FE AT E B B8 I T 191 8 12 %R
to lease liabilities is 11% (2020: 11%). KEIN%B(ZE-TE : 11%) -
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31.

F 755 R 2= B

F+ZA=+—AIFE)

il s, ~R e T

BORROWINGS 31. &
2021 2020
—B- - _—T_THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Borrowings included in: HARTREZER
Secured bank loans repayable (note (a)) JE(EE 2 GIEFRITER (Mt @)

- within 1 year - —FR 133,176 26,437

— after 1 year but within 2 years — —FREMFENRN 14,960 133,176

— after 2 years but within 5 years —MERERFR 55,440 50,160

— after 5 years — AF% 73,656 103,176
Other secured loans repayable (note (b)) EEE EMBRBER (Hitb)

— within 1 year - —FRr 135,500 99,000

- after 1 year but within 2 years — —FREMFA - 182,600

— after 2 years but within 5 years —MERERFNR 150,000 150,000
Other unsecured loans repayable (note (c) FEEE M ERMER (#:7Ec)

— within 1 year - —FR - 64,723
Total interest-bearing borrowings FHEERERE 562,732 809,272
Less: Amount due within one year B RREBBEE NI —FR

shown under current liabilities 282 oA (268,676) (125,437)
Transfer to disposal group classified ERESHEARBIELENEE

as held for sale (Note 26) R (Hitee) = (64,723)

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities R IERBNBIEIE TRz £ 58 294,056 619,112

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020,

borrowings were all denominated in RMB.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (&%=

31. BORROWINGS (continued)

notes:

(@)

The Group has variable-rate bank borrowings which are
repayable within 1 year to 9 years (2020: 1 year to 10
years) and bearing interest at the People’s Bank of China
5 years loan base interest rate multiply by 110.60%
(2020: multiply by 70.60% to 110.60%) or plus 0.55%
inflated rate. Interest is repriced annually.

As at 31 December 2021, the effective interest rates
(which are also equal to contractual interest rates) on the
Group’s bank loans are ranged from 5.2% to 10% (2020:
5.2% to 8.1%) and secured by investment properties,
completed properties held for sale and properties under
development. Furthermore bank borrowing amounting
to RMB277,232,000 (2020: RMB312,949,000) was also
secured by personal guarantee from a director, who is
also a major shareholder of the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the effective interest rates on
Group’s other secured borrowings of RMB135,500,000
and RMB150,000,000 (2020: RMB281,600,000 and
RMB150,000,000) are fixed at 10.5% and 11.8%
respectively (2020: 9.5% and 11.8% respectively). The
borrowings were secured by completed properties held
for sale and properties under development, pledged
deposit, equity interest of Xuzhou Shiyou Logistics
Development Co. Ltd., Yangzhou Shiyou Logistics
Development Co. Ltd. and Guangzhou Xianzhuang
Properties Development Limited, personal guarantee
by a director of the Company, corporate and personal
guarantee provided by parties connected with the
aforementioned director.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s other unsecured
borrowings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

e MR ERER M R

— G+ A=+ AU ER)

31. B (&)

Wizt -

(@)

REBBEEZEBRITER AR —F
BEANF(ZZT=ZTF: —E+HF)R
&8 MR l/\EfE”ﬁE%‘f%gﬁ
FEFLA110.60% (ZFE=_FF : 3F
LA 70.60%ZE110.60%) 3k H10.55%
ZEBF KR - FIEBFEFE o

EA_%E:—EJr*H:Jr—El "B
ZKE@fE R EBEEFE (MEZE

a WJK) t’m F5.2%%E10% (=
T -TF 52%%E8.1%) WIAKRE
ME BIEHEZERIMERER
RV o AN - SRITIERAR
#277,232,000L (ZEZFF : A
R #312,049,00070) /A —ZEE
(MABARBINEERE) ZBAE
RIEHEHR o

RZZE=-Z—®%+=ZA=+—8"
EEASEBEHEMEEBERA
R %135,500,0000t & A K #
150,000,000 (= & = & £
A R #281,600,000T & A R ¥
150,000,0007T) < B FI & 5 5l @&
EA105%K11.8% (Z - FF :
DA E9.5%M11.8%) o & F T LA+
EHEZERTIMERERTPWE
BERFES  BMNEEYRERAR
DA BNEEYRERERA
BEMNmEEEHERZEERAF - K
REIEBSZEAER BHEREESH
BBz ATREZ AR REAER -

R-ZE-ZTF+-_A=+—H "  £&
FEMEKIFERSERR 22K
TR EKIFEE -

\‘En?.%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

72 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z _—ZF-—F+_-A=4+—HIFZ)

32.

DEFERRED TAX

The Group has total unrecognised tax losses
arising in Hong Kong and the PRC of approximately
RMB231,568,000 (2020:
RMB232,560,000). Regarding the accumulated
impairment loss of properties under development, an
amount of RMB324,000,000 (2020: impairment loss of
RMB336,000,000) was subject to the agreement with the
relevant tax authorities, that are available for offsetting

approximately

against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Under the EIT Law of PRC, the tax
losses could be carried forward for a maximum of five
years. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses which arose in subsidiaries with
unpredictability of future profit streams to absorb such
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the temporary
differences associated with the undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries have not been provided as the Group is
in a position to control the timing of reversal of these
differences and it is probable that such differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December
2021, the earnings of the Group’s PRC companies are
approximately RMB1,272,305,000 (2020: approximately
RMB1,082,054,000).

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purpose is as follows:

32. EIERHIE
AEMARATBRTEY RERHIE

18

& H 4 AR #231,568,0007T (=

T-TF : H) AR¥232,560,0007T) °
BERIDMEZRGTBEBEBEEIARK
324,000,000 (ZZE =T F : RES
1B A B #336,000,0007T) 5 A M@ %
WEREEZ  TREEHEZSERQR
ZARRERBEF o RIBHPEDEMRS
B% ZEBEEBEBEIAESEa AT -
1M 6 5% 5 I BB 1 R AR B 8RR 2% F1 Y

EENEHEZER -
RIEETHIABE -

AT e EEE

I 48 B BT B8 2 B K 0 Ik & K 4B A
ERCBECEHBAGELREG T
AR ASEENIEHZEER 2 EE
REAKZEEZER R ERRAED
@O  N_FE-_—F+-_A=+—
H AEEFEAGNAFNOABARE
1,272,305,0007C (Z T - T F © A
R #1,082,054,0007T) °

W FERMOEAITEMNG AR AEE
HEEHM AR EEEEE - MELEMEF
By KR — R - RIREFSHE
ENBERTLREE - R BHRE R
HWEERBEHRIDMAT

2021 2020

=B C_—T_FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FIT AREFT

Deferred tax asset BLEHIEEE (7,047) (20,267)
Deferred tax liability B IBEE 176,962 187,777
169,915 167,510
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z —ZF-—F+_-A=+—HIFZ)

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 32. EEBIE (@)
The net movements on deferred taxation liabilities/(assets) BERIBRE (BE) 2FEFHNT -
are as follows:
Fair value
adjustments
Accelerated Unrealised ~ Revaluation arising from
tax  Impairment contract of investment  acquisition of
depreciation of assets costs  properties  subsidiaries  Taxlosses Total
RyEHE
AER DAfELL
MERERE BENE SRR EfRENE  ATERE REER a3t
RMB000 RMB1000 AMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB1000 AMB000
NEETT  AEKTT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
As at 1 January 2020 RZE-FE-F-H 28476 (696) 152 71,249 103,833 38,445) 164,569
Exchange realignment i3S (19) - - - - - (15)
Deferred tax charged/credited) tothe AL /(1) AR
income statement during the year LERLHE 3,496 - 437 (11,447) (8.404) 18,874 2,95
As at 31 December 2020 \ECF
tZA=1-H 3197 (696) 589 50,802 95,429 (19,671) 167,510
Exchange realignment EX U] = = = = = U]
Deferred tax charged/crected) tothe I /(5 A) WA RE
income statement during the year LEEHE 4,068 - (14) (2,935) (11,527) 13,220 2412
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--F
TZA=1-H 36,018 (696) 175 56,867 83,902 (6,351) 169,915
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z _—ZF-—F+_-A=4+—HIFZ)

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20 May 2013, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including executive, non-executive or
independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders,
and any non-controlling shareholder of the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years from 20 May 2013 unless otherwise cancelled
or amended.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

Share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options in cash. Share options
granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the company or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the company’s shares at the date
of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

HARMESEEER AT 2021 FFi
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z =%

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
An option may be exercised under the Scheme at any
time during a period not exceeding 10 years after the date
when the option is granted and expiring on the last date
of such period.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, there is
no option granted and outstanding under the Scheme.

33.

,%?\A BF 75 R 2R P =t

—Ft+ A=t —HILFE)

SBRRESTE (
%#Aiﬁmpm%xZ%@TﬁF&
ARE2E AR -\ ARERRE
$2 0 2 BEARAE - % BIFTS B AE A A
PRAGHES I 8 B ARt T BB 4 O BE R
I BEEZPEZRE-RERA
1k e

BREZITEERESET  ETAE
RO ABRNDRIBEZEELEREEB
B2 W E : (AR RIRORE
EREFRHBREAHIAEISZ AT
R ET 2 R TE - (i) B EE
=EZERE -

BREYTETESEABIURE
BERAREHRE ZHER
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. A&
Number of shares Amount
BRHEE K]
HK$°000
FET
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each: FIEEO.00478 T 2 T AL -
At 1 January 2020, R-_Z_ZTF—-A—H"
31 December 2020, —E-TF+-A=+—H"
1 January 2021 and T —f—-F—HK
31 December 2021 —Z-—%+-A=+—H 125,000,000,000 500,000
Number of shares Amount Equivalent to
B8 E S8 HER
HK$’000 RMB’000
FET AREFR
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
Ordinary shares of FREE.004B T2
HK$0.004 each: AR
At 1 January 2020, R-ZE-EF—HF—H-
31 December 2020, —E_EFE+-A=+—-H"
1 January 2021 2 —F—AF—HRK
and 31 December 2021 —E_—%+ZA=1—H 10,293,136,554 41,173 37,628
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERER M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z —ZF-—F+_-A=+—HIFZ)

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein during the year are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

U]

(i)

(iii)

Share premium and capital redemption
reserve

The application of share premium account is
governed by Section 40 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the surplus arising from the Group’s capital
reorganisation in respect of its capital reduction,
share subdivision and share consolidation in 2003.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is available for
distribution to shareholders. However, a company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus; if:

— the company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or

— the realisable value of the company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

Capital reserve

Reserve are transferred from retained earnings for
compensation if loss and any accident incurred
in the future. The capital reserve arose due to the
acquisition of PRC subsidiaries in previous year
and re-organisation of Hong Kong subsidiaries in
previous years.

35.
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E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z _—ZF-—F+_-A=4+—HIFZ)

35. RESERVES (continued) 35. & ()
(iv) Currency translation reserve (ivy E¥HEBEFE
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign MEHAERERREEINERAT
exchange differences arising from the translation BWHERMEEZMBERZ5 -
of the financial statements of foreign operations. FAGRCPRL - AN
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the RERIE ©

accounting policy set out in Note 2.

(v) Fair value through other comprehensive (v) RAFEFTAHMEEBAR
income reserve 15
The fair value through other comprehensive income BAFEFAHEMEZERAGE
reserve comprises the cumulative net change in BREREBREHRNEMEE
the fair value of financial assets at the end of each NEERFEEFHE - WREW
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance TORTE G ETIR IR -
with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.

(vi) Statutory reserve (vi) EERE
PRC companies are required to allocate 10% FRARERRARFEF210%
of the companies’ net profits to the statutory ZEETERBES BEEZEDE
reserves fund until such fund reaches 50% of ZRAIFMERZ50% & 48
the companies’ registered capitals. The statutory WAL E  AEREESAANU
reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the W RETEE (W0F) g MNAF
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses, AMEAN - EEEESRDAYE
if any, or to increase registered capital of the BN ARGEMERZ25% -

companies, provided that such fund is maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered
capitals.
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36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EARKIE

2021 2020
—E--F ZZZTF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT

Capital commitments (contracted BAAE (B4R
but not provided for): BAREME)
Capital injection into an associate m—EBERRTE 26,249 26,249
Construction costs of properties under BRPMEREMRR
development 185,730 283,133

211,979 309,382

37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37. REHELTH

As Lessor EREAA
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the total future minimum R_B_—FRZZB_ZFF+_A=+
lease receivable by the Group under non-cancellable — B AEEREBETAEELEHER
operating leases in respect of investment properties are KEMERK z BIExEHBERIBLRE
as follows: U
2021 2020
—B- - —T-FTF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT

Within one year —FR 1,837 1,884
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38.

LOAN FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loan facilities
including bank loans and loans from financial institution.

Loan facilities from banks amounted RMB277,232,000
(2020: RMB312,949,000) were fully utilised at the end
of 2021. It was secured by the Group’s investment
properties, completed properties held for sale, properties
under development and personal guarantee from a
director, who is also a major shareholder of the Company.

Loan facilities from financial institutions amounted
RMB700,000,000 (2020: RMB832,200,000) were
utilised as to RMB285,500,000 at the end of 2021
(2020: RMB431,600,000). They were secured by
completed properties held for sale, properties under
development, pledge deposits, equity interest of Xuzhou
Shiyou Logistics Development Co. Ltd., Yangzhou
Shiyou Logistics Development Co. Ltd. and Guangzhou
Xianzhuang Properties Development Limited, personal
guarantee by a director of the Company, corporate and
personal guarantee provided by parties connected with
the aforementioned director.

There are no loan facilities granted to subsidiaries which
are secured by the corporate guarantee of the Company
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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38.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (#Z - F—-——#+ - A=+—HI FEF)

PLEDGED OF ASSETS 39. EEKH
At the end of reporting period, the following assets of the RBESHR AEBBETHEEERT
Group were pledged to banks and financial institution in RITREEEE  RASBERENE
order to secure the borrowings granted to the Group: |
2021 2020
—B--F —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETFT
Completed properties held for sale HIEHEZ BRI 359,166 528,224
Properties under development BERBYE 184,727 370,538
Investment properties REME 551,960 563,000
Pledged deposits BiEAES 3,386 3,386

1,099,239 1,465,148
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40. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING 40. ARMEXBELEZEKE T
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Amount
due to Amount
an executive due to an Lease
Borrowings director associate liabilities

Ef-2ufT  EA-ARE
EES B NANE BEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARR TR ARRTR ARRFR ARRTR

At 1 January 2021 RZE-—5-A-A 744,549 586 112,219 1,836
Changes from financing HERLRELY

cash flows
Proceeds from other secured EtBEAETMERE

loans 16,000 = = =
Repayment of bank loans BERTER (35,717) - - S
Repayment of other BEEHEERER

secured loans (162,100) = = =
Net movement of amount e —FiBE A

due to an associate FEFEY - = (46) -
Net movement of amount EN—BHTEZ

due to an executive director FEFEY - 947 - -
Repayment of principal of lease liabilties BERERERS - - - (1,836)
Interest element of ERREEENFEHS

lease liabilities paid - - - (105)
Interest paid on loan borrowing EREEZFIE (42,167) = - -
Total changes from UTIER 28R
Financing cash flows BERLTE (223,984) 947 (46) (1,941)
Other changes: Higd
Finance costs BEM A 42,167 - - 105
New lease entered EIRE ik - - - 5,264
Total other changes EnEHng 42,167 = = 5,369
At 31 December 2021 i St

+-RA=+-H 562,732 1,533 112,173 5,264
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

40. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING 40. FRIEXKREL 2EKEH
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued) (%)
Amount
due to Amount
an executive due to an Lease
Borrowings director associate liabilities
Eff-g87  EN-BHE
EES EEXE DARE HESE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR

At 1 January 2020 W-E-Z%—f—H 858,087 5,635 112,374 3,403
Changes from financing BERLTRELD

cash flows
Proceeds from bank BABHABRE

loan 183,256 = = S
Proceeds from other EtBERERMEIE

unsecured loans 104,723 - = =
Proceeds from other secured EtBEAERMERE

loans 332,600 = = -
Repayment of bank loans BERTER (203,634) - - -
Repayment of other EEELBELRER

unsecured loan (145,760) = = =
Repayment of other BEEMBERER

secured loans (320,000) = = =
Net movement of amount R ER

due to an associate HEFE S = (155) -
Net movement of amount EN—281ES

due to an executive director NEFE - (5,049) = =
Repayment of principal of lease liabilties BERERERS - - - (1,567)
Interest element of ERREEENFESS

lease liabilities paid - S - (282)
Interest paid on loan borrowing ENEEZHE (63,294) - - -
Total changes from UTBE#EEE
Financing cash flows BERERE (102,109) (5,049) (155) (1,849)
Other changes: Hipd .
Finance costs BEKR 53,204 - - 282
Transfer to disposal group classified as ERENEABIELE

held for sale ELEA7 (64,723) - - -
Total other changes AthEE e (11,429) - - 282
At 31 December 2020 RZZ_ZE

+-A=+-H 744,549 586 112,219 1,836
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. BEALIRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed MRZEGEVEHmEREMIT D EE
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, R REEERIN » N E S B A T

TTHIEARS :

the Group had the following significant transactions with
related parties:

(@) Compensation of key management (@) FTEEHEASHE:
personnel:

EERR ARBIZHTRIEH
TEERIBEEAE KEZ
FINFFIS N2 o

The directors are of the opinion that the key
management personnel were the executive and
non-executive director of the Company, details of
whose emoluments are set out in Note 12.

(b) Balance with related party: (b) EEEBEAL &R
2021 2020
—E--F C—EZ-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT
Balances due to related parties: JEREE A L2 5k -
Associate: BENT
Guangzhou Xintian Properties &N R B L EE B R
Development Limited BRRT] (Mit@E)
(note (a)) 112,173 112,219
Executive Director: HITEE
Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (note (b)) wEESE (BaEwm) 1,533 586
Lease liabilities: HERE -
Related company: BEEE AT
Tianlun Holdings RmiZERBR A
Limited Company (note (e)) (Hiite) 5,264 1,836

HARMESEEER AT 2021 FFi




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ¢
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (Bt2=—F——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. BBALIRE @)
(continued)
(c) Transaction with related party: (c) HEBEBALZXRS:
2021 2020
—E--F —ZZFTF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT

Realised deferred management fee REBBALTZEERELEE
income from a related party BEIWA
Associate: 71— BN
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN 3R B E R
Development Limited (note (c)) BRARF (M) 310 234
Realised deferred interest income LTHEALTERZ
on loan to a related party BEIRIELEF S A
Associate: B NT
Guangzhou Xintian Properties FE& N R B EE B
Development Limited (note (d)) BRATF (M) 973 734
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. BBALIRZ (8
(continued)
(c) Transaction with related party: (continued) () EBEREBALZXS : (&)
2021 2020
—EB-—-F _ZT_ZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT
Repayment of lease liabilities to a m—HEBEATEEHESR
related party
Related company: )N
Tianlun Holdings Limited Company KR ER A A
(note () (Hiit(e)) 1,941 1,567
Corporate/personal guarantee AT AREEREE
provided by related parties in Rz 8 EAER
respect of loans facilities
of the Group
Parties related to a director HEAARESERBE 2ZAL
of the Company
Tianlun Holdings Limited Company KBIERAER A A
(note (1)) (K1zE(0) 400,000 400,000
Mr. Zhang Guo Ming (note (f)) REIRASE A (KaE0) 400,000 400,000
Director: EE
Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (note (g)) wkeBLE (Bitg) 977,232 1,145,149
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERER M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (Bt2=—F——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Notes:

(@)

Balances due to an associate are unsecured,
interest free and no fixed repayment terms in the
year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020.

Balance due to an executive director is
unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

Management fee income from an associate was
charged at a negotiated value, deferred and
recognised at applicable basis.

The deferred interest income on a previous loan
to an associate was realised during the year.

It represents the lease liabilities payable to a
related company for the right of use of a property
as back office for a term of 3 years. The balance
is repayable within 3 years (2020: 1 year). It was
charged at a negotiated value.

The underlying loan facilities to subsidiaries were
jointly guaranteed by the close family member
of a director of the Company and a company
controlled by that close family member Tianlun
Holding Limited Company which amounted to
RMB400,000,000 (2020: RMB400,000,000)
were utilized as to RMB119,500,000 (2020:
RMB281,600,000).

The underlying loan facilities to subsidiaries
guaranteed by the director of the Company
amounted to RMB977,232,000 (2020:
RMB1,145,149,000) were utilized as to
RMB562,732,000 at the end of 2021 (2020:
RMB744,549,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=

42,

B ERR M

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (ElZ—ZF—

—FfZA=+—HILFE)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
market risk (including currency risk, interest risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. Generally, the Group employs
a conservative strategy regarding its risk management.
Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters,
directors periodically. The overall objectives in managing

in close co-operation with the board of

financial risks focus on securing the Group’s short to
medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to
financial markets. Long term financial investments are
managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable risk
levels. As the Group’s exposure to market risk (including
currency risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk are kept at a minimum level, the
Group has not used any derivative or other instruments
for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The most significant financial risks to which the Group is

exposed are discussed below.

As at the reporting date, the Group’s financial instruments
mainly consisted of pledged deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, financial asset at fair value through profit or

loss, trade payables, other payables and borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 42. B RAKBREERAFETE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)
(a) Categories of financial assets and (a) =RMEERAEBZEH
liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the Group’s AEBGETBMABREKEN 2
statements of consolidated financial position relate FEHEENTeREERESRE
to the following categories of financial assets and BfERIER :
financial liabilities:
2021 2020
—E--F —ZZFTF
Financial assets RMB’000 RMB’000
SRMEE ANRETT AREFIT
Financial assets measured at BHENTFTE 2
amortised cost TREE
— Trade receivables — JEUBR X 4,681 6,796
— Deposits and other receivables — ke REAMEUEER 135,094 115,426
— Pledged deposits —BEfRe 3,386 3,386
— Cash and cash equivalents - RekReEEY 222,250 109,991
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFABRZERHEE 7,920 -
373,331 235,599
2021 2020
—E--F CZE-FHF
Financial liabilities RMB’000 RMB’000
SRAasE ARETFT AREFIT
Financial liabilities measured at BEEKAFTEY
amortised cost cRaE
— Trade payables — FETER K 456,049 475,628
— Other payables — HABFERFIR 157,273 140,818
— Borrowings — &R 562,732 744,549
1,176,054 1,360,995
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency.

The functional currency of the Company and its
major subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
Dollar (‘“HK$”) in which most of the transactions
are denominated. The functional currency of those
subsidiaries operating in PRC is RMB in which
most of its transactions are denominated. Certain
bank balances of the Group are denominated in
HK$ and RMB respectively. As at the reporting
date, foreign currencies were translated into RMB
at the closing rate.

The management considers future commercial
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in the functional currency of each
entity of the Group. Therefore, the foreign currency
risk is immaterial.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and
are considered to be effective.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from the ordinary course of its operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

e IR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, pledged deposit and cash
and cash equivalent included in the face of the
consolidated statement of financial position and the
amount of financial guarantees issued represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets.

The credit risks on pledged deposit and cash
and cash equivalent are limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institution
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

The credit risks on deposits and other receivables
are limited because the counterparties are mainly
government authorities which are considered with
very low risk of default.

Deposits and other receivables, pledged deposit
and cash and cash equivalents are considered
to have low credit risk and therefore the loss
allowances are measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

The credit risks associated with financial guarantee
is considered as limited and mitigated because
they are secured over the properties sold to the
corresponding customers.

42. BBEBREER N TFETE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) ({2 =L ——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 42. BiIEREERAFETSE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (%)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

For the trade/rents receivables from property
investment, the Group has policies in place to
ensure that leases are made to tenants with an
appropriate financial strength and appropriate
percentage of down payments and rental deposits.
It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade/rents
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counter parties and customers.

The credit policies to manage credit risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e IR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

42. BBEBREER N TFETE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

(&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) FEERBRBETG (&)
(continued)
As part of the Group's credit risk management, ERAKEEERRER &
the Group uses debtors' aging to assess the 7 ARBEUEHAZ KRR E
impairment for its customers in relation to its MERECEFBEAFTF 2R
property investment operation because these B BAERRFEFRERE
customers consist of a large number of small AFHBRBRBHZPNEER -
customers with common risk characteristics that R AR BRE B R IRE K RS A
are representative of the customers' abilities to pay Fra BB IEMAE 1 o TR
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual BN KATBHEEEBEEANEHR
terms. The following table provides information %%Txﬁ’\*EZJEHQEEM/J—EW
about the exposure to credit risk for trade/rents e (RZF-—FR-F=
receivables of the property investment segment F+-A=1+— E!&%éﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ;
which are assessed based on provision matrix as &) FEERBR.ZEF -
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 within lifetime
ECL.
Gross carrying amount ARET#EAE
2021 2020
—8=-F “E°%
Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
carrying Average on trade carrying Average on trade
amount loss rate receivables amount loss rate receivables
felk el
BEAE FHBER BHREE KEaE THERX Brie
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARETFT NEEFTL ANEETFT
Current (not past dug)  EI& (@) 4,918 5.56% 214 6,378 4.60% 295
1-180 days pastdue ~ @H1Z180H 39 5.76% 2 181 4.65% 8
181-365 days past due 118123650 - 5.86% - 479 4.66% 22
4,951 276 7,038 325
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 42. BiIEREERAFETSE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (%)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (c)
(continued)

EERRRBENE (&)

FRET#E (&)
At EERDRBEELEREN
Kmfhst YHBAMNHTIBE
XA L N AR BUG 2 ATRE 1E &
FHEL R -

Gross carrying amount (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based
on historical observed default rates adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

TRIVRRBEE(CTIECERE
WHER XK ATRBEERE ZE

The following tables show the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables

under the simplified approach: g
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
KAFEH XAFEH
FEER FEER
(FEERE) (EEHE) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
As at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-E£-F-H 239 - 239
Impairment losses recognized BRERRERRE 86 1,145 1,231
Uncollectible amounts written off e i PN (EE - (1,145) (1,145)
As at 31 December 2020 N-B-E&E+-A=+-H 325 - 325
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ (BEHESSR) /
Impairment losses recognized EHERAEESRE (49) 156 107
Uncollectible amounts written off B A B R = (156) (156)
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZB--5+-A=1+—-H 276 - 276
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERER M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (Bt2=—F——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk arises from
interest bearing bank deposits and borrowings at
variable interest rate. Borrowings at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy and will consider enter into interest
rate hedging should the need arise. The Group
ensures that it borrows at competitive interest rates
under favourable terms and conditions.

Management considers the exposure to the
changes in market interest rate for bank deposits
should not be materially enough to cause adverse
financial effect on the Group’s position.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.
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@ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (&% —F+ZA=+—HIFFE)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 42. BiIEREERAFETSE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (#8)
(d) Interest rate risk (continued) (d) FIEEB (&)
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through AEERFEERZAMEE M
the impact of the rate changes on interest-bearing AZMERE - ARBFHEENK
borrowings. The interest rates and terms of ZHEREEBIERFEHN T
repayment of the Group’s interest-bearing loans are R FIR - REEH [BFF
shown as below “interest rate profile”. The Group HIATERTEEHMAEG - A&
defines “net borrowings” as being interest bearing BzBEDAEERDNESREBET
financial liabilities. The Group’s policy is to obtain Ko
the most favourable interest rates available for the
borrowings.
i) Interest rate profile i) Tl Z R
The following table details the interest rate 3R AN £ E A iy A5 B
profile of the Group’s net borrowings (as RKEFTFRE (FER )
defined above) at the end of the reporting ZF RS o
period.
2021 2020
IRz-f 2
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
LY RMB'000 ERH%E RMB000
% ARETT % ANRETT
Fixed rate borrowings EEER
Borrowings from financial institutions £ BB 10.5%-11.8% 285,500  9.5%-11.8% 431,600
Variable rate borrowings FEEX
At the At the
People’s People’s
Bank of Bank of
China China
Bank borrowings AR 5 years 277,232 5 years 312,949
loan base loan base
interest interest
multiply by multiply by
110.60% 70.60%
or plus 0.55% t0110.60%
inflated rate or plus 0.55%
inflated rate
RAEARST BRE AR
LEENEE TEEREE
RIEFN EEN
110.60%3, 70.60%2
M0.55%2 110.60%3
FHAZ 0.55%2
FHRE
Total borrowing L 562,732 744,549
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (ElZ—F—

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (continued)

ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points
(2020: 50 basis points) in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group’s profit after
tax and accumulated loss by approximately
RMB1,040,000 (2020:
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
loss by approximately RMB1,174,000).

increase/decrease

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and accumulated loss) and other
components of equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group’s profit after tax (and
accumulated loss) and other components of
equity is estimated as an annualised impact
on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(e)

(f)

Other price risk

The management consider that the effect to
the change in fair value of investment in equity
instrument at fair value through other comprehensive
income on the change in fair value is minimal.

The policies to manage other price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
consider to be effective.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not
be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial assets. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade payables,
other payables, lease liabilities, financial guarantee,
borrowings and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines
of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a
consolidated basis by carefully monitoring the
cash inflows and outflows due in day to day
business. Liquidity needs are monitored in various
time bands, on a day to day and week to week
basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30 day
projection. Long term liquidity needs for a 180-day
and 365-day lookout period are identified monthly.

The Group’s liquidity is mainly dependent upon
the cash received from its tenants of investment
properties and customers of trading property held
for sale and funds financing for property under
construction. The directors of the Company are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full
its financial obligations as and when they fall due in
the foreseeable future.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to be
effective in managing liquidity risks.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-——F+_-H=1+—HItFE)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 42. BiIEEREERAFETSE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (%)
() Liquidity risk (continued) ) RBELERE (&)
The following tables detail the remaining contractual TRFAVWRNER R AKAFIESTE
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s and SREBERBERBZTEED
the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, HARR - W ERE A RBEIRR 4
which are based on contractual undiscounted mERMRNEBRBNLAKNANA A REHE
cash flows and the earliest date the Group and ﬁzi{rﬁj@azg—i HEIm/ESL °
the Company can be required to pay. Specifically, B [MAEBRNERKEEE
bank loans with a repayment on demand clause {|§ﬁﬁ’g$ﬁﬁf§fk@%&;$;§ﬁ
are included in the earliest time band regardless of BER MTmRrTRETEHES
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise 7 %%UE’WE){% s TERBEN AR
their rights. The table includes both interest and KEEHERE
principal cash flows:
As at 31 December 2021
RZ8=-%£+Zf=1-H
Weighted Total Within ~ Between  Between
average contractual ~ oneyear  oneyear two years
interest ~ Carrying  undiscounted oron andtwo  andfive More than
rates amount cash flow  demand years years five years
TS ARRER -ER -£% MEE
GiES FEE HRENEBAE  OREX WM I8 BRLE
%  RMB000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFR  ARETL AREFR AREFT AREFT AREFR
Trade payables EfER - 456,049 456,049 (456,049) - - -
Other payables Etp (TR - 157,213 157,213 (157,213) - - -
Lease liabilties (principal amount 2R
plus interes) (REEMAE) 1% 5,264 6,121 (1,942 (2038  (2141) -
Borrowings (principal amount X 5.2% to
plus interest (REEMAS) 18% 562,732 674729 (305,754)  (40,151)  (247,038)  (81,786)
Financial quarantees Nofe 4] BTTSIER (Witae) - 3,580 3,580 (3,580) - - -
1,184,898 1,207,752 (924,598)  (42,189) (249,179  (81,786)
As at 31 December 2020
R-E-_TET-A=+-H
Weighted Total Within -~ Between ~ Between
average contractual  ongyear  oneyear  two years
interest Carrying  undiscounted or on and two andfive  More than
rates amount cash flow demand years years  five years
TS SHAYR —£R %% MEE
Ik BEE RERELE  FHEX MER IFR BALE
%  RMB000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
NEEFT  ARETL AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Trade payables EftE - 475628 475628 (475,628) - - -
Other payables {58 - 140818 140818 (140818) - - -
Lease liabilities (principal amount ~ HEEE
plus interest) (FEENFE) 1% 1,836 1,942 (1,942) - - -
Borrowings (principal amount R 5.2% to
plus interest) (REEMFIE) 11.8% 744,549 929268  (193,076)  (354,527)  (263,514)  (118,151)
Financial quarantees Nofe 44)  BIHER (Wita4) - % 12257 (12.257) = = =
1,375,088 1559913 (823721)  (354,527)  (263514)  (118,151)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(9)

Fair value measurement recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities
into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value
of these financial assets and liabilities. The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or
liability, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available; and

— Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.

Fair value of other financial instruments

The Group also has a number of financial
instruments which are not measured at fair value in
the consolidated statement of financial position. For
the majority of these instruments, the fair value are
not materially different to their carrying amounts,
since the interest receivable and payable is either
close to current market rates or the instruments are
short-term in nature.
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43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (ElZ—F—

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing
goods and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration the
future capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
return capital to shareholders,
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

shareholders, issue new

The Group regards total equity attributable to the
owners of the Company presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of financial position as capital,
for capital management purpose. The amount of
capital, being share capital, share premium, currency
translation reserve, capital reserve, contribution surplus,
capital redemption reserve, fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve, statutory reserve and
accumulated losses, as at 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately RMB1,708,387,000 (2020: approximately
RMB1,746,972,000),

as optimal having considered the projected capital

which the management considers

expenditures and the forecast strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

43.

,%?\/\ BF 75 R 2R P =t

—F+ = A=+—HILFE)

BEAREE
REBEZEAREREBIZABRAEBRRE
BHEZE LB BAERARIEE M HE

Rk FERE B8 ARRIRET S E
iR o

AEERER S E P BEELEARR
B RSEZRIANKEZRKERT
2 BRI LA EAFAX LB KR
EHE  BREBKEEARBELRER
Bl -

REFRABRERERE  AEBRIEH
BERARREMNZERE  MRREDE
A BT SR BB E BEETS -

REAEEME - AEEBEEMBR
AERMEZN 2 RN ARIHEE AELEER
BIEBA o E/\f;:—i‘f':)fli‘f’—
Be&EXReE (BIIRA - BRHEE
BHIREE  BEXAFEE  BARER é
REOFE  BEAFEFAEMEEK
ANFEE - ZERERERFTEBER) HAR
#1,708,387,0007C (ZF=FF : HA
R #1,746,972,00070) © £EETEAE
AEAXRBARKRERSR  TEE
RECERZEEARKE -

BB RINRIE I 2 B AR

ige
i
JiE
Pfl

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2021




o s, M e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) ({2 =L ——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

44. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 44. BIEER
2021 2020
= i '
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARET T

AEEHOMEEMERY
RIBREER (W) 3,580 12,257

Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities for certain
purchasers of the Group's property units (note)

Wiat - AEBERETSRMBEBEE IR

note: The Group was in cooperation with certain financial

institutions and arranged mortgage loan facility for its
purchasers of properties and provided guarantees to
secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments.

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to RMB3,580,000 (2020: RMB12,257,000).
Such guarantees will be discharged upon the earlier of (i)
issuance of the real estate ownership certificate which will
generally be available within one year after the purchasers
take possession of the relevant property; and (ii) the
satisfaction of relevant mortgage loan by purchasers.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to the banks, and the Group is
entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the
related properties. The Group’s guarantee starts from the
dates the mortgagees obtained the mortgage loans.

The directors consider that the likelihood of default in
payments by purchasers is minimal and therefore the
financial guarantees measured at fair value are immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

«©

e MR ERER M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 45. RMBE R R 2=
Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 and RZB-_—F+_A=+—"HERZZEZ
31 December 2020 were as follows: EFE+-_A=Z+—8 " KWBRRZHIE
N
Proportion of
ownership interest
HEERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/  effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest ADFZ  Principal activities and
Name HmAY/ ERTRE,/ piN- | b\ WEAR  places of operations
£ ARt BRX CHMEL ERER BB BE TEEBREEME
Canton Million Investments British Virgin US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding in
Limited i) Islands (BVI) 1% Hong Kong
RBATES REBRERE R
([EERXES))
Chengmai Shiyou Logistics Co. Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Inactive
(i, (i, (v) & (v} i AR¥10,000,0007C  (2020: 51%) (2020:100%)  EmER
BEEHBNRERAF
(i)~ (i) i)’
Grandwill International Investment Hong Kong HK$1 100% = 100%  Inactive
Limited ) 187 BEXH
ESERRERRAT
Guangzhou City Liwan Qi Che Zhi Pei The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Property investment in
Factory Company Limited i) & ()~ H & AK#10,000,0007C the PRC
BMTHEERER R ENERE
BT )&y
Guangzhou Fanzhan Trading The PRC RMB10,500,000 100% = 100%  Investment holding
Limited (i), (i) & (iv) H AR 10,500,0007 in the PRC
BMWEESBRAR () - ()R (v) R B ERE R
Guangzhou Fengmao Real Estate The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Development Limited (i), (i) & () AR 10,000,0007 the PRC
BMEREHEREARLA RAEREREER
(i)~ (&)
Guangzhou Gaotian Investment The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development and
Limited (i) & (iv) # AK#20,000,0007 property investment in
BMSBRERRAR )&y the PRC
RAERENEERR
NERE

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) ({2 =L ——F+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

BNTERERERZARLA ()X

HARMESEER DT 2021 FFHK

45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) ~ 45. RHIB A B 2% (&)
Proportion of
ownership interest
HRERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest KAFZ  Principal activities and
Name RiLEAYA BRITRE/ 158 PN WEAR  places of operations
28 dMmies/Bx CEmEXR ERER ®"E BE TEXRBREZLE
Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics The PRC RMBA48,880,000 100% - 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. (i), (i) & () i AR H48,880,00070  (2020: 51%) (2020: 51%) in the PRC
EMEBMRBRAF) - () R REERENELR
Guangzhou Huangpu Caming Real The PRC US$13,000,000 - - - Under liquidation
Estate Development Limited i 13,000,000 (2020: 100%) (2020: 100%)  JEH&
(), i), (v) & v)
BNEReREEREERAT
()~ i) ~ (1) 5fy)
Guangzhou Kinyang Real Estate The PRC RMB112,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. (), i) & () & AR#112,000,0007C property investment in
BNEGRHELRERAF the PRC
) (i) R (i) ReERENEFERR
NERE
Guangzhou Shihui Commercial The PRC RMB1,500,000 100% S 100%  Inactive
Clubhouse Management G AR#1,500,0007C EmEn
Limited (i, (ii) & (iv)
BNt EmEemER
BRAR (i) - i) Ry
Guangzhou Talent Shoes Market The PRC RMB2,000,000 90% S 90%  Property management in
Management Limited (i) & (iv) i AR H2,000,0007C the PRC
BMRRERTHEEER ROBRENEER
BIRAR @)& ()
Guangzhou Xianzhuang Properties The PRC RMB33,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development in
Development Limited (i) & (i) i AK#33,000,0007 the PRC

RPBELENZER
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

45.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest

45. RMB AR 2R (&)

BEERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/  effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest AQFZ  Principal activities and
Name B Ay BRIRA/ bS] RAR MEBAR  places of operations
£ At BxX CHMEXR ERER ®"E BE  TERBREZHE
Guangzhou Xinzhuo Properties The PRC RMB3,000,000 100% - 100%  Property management in
Management Limited (i), (ii) & ()~ H& AK#3,000,0007C the PRC
BMBENEERERAR R E R ENEER
(i)~ (&)
Guangzhou Yiie Cleaning Company ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
Limited () & (i) # AR H1,000,0007C PRG and provision of
EMBRRZERARF ()& cleaning services
RPEREREERR
REBRRE
Guangzhou Yongxiang Investment The PRC RMB11,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Limited (i & (iv) i AK#11,000,0007C the PRC
BMARREBRAA )&y RPEHEREAR
Haikou Yicheng Industries Limited The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% = 100%  Investment holding in
(0, (i) & (iv) HE AK#10,000,0007C the PRC
BOSREEERAA () - 1)Ky RPEHEREAR
Mark World Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% = 100%  Investment holding in
EEEXERAA B 147 the PRC
RPEHEREAR
Neo Bloom Limited (i) BvI US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
HEERAF (i) RERUHE E Hong Kong
REBUEREAR
Profit Venture Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% = 100%  Investment holding in
XEREBRAR & 10,0007 the PRC
RPEHERESR
Smart Key Global Limited (i) BvI US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
EBAAES 1% Hong Kong
REBUSREAR
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ERHALKERRARLA
(i) ~ (i) %)

HARMESEER DT 2021 FFHK

45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)  45. RKB AT 2R (#)
Proportion of
ownership interest
HRERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest KAFZ  Principal activities and
Name RiLEAYA BRITRE/ 158 PN WEAR  places of operations
25 HMed/BX EXMER ERER =2 BE  TEEBRESME
Sure Win Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
KREEERAT] &k 10087 the PRC
RedfEREsER
Talent Gentral Limited (ii) BVI US$101 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
RBRAHE 101%7 Hong Kong
REARSREER
Talent Property Group Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
(i, (i) & (v) i AR 50,000,00070 the PRC
MAWESEERRR 4) - (i)K(y) R SRERR
Talent Property Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - 100%  Inactive
MAMEBRAR] i 10,000 TEEY
Talent Prosper Corporation (ii) BVI US$2 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
KeEEERAT (i) EBREUHS 2ETT Hong Kong
REARSRERR
Xuzhou Shiyou Logistics The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (i), (v) & )~ F AR 20,000,00070  (2020: 51%) (2020: 100%) in the PRC
BNEBNREEER AT RAERENEER
(i) (i) Br)
Yangzhou Shiyou Logistics The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% = 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (i), (v) & )~ F ARH10,000,0007C  (2020: 51%) (2020: 100%) in the PRC
BNt BYRERERAA RAERENEER
(i)~ ) vy
Yunnan Xin Tian Culture Travel The PRC RMB50,000,000 60% - 60%  Inactive
Development Limited (i), (i) & () & AR¥50,000,0007C TEEY
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) ~ 45. RHB AT 2R (&)
Proportion of
ownership interest
HRERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/  effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest ARQFZ  Principal activities and
Name Bl Ay BRIRA/ bS] RAR WEBAR  places of operations
28 At BxX CHMEXR ERER ®"E BE  TERBREZHE
Xuzhou Linan Business The PRC RMB3,000,000 100% = 100%  Inactive
Management Co., Lid. ), i) & fiy ~ & AR3,000,0000  (2020: 51%) (2020:51%)  EEEHE

UL SEE SN
N

Notes:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

The above companies are registered as a wholly foreign
owned enterprises under the PRC law.

The above companies are registered as limited companies
under the PRC law.

The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries
are not audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED.

The names of certain companies referred in these consolidated
financial statements represent management’s best effort
in translation of the Chinese names of these companies
as no English names have been registered or available.

The Group lost its control with effect from 9 December
2021. Details please refer to Note 24.

During the year, the Group acquired 49% equity interest
in Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics Co., Ltd. Details of
acquisition is set out in the Company’s announcements
on 20 January 2021 and 27 January 2021.

Hiat -

(i)

(i)

B A RRE S BOAREM RINE B
B -

PRARREBEFBEEAZEMSBERA
Al e

ZEMBARNEEBRKRILIER
BES AN EEAER BT °

MY EEM A A2 XA - R
RAMBREMBLE T AR ZAME
REBERNHZERRZITXEHE
e RXBRE »

AEBR T —F+-ANARK
EHEMZEN R FBF2HME
24 »

FR AEBKRBEERNEBYRER
NEIRI49% AR HE - WM BHEN A
RARZEZ—F—A=Z+HEZ=E
——F—A=t+tHZRMH -

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2021




s i e, SR e e

O = =7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 45.

The following table lists out the information relating to
Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics Co., Ltd, and Yangzhou
Shiyou City Development Co., Ltd are subsidiaries
which have material non-controlling interest (NCI). The

RB AT 2w (8)

THILEBENEBYAERATR
BN BT RREERAT (BAES
BAIEIERIERS T HBAT) KBRS
TX 252 SR EERF AIAA

summarised financial information presented below

represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.

Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics Co., Ltd.

FIEMEH < AT S8 ©

BEMNEEBYRERAA

2020
—T_TF
RMB’000
AREFT
NCI percentage IR ER B DL 49%
Current assets MEVEE 2,009,735
Non-current assets EMEBEE 10,488
Current liabilities mENafE 2,164,414
Non-current liabilities EmEBE 182,600
Net liabilities BEEE (326,791)
Carrying amount of NCI (note (a)) e 2 REE (Wita) (179,173)
Carrying amount of subsidiary’s NCI MIE A R SEIERR s 2 BRE (A 29,757
Revenue Wz =
Loss for the year FEBB (182,075)
Total comprehensive loss ZHEEEAE (182,075)
Loss allocated to NCI DB E IR R 2 E51E (89,139)
Loss allocated to subsidiary’s NClI PEREMB AR EERER ZEE
(note (b)) (Hizzm) (165)
Dividend paid to NCI AT IR AR 2 IR B =
Dividend paid to subsidiary’s NCI SASH B A B FEIE R S 2 IR B -
Cash flows from operating activities KEEB 2 RESRE (241,121)
Cash flows from investing activities WEEBRERE (36,527)
Cash flows from financing activities REXEB RERE 321,072

notes: (a) The equity interest in Guangzhou Guoyou Bt (@ RZEZZEF+=-—A=+—H"
Logistics Co., Ltd. held by the non-controlling IEE RS A BB N B &
interest is 49% while proportion of Capital Y m B R E R R49% - T
contribution paid up by non-controlling interest FIEE R S A A & L
was 38% as at 31 December 2020. 538% °
(b) As at 31 December 2020, the Group held 51% by R=ZE=TF+-_A=+—8"

equity interest in Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics
Co., Ltd., which indirectly held 90% equity
interest in Yangzhou Shiyou City Development
Co., Ltd.. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group acquired 49% equity interest
in Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics Co., Ltd. and
disposed 90% equity interest in Yangzhou Shiyou
City Development Co., Ltd. (details please refer to
Notes 8 and 26).

HARMESEEER AT 2021 FFi

REBFFEEMNEBYRAR
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45. RMB AR 2R (&)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Yangzhou Shiyou City Development Co., Ltd. BN EHEHRREER AT
2020
—EFF
RMB’000
AR TT
NCI percentage (note) e R B DL (AiE) 10%
Current assets MEEE 597,783
Non-current asset EMBEE 40
Current liabilities REEE 300,252
Non-current liabilities JEREIAE =
Net assets BEFE 297,571
Carrying amount of NCI PR S 2 BREE 29,757
Revenue g -
Loss for the year FEBE (1,653)
Total comprehensive loss 1@)%?5?%‘ (1,6593)
Loss allocated to NCI NEEEIEERER EE (165)
Dividend paid to NCI B TFIFERERZRE -
Cash flow from operating activities KEES 2 RERE (69,585)
Cash flow from investing activities BEERBCRERE -
Cash flow from financing activities MEESHZREMNE 65,158

note: The Company has indirect 90% shareholding for
Yangzhou Shiyou City Development Co., Ltd. during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the assets and liabilities of
Yangzhou Shiyou City Development Co., Ltd. were
reclassified as assets and liabilities classified as held for
sale. Details were state in Note 26.

Wi RBE_T-_EF+_A=1+—HL

FRER - AN A EEEE SN I
HEREGR A B H0%AE -

RZZZTF+A=+—8 " HM
HEHEMERBRARNEERAE
B EAESEABELENEE
REaftE - FHBEHNRMIFE26 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HARBREN
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(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (BtZ2-F_-—#+_-H=4+—HIFFE)

s i e, SR e e

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AN B B BUIR R K o e 2 B
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE r®
COMPANY
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —T-FEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Plant and equipment 8= & a% A = =
Interests in subsidiaries KRB ARz 1,556,977 1,620,184
1,556,977 1,620,184
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE3XIE - 124 2 H b FEUBR X 812 835
Tax recoverable AR B I8 12 12
Cash and cash equivalents HeMBSZEEY 1,294 380
2,118 1,227
Current liabilities pE =R
Accruals and other payables FEETE A IR At FE T RKIE 978 1,091
Amount due to a director Bt —REEFHIE 26,971 22,312
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE T B A =) F A 85,638 87,238
113,587 110,641
Net current liabilities REEERE (111,469) (109,414)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 1,445,508 1,510,770
EQUITY s
Share capital &% AR 37,628 37,628
Reserves (note (a)) e (BitaE) 1,407,880 1,473,142
Total equity EEEE 1,455,508 1,510,770
Zhang Gao Bin Luo Zhangguan
REE EEW
Director Director
EZE EE

HARMESEEER AT 2021 FFi
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B Rk

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (B2 -F_——F+_-F=1+—HILFE)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 46. AATWNM BRI ERESH

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE =3¢ )
COMPANY (continued)
note: Biat -
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) NN BEES )
Currency Capital
Share translation Contributed redemption Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve loss Total
gH BEXER
R4 EE RafeE BABR e RitER Mgt

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AREFT AREFRT ARETT AREFT  AREFT ARETZ

At 1 January 2021 R-E--%—f—-H 2,982,905 (320,136) 393,107 82 (1,582,816) 1,473,142
Loss for the year FEER - - - = (21,045) (21,045)
Other comprehensive loss FEEMZERE

for the year:
Exchange loss on translation BEXRFZ

of the Company’s gt Ed
financial statement B - (44,217) - - - (44,217)
Total comprehensive loss FEREFBAH
for the year = (44,217) = = (21,045  (65,262)
As at 31 December 2021 RN-B=--%
+=ZA=t-H 2,982,905 (364,353) 393,107 82 (1,603,861) 1,407,880
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A0

e B ISR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2021) (%

46.

—E-—Ff A= —HIFE)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

46. A FHE BGHR R R #EEE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE = ®
COMPANY (continued)
note: (continued) Hitet - (88)
(@  (continued) @ (&)
Currency Capital
Share  translation  Contributed  redemption  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve loss Total
£ ERER
BfniEE RBGRE AR EL ZEtEE fast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEEFT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT
At 1 January 2020 “E-RF-F-B 2982906  (257,113) 393,107 82 (1,482,943 1,636,038
Loss for the year EEEE - - - - (99,873) (99,873
Other comprehensive loss FEEMZERE -
for the year:
Exchange loss on translation BERNFZ
of the Company’s g s
financial statement B 5 M = (63,028) - - - (63,023)
Total comprehensive loss FEREEBEH
for the year = (63,029) = = (99,873)  (162,896)
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-EF
+=ZA=t-H 2,982,905 (320,136) 393,107 82 (1,582,816) 1,473,142
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Company N-E-—FN T -_FTF+—

had no balance of distribution reserves available for
distribution to the owners.

HARMESEER DT 2021 FFHK

A A ARAIWES

=+- D I fe
AR EIIKTHEEA



(T 7T AL baRh




TALENT rroPERTY

TALENT PROPERTY GROUP LIMITED
MAMESRERRQF

(! i<z

TALENT PROPERTY GROUP LIMITED
HARMEEEERAAF

Add #iE : Unit A704, 3rd Floor, Tower A, New Mandarin Plaza, No. 14 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BB NN E R IR B LR E T U5
HERDAEIET04E

Tel B : 26206028
Fax 8E : 26206098
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